
CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

AGENDA 
December 12, 2018 at 7:00 P.M. 

A. CALL TO ORDER:

B. ROLL CALL:   LINDSTROM ___   LEEHY____   HARRIS____
MIAZGA ___   GUSTAFSON___ 

STAFF PRESENT:  THONGVANH____  

C. PRESENTATION
1. Partnership with Falcon Heights Elementary -  Cultivating a Caring Community Mural

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
1. November 14, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Public Hearing for Heritage Apartments for Issuance of Conduit Bond
2. 2019 Truth in Taxation and Budget Presentation

F. CONSENT AGENDA:
1. General Disbursements through: 12/05/18   $170,406.01

Payroll through:  11/30/18   $36,228.17
2. Approval of City License(s)
3. Appointment of Prosecuting Attorney
4. Appointment of City Attorney
5. Appointment of City Engineer
6. Appointment of City Auditor
7. Designation of Official Newspaper
8. 2019 Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA)
9. Charitable/Lawful Gambling License for Falcon Heights Elementary PTA
10. 2018 Year End Budget Amendments
11. Accepting Grant Funding of $1,000 from Target Corporation for Park and Recreation Programming
12. Removal of Hibo Ali from the Community Engagement Commission
13. Resignation of Stephen Sunderland from the Planning Commission
14. Appointment of Scott Wilson to the Planning Commission

G: POLICY ITEMS: 
1. Approve Final Payments to Valley Paving, Inc. for the 2017 Pavement Management Project

H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS:

I. COMMUNITY FORUM:

J. ADJOURNMENT:



BLANK PAGE 



P a g e  1  

 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
Regular Meeting of the City Council 

City Hall 
2077 West Larpenteur Avenue 

AGENDA 
November 14, 2018 at 7:00 P.M. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER:  
 
B. ROLL CALL: LINDSTROM _X__ LEEHY_X___ HARRIS__X__ 
MIAZGA _X__ GUSTAFSON_X__  
 
STAFF PRESENT: THONGVANH_X___  
 
C. PRESENTATIONS: 
1. Resolution Calling for Public Hearing for Heritage Apartments for Issuance of Conduit Bond  
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
The City received a request from Heritage Apartments Incorporated.  The request is to finance 
the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined multi-family senior housing and 
health care facility through issuing conduit bonds.  It will have 103 independent living units, 34 
assisted living units, 16 memory care units, 48 skilled nursing units, and 30 townhome units.  
There will be a public hearing on Wednesday, December 12, 2018, at City Hall 7pm.  The City 
will also receive a quarter of 1% of the issuance of the conduit bond. Attached is a letter from 
Briggs and Morgan and Resolution 18-35 calling for Public Hearing for Issuance of Conduit 
Bond for the Heritage Apartments Project.   
 
Staff recommends a motion to approve Resolution 18-35.  The state and federal law allow local 
government units to enter into an arrangement to issue obligations.  It will also loan the 
proceeds to nonprofit corporations to finance and refinance capital expenditures.  This will help 
reduce borrowing cost for the nonprofit corporation and enables them to provide their service 
in a more cost-effective way. It is a common means of obtaining necessary financing for 
nonprofits, and it includes private schools. We have done this a number of times in the past 
years.  It will bring benefits to the community and the City because there is no obligation from 
the city.  Based on the State Statute, if there is a default on the bond, the City will not be hooked 
for the commitment to that bond. Whereas in the previous bonds, which we issued for our 
street projects we would be responsible.  The proceeds we received have been going towards 
our Capital fund or infrastructure funds to helps pay for projects that we do on a regular 
basis.  This also means we do not have to levy the public. 
 
Mayor Lindstrom asked if a quarter of 1% is roughly $10,000 to $15,000 and that there will not 
be a risk to the City.  City Administrator clarified that it would be about $14,000 to $15,000. In 
the past, the City received up to $25,000 - $30,000 because they were larger bonds.  The City is 
allowed to issue up to $10 million to a 501(c) (3) for one year, then it resets for next year.  We 
will review the project that we have first on our docket to make sure that we have it.  We are 
also not going to use that money from the state’s perspective.  We hardly do any project that 
expensive unless it is for City Hall construction, facilities, and most of the street project are less 
than $2 million. 

1 of 208



P a g e  2  

 

 
Council Member Gustafson was happy to hear that it will help the Heritage at Lyngblomsten 
apartments on Midway Parkway by the State Fairgrounds out by city limits.  City 
Administrator Thongvanh stated there needs to be some connection to the City of Falcon 
Heights.   
 
Council Member Harris is worried that there will be a fee if the deal does not go through 
because in previous years there were some that were not successful.  We have a couple where it 
has not agreed to allow our bond authority to be used within the deal that did not close it.  City 
Administrator Thongvanh assured City Council that in the last two projects they have gone 
through, but it can happen from time to time. 
 
2. LED Lightbulb Program Report – James Wassenberg, Environment Commission Chair 
 
James Wassenberg (Environment Commission Chair) 
 
The Savings Watts and Drops Program was planned by the Falcon Heights Environmental 
Commission in October and November of 2017.  The Environmental Commission presented the 
program on December 13, 2017 and City Council approved it. The goals were to improve 
energy and water efficiency to Falcon Heights residents, raise awareness, save residents money, 
and produce environmental benefits.  The program had significant support from CERTs (Clean 
Energy Resource Teams), Alexis Troschinetz who also attends the Environmental Commission 
meetings and got everyone interested in this idea.  
 
Approximately 20 faucet aerators were distributed, and 798 LEDs were donated and 
distributed.  Our primary distribution areas were multi-unit residents, and this includes lower 
income families, City Hall front desk, Falcon Heights Sustainability Fair, and Falcon Heights 
Elementary School.  We sent out informational fliers, verbal education, and community 
outreach that will benefit families about this program, save money and provide resources. 
 
In conclusion, the Saving Watts and Drops Program in Falcon Heights was an overall 
success.  The Environmental Commission reached over 400 people with a message of efficiency, 
conversation, and service. The LEDs distributed throughout the community will save about 800 
million watts hours of electricity, 1.3 million pounds of carbon dioxide emission, and $112,837 
on local electricity bills. 
 
We hope to use this program as an example and promote a similar program in neighboring 
communities in cooperation with CERTS. 
 
Council Member Leehy appreciated the resourcefulness when she was reading the presentation. 
She also expressed that she did not know about the aerators until reading the report. It is great 
to know how to save energy with lights but also the water as well.  Lastly, in Falcon Heights 
CERTs means Community Emergency Response Team, can you share what it represents when 
it comes to environment? 
 
Alexis Troschinetz (CERTs)  
CERTs means Clean Energy Resource Teams, and our mission is to connect communities with 
resources.  The resources can help implement clean energy community-based projects, and for 
us, clean energy can be energy efficiency and renewable energy such as energy storage electric 

2 of 208



P a g e  3  

 

vehicles.  The resource we provide to people is through our experience of working with other 
communities and a little bit of seed grant funds. We also partner with a group called GreenStep 
Cities which the City of Falcon Heights recently achieved “Step 5” and being a leader with this 
implementation of saving watts.  We hope to present this program to other Metro cities and 
educate them about LED light bulbs and how it will impact the community. 
 
Mayor Lindstrom would like to thank James and Alexis for their work, dedication, and 
donation.  This will help the city’s budget and help low-income audience who need to save 
money the most.  He is excited to see how this will help other communities across the state. 
Council Member Miazga would like to thank both of them for their time, energy and proud to 
see to their work being showed on live T.V. and Council Members.  It is a great educational 
piece by reaching out and talking to renters, homeowners, and contractors.  
 
D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
1. October 24, 2018 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
There was a typo on Policy Item #1 Establishing Special Revenue Fund 210 – Community 
Inclusion Fund.  We actually received $20,000 and not $30,000. 
 

Approved 5-0 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
F. CONSENT AGENDA:  
1. General Disbursements through: 11/08/18 $104,791.50 
Payroll through: 10/31/18 $17,526.06 
2. Six Month Performance Evaluation - Amanda Lor, Administrative Coordinator 
3. Elm Tree Removal at 1877 Holton Street 
4. Close Emerald Ash Borer Fund 205 (Special Revenue Fund) and Transfer to Fund 419 
(Infrastructure Fund) 
5. Resignation of David Murphy from the Planning Commission 
6. Apply for the 2018 FEMA Assistance for Firefighters Grant  
 
Council Member Miazga 
I want to thank David Murphy for being a great member of the Planning Commission. He 
helped with the Comp Plan and showed a great example of what a commissioner does for the 
community. We will miss him. 
 
Mayor Lindstrom 
I would like to thank the Firefighters for applying the FEMA Grant.   
 
 
Council Member Leehy 
Regarding the tree on Holton, I appreciate when residents are being thoughtful and catching 
those things before they become problematic.  It will help prevent harm or damage to people 
and property.   
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 

3 of 208



P a g e  4  

 

Regarding the Six Month Performance Evaluation for Amanda Lor, Administrative 
Coordinator, I want to say that for the past six months she has done a great job. She continues to 
learn more about her position, learn other City positions, and taking on new tasks each day.  In 
the last year,  I lost my Administrative Coordinator, Katie Thrasher, Community Development 
Coordinator,  Paul Moretto in July, and Deputy Clerk, Timothy Sandvik in September.  All of 
them did an excellent job for the City and now moved to different positions in a bigger cities 
and communities.   
 
Being short staffed, Amanda has taken a lot of responsibility around the office.  She will 
continue to do so until we find a replacement.  Adding on, I am in the process of hiring an 
Assistant to the City Administrator.  The City received about 40 applicants, and I interviewed 
11 of them.  The final interview will have four candidates, and then I will select one of them for 
the position. 
 
Secondly, I would like to thank David Murphy for his commitment to the City. David 
committed a lot of time to the City and especially this year with the Comp Plan, breakout 
sessions, and meetings.  We hope to have the Comp Plan approved by the City Council in 
January then do another review before June. 
 
Lastly, the elm tree will be removed to create a safe environment and safety health concern. 
This item is being brought in front of the City Council because it is over $5,000.   Typically, if it 
were anything under $5,000 I would not have to bring in front of the City Council.  However, it 
is $5,300, which is why it is on the consent agenda for City Council to approve.  
 

Council Member Harris Moved, Approved 5-0  
G: POLICY ITEMS:  
1. The Hendrickson Project – PUD Amendment  
 
City Administrator Thongvanh 
The Hendrickson project amendment to the PUD is the newest development for 1750 
Larpenteur Avenue to establish a revised final development plan that is on file.  The City 
Council and the Planning Commission reviewed the first PUD where it not only changed the 
density but the facility.  In previous years, the Good Acre or the Pohlad Foundation approached 
the City Council and proposed the lot to be affordable housing complex.  However, planning 
did not go through and had to go into another public hearing to remove the project. In March 
2018, the Planning Commission held a public hearing on a proposed ordinance to adopt final 
development plans for the 68-unit senior housing component of the PUD. The Planning 
Commission also reviewed the final development plans, which included a site plan, building 
elevation plans, grading, drainage, utility, and a landscaping plan. The public hearing had a 3-
0-1 vote that approved a motion to recommend approval of the PUD. 
 
The Planning Commission’s motion included a direction that their recommendation was 
conditioned on the following items: 
 1) The expansion of the drive turning radius and access road to 30 feet 
 2) The fresh air intake be moved to the south wall of the structure on the southeast corner of the 
building  
3) That the issue of locating the fire hydrant in the southeast corner of the property not be 
required and be deferred to the city council.  
 

4 of 208



P a g e  5  

 

Following the review, City Fire Marshal indicated that eliminating the fire hydrant in the 
southeast corner of the site would not jeopardize adequate fire protection for the structure. In 
addition, the City Administrator can deviate 5% from the approved plan.  Paul Moretto 
recommended the 5%, and it is highly valuable because the City Administrator would have the 
authority to approve it and save time.  Without the 5%, it will have to go through the Planning 
Commission, City Council, and public hearings that can delay the one-year project. Also, the 5% 
only helps to approve small changes to the plan, and if there is a significant change, then it will 
be presented to the Planning Commission and City Council.  
 
Peter Austin (Kelly Brothers LTD) 
We hope to start construction by December 15. Over the last six months, the projects probably 
increase the cost up to $600,000. We decided to begin construction in the winter so it is not 
exposed to different kinds of pricing that will escalate in the springtime.  In the spring, there 
tend to be more construction projects throughout the Twin Cities, and it will put upper pressure 
on labor prices in six months.  
 
Council Member Harris asked why the cost increased, and Mr. Austin stated the cost increased 
because of the garage. Even though the Council amended to have the lower parking 
requirements, but from a market rate standpoint, we wanted to add more stalls. There are two 
theories of thought about cars.  We do have 1 to 1, which is essential, parking stalls on the 
outside that is part of the cost.  Mainly it is just escalating prices because of construction level 
activity in the Twin Cities. City Administrator Thongvanh informed City Council that yesterday 
the Building Official received the building permit with the design plan. The purpose of that was 
to review the plan early and get a footing in place before the actual construction date. 
 
Council Member Gustafson stated if the Council passed this PUD Amendment, then the project 
gets underway quickly. We will have 68 more market-rate rental and senior living units in 
Falcon Heights. Council Member Leehy remembered that in the last review, one of the stalls 
would be for electric car and asked Mr. Austin to re-clarify it.  Mr. Austin answered that they do 
not have a designated area for the electric car yet, but it could happen in the future.   
 
Council Member Miazga agreed that the process could take a long time and up to a year and a 
half and constant cycles to review the PUD.  He also decided that 5% is a great benefit to make 
the process easier and faster. Mr. Miazga motion to approve Revised Ordinance 18-10. 
 

Council Member Miazga Moved, Approved 5-0 
 
 
H. INFORMATION/ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
• Budget Workshop Following November 14, 2018 Regular Council Meeting 
 
Council Member Miazga 

· The Comp Plan is going great and a lot of good progress. 
 

· I had some time to look at the Community Survey data. There has been a lot of data 
analysis, writing an executive summary and putting the data together.  It is has been 
fascinating to see the results.  City Administrator Thongvanh and I will sit down and 
talk more about the survey and report in the next couple of weeks 

 

5 of 208



P a g e  6  

 

Council Member Leehy 
· Earlier today I was in downtown St. Paul and have conversations with a couple of our 

Ramsey County deputies.  They were happy to have Falcon Heights as one of the 
contract cities.  I heard good things from one of the deputies who stated that she 
attended the open house at the apartments and was impressed with the showing and 
participation of everybody.  I also hope everyone was able to make it to the Coffee with 
the Cop at the Underground Music Cafe yesterday.   
 

· Council Member Gustafson and I attended the Kettering Foundation in Ohio, the third 
and final of three portions for a shared learning experience.  There were about 7 or 8 
communities from around the country who attended and are working towards safety 
and community around policing.  We had outstanding interactions and met some new 
people at the event.  Everyone shared his or her experiences on how to create a safe 
neighborhood. One of the co-facilitators at the Kettering Foundation was also here at our 
Task Force event in Falcon Heights. She spoke about her experience in previous years 
and is working alongside them.  John Thompson was also invited as a community 
person, and he participated as well. We have all only had good experience coming out of 
it. 

 
We received many compliments about our Survey on the Spot, community gatherings, 
Restoration Day and Unity Day.  People are reaching out to us stating they need our 
inputs. We are being looked upon as turning the corner and being able to help others as 
we move forward ourselves.  

 
· City Administrator Thongvanh and I participated in one of the U of M St. Paul campus 

Strategic Facilities Plan open houses.  The open house discussed future potential 
development plans.  This will be a 30-year horizon plan, and they will present this plan 
to the Board of Directors in December or February.  They are also willing to meet with 
residents that live at Commonwealth Terrace because they were highly represented and 
very vocal about their needs and desires for that community.   

 
Council Member Harris 
There are no updates from me but I would like to thank the Kettering Foundation for doing 
those creative workshops.  Happy Thanksgiving to everybody. 
 
 
Council Member Gustafson 

· The Kettering Foundation experience is great and did not cost the City any money. 
 

· I attended the Coffee with a Cop yesterday at the Underground Music Cafe. I want to 
thank the Underground Music Cafe for opening up the facility for everybody. There 
were about 10-15 community members that attended and asked many good 
questions.  Many asked about the change in administration and we assured them that 
even though the administration changed, it does not change how deputies will answers 
to 911 calls and services to the community. The deputies that are in Falcon Heights will 
not change and will continue to serve the City.  We also met with the Block Captain 
Neighborhood Liaisons and contract cities about the same assurance. 

 

6 of 208



P a g e  7  

 

· I learned that there have been street sweeping notifications, which have been greatly 
received.  Residents like the notices being sent out and it creates great communication.   

 
· Community Engagement Commission is meeting on Monday, November 19 at 7pm City 

Hall.  We are in the final plans for the Human Rights Day on Monday, December 10 at 
6:30 - 8:30pm at Falcon Heights United Church.  The theme will be affordable housing, 
discrimination in housing and issues around housings.  Alice Hausman, State 
Representative will be there and Tim Thompson from Housing Justice Center who will 
talk about the history of red line, covenants and issues in today’s affordable and fair 
housing. 

 
Mayor Lindstrom 

· City Administrator Thongvanh and I attended the University Grove Association annual 
meeting two weeks ago and provided City updates.  I also learned about an issue 
regarding Breck Woods that is at the end of the trolley line in Lauderdale.  It is owned 
by Luther Seminary and has slowly been selling under-used portions of its property for 
several years. There will be a lot of discussion of what it is going to look like. It will 
affect the University Grove neighborhood, so it is something that we need to be very 
conscious about and pay close attention. 

 
· Tomorrow I am going to be on a panel as a part of the Coalition of Greater Minnesota 

Cities in Alexandria, Minnesota.  I will be representing the Metro area and will be 
speaking about the urban-rural divide.   

 
· The League of Minnesota Cities sent out an email regarding interviews about our award 

about policing inclusion and welcoming community efforts.  The interview will be on 
the next magazine. 

 
City Administrator Thongvanh 

· I want to thank the Kettering Foundation for creating these workshops.  I had the 
pleasure of attending two of the three and learned many great things.  Unfortunately, I 
was not able to participate in the last one, and this was due to being short staffed at the 
City Hall.  Timothy Sandvik left to City of Vadnais Heights, Amanda Lor just completed 
her six-month period, and Justin Markon who was recently hired in the middle of 
September. I spent a lot of my time doing interviews and catching up around the office. I 
hope the Kettering Foundation continues to do those kinds of workshops in the future. 

 
· I sent an email to Council Members about the table top exercise that I led at the City of 

Savage.  I was invited to talk about how to handle critical incidents and what the City of 
Falcon Heights did during the incident in 2016.  It was a great experience. I spoke about 
what happened, the process of protests at the City Hall, the police contract with St. 
Anthony police department, and lastly my main takeaways from the incident. Also, how 
we treated  people as human beings, showed sympathy, listened to their opinions and 
concerns, and we were there to make a change and help build a better and welcoming 
community.  I also mentioned how we met with John Thompson who is a very close 
friend to the Castile family, Valerie Castile the mother of Philando, and St. Paul Black 
Lives Matters. We sat down together and discussed how we are going to bring change 
and move forward from this.  

 

7 of 208



P a g e  8  

 

· As you can see, we have made some changes to the weekly newsletters.  The purpose 
was to create a better reading format and provide more information to residents. 
Administrative Coordinator Amanda asks if it was ok to modify the newsletters because 
it was hard to read and navigate. I told her to create a new format and urge residents to 
provide feedback.  If we receive positive feedbacks, then we will continue to go this 
route, which we did.  The main point was to create better communications between the 
City and residents.  While I am putting the Community Survey report together, one of 
the things that were high on that was in terms of how residents get their information 
from the City, and it was the weekly newsletters. This also why we started to send out 
notifications on street sweeping and residents appreciated the reminders.  I am focusing 
a lot on communications because it is vital.  Also, Amanda and I are talking a lot at how 
to modify the website and make it more user-friendly. Initially, I was working with 
Council Brown Thunder, but it did not go through because he relocated to California.  
We will continue to look into websites and create better communications.     

 
· Mayor Lindstrom mentioned Breck Wood earlier, and we will need to discuss it at the 

City Council workshop.  It will not only impact the University Grove neighborhood, but 
on Hoyt Ave because that is the only access it can turn into a development area.  

 
· Lastly, I received a letter about the TIES Building that is now call Sourcewell.  The name 

went into effect on September 1, 2018.  While the name changed, it will not change their 
mission.  This is the only update I received and will contact Jamie for more information.  
I will also do more research about Sourcewell and how it will affect the City. 

 

I. COMMUNITY FORUM: 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT 8:16 P.M. 
 

_____________________________ 

                                                                                              Peter Lindstrom, Mayor  

Dated this 14th day of November, 2018 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

 
 

8 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Item Heritage Apartments Conduit Bond – Approving the Housing Program and Approving 

the Issuance and Sale of Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Notes and Authorizing 
the Execution of Documents Relating Thereto (Heritage Apartments Project) 
 

Description 
 

On November 14, 2019, the City Council passed Resolution 18-35 calling for public hearing 
and authorize the publication of notice of hearing for on the issuance of senior housing 
facility revenue notes to finance and refinance senior housing project (Heritage 
Apartments Project).  The Housing Program is for a new facility to be located in Lino 
Lakes, partially financed with tax-exempt obligations issued by the City of Falcon Heights.  
The financing will also include the refinancing of a facility located in St. Paul, for which a 
separate housing program was adopted by the St. Paul Housing and Redevelopment 
Authority (HRA) and reviewed by the Met Council in 2009.   
 
The City of Falcon Heights may issue up to $10,000,000 of its own 501(c) (3) bonds each 
year as bank-qualified bonds.  Under the federal tax law, alternative issuers are permitted, 
but a “nexus” between the jurisdictional city and the issuers is preferred.  In this case, the 
City of Falcon Heights will approve a joint power agreement with the City of Saint Paul 
and the City of Lino Lakes.   
 
The Bonds will not constitute a charge, lien, or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any 
property of the Issuers, except the interests of the Issuers in payments to be made by the 
Borrower under the Loan Agreements.  The Bonds are not moral obligations on the part of 
the State or its political subdivisions, including the Issuers, and the Bonds will not 
constitute a debt of the Issuers within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory 
limitation. 

Budget 
Impact 

The City will receive ¼ of 1% of the principal amount that such Issuer issues.   

Attachment · Letter(s) 
o Metropolitan Council 
o Briggs to Metropolitan Council  

· Resolution 18-37 Approving a Housing Program and Approving the Issuance and 
Sale of Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Notes and Authorizing the 
Execution of Documents Relating Thereto Heritage Apartments Project 

· Joint Powers Agreement 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Public Hearing E1  

Attachment Resolution & Support Documents 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

9 of 208



· Pledge Agreement  
· Loan Agreement 
· Series 2018A Note  
· Series 2018B Note 
· First Amendment to Mortgage 
· Heritage Security Agreement 

 
Action(s) 
Requested 

Motion to approve attached resolution, Joint Powers Agreement, and authorize Mayor and 
City Administrator to sign all necessary documents. 

 

10 of 208



11 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

12 of 208



13 of 208



14 of 208



11150284v4 
 

 

JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT 
(HERITAGE APARTMENTS PROJECT) 

SERIES 2018 

THIS JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the 1st 
day of December, 2018, between the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (“Falcon Heights”), the 
City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota (“Lino Lakes”), and the Housing and Redevelopment Authority 
of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota (the “Saint Paul HRA”) (Falcon Heights, Lino Lakes, and 
Saint Paul HRA are collectively, the “Parties,” or each individually, a “Party”). Falcon Heights is 
a municipal corporation and Lino Lakes is a home rule charter city, and each of the cities is a 
political subdivision duly organized under the laws of the State of Minnesota. The Saint Paul 
HRA is a body corporate and politic validly existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

1. Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 et seq. (the “Joint Powers Act”) provides that 
two or more governmental units, by agreement entered into through action of their governing 
bodies, may jointly or cooperatively exercise any power common to the contracting parties, and 
may provide for the exercise of such power by one of the participating governmental units. 

2. In connection with revenue bonds issued under Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C 
(the “Act”), Section 462C.14, Subd. 3 provides for joint action between cities pursuant to the 
Joint Powers Act. 

3. On November 9, 2009, pursuant to the Act, the Saint Paul HRA issued its 
$3,200,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2009B (Heritage Apartments 
Project) (the “2009B Note”) pursuant to Resolution No. 09-10/28-5 adopted by the Saint Paul 
HRA on October 28, 2009 (the “Resolution”) and loaned the proceeds thereof to Heritage 
Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the “Borrower”), pursuant to a Loan 
Agreement dated as of November 1, 2009, between the Saint Paul HRA and the Borrower (the 
“Loan Agreement”), the proceeds of which were used to refinance the Saint Paul HRA's 
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds (Lyngblomsten Project), Series 1993B, which were 
originally issued to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a 60-unit rental 
housing and assisted living facility for the elderly located at 1440 Midway Parkway in Saint 
Paul, Minnesota, commonly known as The Heritage at Lyngblomsten (the “Heritage Apartments 
Project”). The Borrower acknowledges that the HRA has relied on the representations of the 
Borrower that the conditions for the redemption and prepayment of the Prior Note have been or 
will be satisfied in accordance with the terms thereof and the HRA has made no independent 
investigation or representation with respect to such determination. 

4. The Borrower has proposed that the Parties enter into this Agreement pursuant to 
the Joint Powers Act and the Act in order to provide for issuance of Falcon Heights' $[1,700,000] 
Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note (Heritage Apartments Project), Series 2018A (the 
“2018A Note”), and $[3,000,000] Senior Housing and Health Care Facilities Revenue Note 
(Heritage Apartments Project), Series 2018B (the “2018B Note” and with the 2018A Note, the 
“Notes”), the proceeds of which will be loaned to the Borrower and used to (i) finance, in part, 
the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined multifamily senior housing and health 
care facility, with approximately 103 independent living units, 34 assisted living units, 16 
memory care units, 48 skilled nursing units, and 30 townhome units, totaling approximately 

15 of 208



2 
 

106,730 square feet, to be located at 6075 Hodgson Road in the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota 
(the “Lino Lakes Project”, and together with the Heritage Apartments Project, the “Project”); and 
(ii) refinance the Heritage Apartments Project by refunding the 2009B Note. 

5. Saint Paul HRA has previously approved a housing finance program related to the 
2009B Note and the Heritage Apartments Project (the “Heritage Apartments Program”), as 
required by the Act, and Falcon Heights hereby adopts the same.  

6. A housing finance program related to the Lino Lakes Project will be adopted by 
Falcon Heights, as required by the Act. 

7. Each Party will adopt a resolution (i) evidencing its intent to enter into this 
Agreement, and (ii) granting approval to the issuance of the Notes as required under the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”). 

8. Falcon Heights shall exercise the powers of the Joint Powers Act and the Act by 
adopting, approving, and executing such resolutions, documents, and agreements as shall be 
necessary or convenient to authorize, issue, and sell the Notes and such other resolutions, 
documents, and agreements as shall be necessary or required in connection with the issuance of 
the Notes and giving effect to or carrying out the provisions of this Agreement and documents 
under which the Notes are issued and/or secured.  The Notes will be designated as “qualified tax-
exempt obligations” under Section 265(b) of the Code.  

9. The Notes shall be special, limited obligations of Falcon Heights, payable solely 
from proceeds, revenues, and other amounts pledged thereto and more fully described in the 
Loan Agreement between Falcon Heights and the Borrower, dated as of December 1, 2018 (the 
“Loan Agreement”).  In no event shall the Notes ever be payable from or charged upon the 
general credit, taxing powers, or any funds of any of the Parties; the Parties are not subject to any 
liability thereon; no owners of the Notes shall ever have the right to compel the exercise of the 
taxing power of any of the Parties to pay any of the Notes or the interest thereon, nor to enforce 
payment thereof against any property of any of the Parties; the Notes shall not constitute a 
charge, lien, or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of any of the Parties; and the 
Notes do not constitute an indebtedness of any of the Parties within the meaning of any 
constitutional, statutory, or charter limitation. 

10. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Falcon Heights will require that, as a condition 
to issuing the Notes, the Borrower shall have paid all fees of the Parties and all costs incurred by 
the Parties in the authorization, execution, delivery, and performance of this Joint Powers 
Agreement and all related transactions.   

11. This Agreement shall terminate upon the retirement or defeasance of the last of 
the outstanding Notes, and this Agreement may not be terminated in advance of such retirement 
or defeasance. 

12. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an 
original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

16 of 208



S-1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed 
on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

By________________________________ 
Its Mayor 

By________________________________ 
Its Administrator 
 

Signature page to Joint Powers Agreement 

17 of 208



S-2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed 
on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written. 

 
CITY OF LINO LAKES, MINNESOTA 

By________________________________ 
Its Mayor 

By________________________________ 
Its City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to Joint Powers Agreement 

18 of 208



S-3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed 
on its behalf by its duly authorized officers, all as of the day and year first above written. 

 
  HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
SAINT PAUL, MINNESOTA 

   
 

  By   
 Chair or Commissioner 

Approved as to form:  By   
 Executive Director 

By   
      Assistant City Attorney 

 By   
 Director, Office of Financial 
 Services of the City 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This signature page is attached to a Joint Powers Agreement by and between the HRA, the City 
of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (“Falcon Heights”), and the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota in 
connection with the issuance by Falcon Heights of its Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note 
(Heritage Apartments Project), Series 2018A and Senior Housing and Health Care Facilities 
Revenue Note (Heritage Apartments Project), Series 2018B 
 

19 of 208



11219857v2 
 

  
 

PLEDGE AGREEMENT 

This Pledge Agreement is made as of December 20, 2018 between the City of Falcon 
Heights, Minnesota, a municipal corporation (the "Issuer"), and Bremer Bank, National 
Association, a national banking association (the "Lender"). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the 
"Borrower"), and the Issuer have entered into a Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") of 
even date herewith, pursuant to which the Issuer will lend to the Borrower the proceeds of the 
$3,000,000 Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Note, Series 2018A (Heritage Apartments 
Project) and $____________ Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2018B (Heritage 
Apartments Project) (the "Notes"); and 

WHEREAS, the Notes are to be payable from and secured by the loan repayments to be 
made by the Borrower under the Loan Agreement; and the Lender, as a condition to the purchase 
of the Notes, has required the execution of this Pledge Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, as an inducement to the Lender to purchase the Notes, and in 
consideration of the promises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and 
sufficiency whereof are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. In order to secure the due and punctual payment of the Notes and all other sums 
due the Lender under the Loan Agreement, the Issuer does hereby pledge and assign to the 
Lender all of the Issuer's right, title and interest in and to the Loan Agreement, subject to the 
Issuer's rights under the provisions of Section 7.9 thereof. 

2. [Reserved.] 

3. The Issuer hereby authorizes the Lender to exercise, whether or not a default 
exists under the Notes or an Event of Default has occurred under the Loan Agreement, either in 
the Issuer's name or the Lender's name, any and all rights or remedies available to the Issuer 
under the Loan Agreement.  The Issuer agrees, on request of the Lender, to execute and deliver 
to the Lender such other documents or instruments as shall be deemed necessary or appropriate 
by the Lender at any time to confirm or perfect the security interest hereby granted.  The Issuer 
hereby appoints the Lender its attorney-in-fact to execute on behalf of the Issuer, and in its name, 
any and all such assignments, financing statements or other documents or instruments which the 
Lender may deem necessary or appropriate to perfect, protect or enforce the security interest 
hereby granted.  

4. The Issuer will not: 

(a) exercise or attempt to exercise any remedies under the Loan Agreement, 
except as permitted by Sections 6.2 and 7.9 of the Loan Agreement, or terminate, modify or 
accept a surrender of the same, or by affirmative act, consent to the creation or existence of any 
security interest or other lien in the Loan Agreement to secure payment of any other 
indebtedness; or 

20 of 208



11219857v2 
 

 2 
 

(b) receive or collect or permit the receipt or collection of any payments, 
receipts, rentals, profits or other moneys under the Loan Agreement (except as allowed under 
Section 7.9 thereof) or assign, transfer or hypothecate (other than to the Lender hereunder) any 
of the same then due or to accrue in the future. 

5. The Issuer expressly covenants and agrees that the Lender shall be entitled to 
receive all payments under the Loan Agreement (except any payments due the Issuer under 
Section 7.9 thereof), and hereby authorizes and directs the Borrower to make such payments 
directly to the Lender.  The Lender covenants and agrees that all payments received by the 
Lender pursuant to the Loan Agreement shall be applied as provided in the Loan Agreement. 

6. The Lender agrees to advance the purchase price of the Notes directly to the 
Borrower as provided in the Notes and the Loan Agreement.  In accordance with Section 7.9 of 
the Loan Agreement the Lender hereby assumes the Issuer's and Lender's obligations to the 
Borrower thereunder except for the Issuer's obligations in connection with its representations in 
Section 2.1 of the Loan Agreement which are not being assumed. 

7. If an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, and not 
cured within an applicable cure period, and be continuing, the Lender may exercise any one or 
more or all, and in any order, of the remedies hereinafter set forth, in addition to any other 
remedy at law or in equity or specified in the Loan Agreement, it being expressly understood that 
no remedy herein conferred is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or remedies; but 
each and every remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 
herein or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute: 

(a) The Lender may, without prior notice of any kind declare the principal of 
and interest accrued and any premium (as described in the Loan Agreement) on the Notes 
immediately due and payable. 

(b) The Lender may exercise any rights and remedies and options of a secured 
party under the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State of Minnesota and any and all 
rights available to it under the Loan Agreement securing payment of the Notes. 

8. Whenever any of the parties hereto is referred to, such reference shall be deemed 
to include the successors and assigns of such party; and all the covenants, promises and 
agreements in this Pledge Agreement contained by or on behalf of the Issuer or the Lender shall 
bind and inure to the benefit of the respective successors and assigns of such parties whether so 
expressed or not. 

9. The unenforceability or invalidity of any provision or provisions of this Pledge 
Agreement shall not render any other provision or provisions herein contained unenforceable or 
invalid. 

10. This Pledge Agreement shall in all respects be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.  This Pledge Agreement may not be amended or 
modified except in writing signed by the Issuer and the Lender. 

21 of 208



11219857v2 
 

 3 
 

11. This Pledge Agreement may be executed, acknowledged and delivered in any 
number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall constitute an original but all of which 
together shall constitute one agreement. 

12. The terms used in this Pledge Agreement which are defined in the Loan 
Agreement shall have the meanings specified therein, unless the context of this Pledge 
Agreement otherwise requires, or unless such terms are otherwise defined herein. 

13. No obligation of the Issuer hereunder shall constitute or give rise to a pecuniary 
liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general credit or taxing powers, but shall be payable 
solely out of the proceeds and the revenues derived under the Loan Agreement. 

 
[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. Signature pages follow.] 

 

22 of 208



11219857v2 
 

 

  S-1  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Lender have caused this Pledge Agreement 
to be duly executed as of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

 
 
By______________________________ 
    Mayor 

 
By______________________________ 
    City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page to Pledge Agreement] 

23 of 208



11219857v2 
 

 

  S-2  
 

 
Bremer Bank, National Association 
 
 
By  ____________________________________ 
      Senior Vice President 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page to Pledge Agreement] 

24 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

LOAN AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

AND 

HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC.  

Dated as of December 20, 2018 

Except for certain reserved rights, the interest of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota in this 
Loan Agreement has been pledged and assigned to Bremer Bank, National Association pursuant 
to a Pledge Agreement of even date herewith. 

This instrument was drafted by: 

BRIGGS AND MORGAN (CJC) 
Professional Association 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 

25 of 208



11220237v3 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

 -i-  
 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS, EXHIBITS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION ............ 1 
Section 1.1 Definitions............................................................................................ 1 
Section 1.2 Rules of Interpretation ......................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS .................................................................................... 6 
Section 2.1 Representations by the Issuer............................................................... 6 
Section 2.2 Representations by the Borrower ......................................................... 6 

ARTICLE III THE LOAN ...................................................................................................... 9 
Section 3.1 Amount and Source of Loan ................................................................ 9 
Section 3.2 Documents Required Prior to Closing and Disbursement of the 

Loan ..................................................................................................... 9 
Section 3.3 Disbursement of the Loan .................................................................. 10 
Section 3.4 Repayment ......................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.5 Fee Payments ..................................................................................... 10 
Section 3.6 Borrower's Obligations Unconditional .............................................. 10 
Section 3.7 Interest Rate Adjustment.................................................................... 11 
Section 3.8 Procedure for Interest Rate Adjustment ............................................. 11 

ARTICLE IV BORROWER'S COVENANTS ..................................................................... 12 
Section 4.1 Indemnity ........................................................................................... 12 
Section 4.2 Continuing Existence and Qualification; Transfer ............................ 13 
Section 4.3 Reports to Governmental Agencies ................................................... 13 
Section 4.4 Security for the Loan ......................................................................... 13 
Section 4.5 Preservation of Tax Exemption ......................................................... 13 
Section 4.6 Lease or Sale of Facilities .................................................................. 17 
Section 4.7 Facilities Operation and Maintenance Expenses; Insurance .............. 17 
Section 4.8 Notification of Changes ..................................................................... 17 
Section 4.9 Financial Covenants ........................................................................... 18 
Section 4.10 Access ................................................................................................ 18 
Section 4.11 Access to Books and Inspection ........................................................ 18 
Section 4.12 IRS Audit Expenses ........................................................................... 19 
Section 4.13 Matters Related to Management Contracts ........................................ 19 
Section 4.14 Replacement Reserve ......................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE V PREPAYMENT OF LOAN ........................................................................... 20 
Section 5.1 Prepayment at Option of Borrower .................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VI EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ................................................ 21 
Section 6.1 Events of Default ............................................................................... 21 
Section 6.2 Remedies ............................................................................................ 22 
Section 6.3 Disposition of Funds .......................................................................... 23 
Section 6.4 Manner of Exercise ............................................................................ 23 
Section 6.5 Attorneys' Fees and Expenses ............................................................ 23 
Section 6.6 Effect of Waiver ................................................................................. 23 
Section 6.7 Default Rate ....................................................................................... 23 

26 of 208



11220237v3 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -ii-  
 

ARTICLE VII GENERAL ..................................................................................................... 24 
Section 7.1 Notices ............................................................................................... 24 
Section 7.2 Binding Effect .................................................................................... 24 
Section 7.3 Severability ........................................................................................ 24 
Section 7.4 Amendments, Changes and Modifications ........................................ 24 
Section 7.5 Execution Counterparts ...................................................................... 24 
Section 7.6 Limitation of Issuer's Liability ........................................................... 24 
Section 7.7 Issuer's and Host Cities' Attorneys' Fees and Costs ........................... 25 
Section 7.8 Release ............................................................................................... 25 
Section 7.9 Pledge and Assignment by Issuer and Survival of Obligations ......... 25 
Section 7.10 Required Approvals ........................................................................... 26 
Section 7.11 Termination Upon Retirement of Notes ............................................ 26 
Section 7.12 Expenses of Lender ............................................................................ 26 
Section 7.13 Entire Agreement ............................................................................... 27 
Section 7.14 Further Assurances............................................................................. 27 
Section 7.15 Non-Responsibility ............................................................................ 27 

EXHIBIT A FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ........................................................ A-1 
EXHIBIT B FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST ................................................. B-1 

27 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT dated as of December 20, 2018, between the City of Falcon 
Heights, Minnesota, a municipal corporation (the "Issuer"), and Heritage Apartments, Inc., a 
Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the "Borrower"). 

WITNESSES that the Issuer and the Borrower each in consideration of the 
representations, covenants and agreements of the other as set forth herein, mutually represent, 
covenant and agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS, EXHIBITS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION 

Section 1.1 Definitions.  In this Agreement the following terms have the following 
respective meanings unless the context hereof clearly requires otherwise: 

Act:  Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C, as amended; 

Agreement:  this Loan Agreement between the Issuer and the Borrower as the same may 
from time to time be amended or supplemented as herein provided; 

Bond Counsel:  the firm of Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association, of 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, or any other nationally recognized bond counsel representing the 
Issuer, and any opinion of Bond Counsel shall be a written opinion signed by such Bond 
Counsel; 

Borrower:  Heritage Apartments, Inc., its successors and assigns, and any surviving, 
resulting, or transferee business entity which may assume its obligations in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement; 

Cash Available for Debt Service:  for the applicable Fiscal Year, the Borrower's change 
in unrestricted net assets net of unrealized gains or losses on investments plus the sum of 
(i) interest expense, (ii) depreciation, amortization and other non-cash expenses, (iii)  equity 
contributions; minus all dividends and distributions of cash or assets all determined in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied;  

Closing:  the date there is physical delivery of the Notes to the Lender and payment 
therefor; 

Code:  the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the temporary, final or 
proposed regulations promulgated thereunder; 

Collateral:  all collateral on which a lien has been granted to the Lender by the Borrower 
pursuant to this Agreement, the Mortgage, and the Security Agreement; 

Corporate Tax Rate: solely with respect to the Notes, the maximum rate of income 
taxation imposed on corporations pursuant to Section 11(b) of the Code (or any successor 
provision) or, if as a result of a Corporate Tax Rate Change, the rate of income taxation imposed 

28 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 2  
 
 

on corporations does not apply to the Lender, then the maximum statutory rate of federal income 
taxation which would apply to the Lender; 

Corporate Tax Rate Change: the occurrence, after Closing, of a change in the Code 
resulting in a change in the Corporate Tax Rate; 

Corporate Tax Rate Change Date: the date a Corporate Tax Rate Change begins to apply 
to income of the Lender; 

Counsel:  an attorney designated by or acceptable to the Lender, duly admitted to practice 
law before the highest court of any state; an attorney for the Borrower or the Issuer may be 
eligible for appointment as Counsel; 

Date of Taxability:  this term shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 4.5(2) 
hereof; 

Debt Service:  the sum of (i) all obligations of Borrower for interest on its indebtedness 
during a Fiscal Year, plus (ii) all obligations for payment of principal on its indebtedness within 
such Fiscal Year, all determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
consistently applied;  

Debt Service Coverage Ratio:  the ratio of Borrower's Cash Available for Debt Service to 
Debt Service; 

Default Rate:  has the meaning defined in Section 6.7 hereof; 

Determination of Taxability:  this term shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Section 
4.5(2) hereof; 

Disbursement Request:  a Disbursement Request in the form of Exhibit B attached 
hereto; 

Effective Date: the first date the Borrower is required to make a payment on the Notes at 
a new annual interest rate due to a Determination of Taxability; 

Equivalent Tax Exempt Yield:  solely with respect to the Notes, an annual interest rate on 
the Notes that provides the Lender with a yield, on a tax-exempt basis, equivalent to the yield the 
Lender would otherwise have received had a Corporate Tax Rate Change not occurred; 

Event of Default:  any of the events described in Section 6.1 hereof; 

Exempt Organization:  a governmental unit, an entity described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Code or a limited liability company that is a disregarded entity for federal income tax 
purposes and whose sole member (or, if different, beneficial owner for federal income tax 
purposes) is an entity described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; 

Facilities:  collectively, the Saint Paul Facility and the Lino Lakes Facility;  

29 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 3  
 
 

Fiscal Year:  with respect to the Borrower, the period commencing on the first day of 
January of any year and ending on the last day of December of the same year or any other twelve 
(12) month period specified by the Borrower as its fiscal year; 

Host Cities:  Lino Lakes and Saint Paul;  

Independent Counsel: an attorney duly admitted to practice law before the highest court 
of any state and who is not a full-time employee, director or shareholder of the Issuer, the 
Borrower, or LSH; 

Issuance Expenses:  shall mean any and all costs and expenses relating to the issuance, 
sale and delivery of the Note, including, but not limited to, any fees of the Lender, all fees and 
expenses of legal counsel, financial consultants, feasibility consultants and accountants, any fee 
to be paid to the Issuer, the preparation and printing of this Agreement, the Mortgage 
Amendment, the Security Agreement, the Resolution, the Pledge Agreement, the Notes and all 
other related documents, and all other expenses relating to the issuance, sale and delivery of the 
Notes and any other costs which are treated as "issuance costs" within the meaning of Section 
147(g) of the Code; 

Issuer:  City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, its successors and assigns; 

Joint Powers Agreement:  the Joint Powers Agreement dated as of December 1, 2018 by 
and between the Issuer, Lino Lakes, and Saint Paul with respect to the issuance of the Notes; 

Land:  the real property and any other easements and rights described in Exhibit A to the 
Mortgage, together with all additions thereto and substitutions therefor agreed to by Lender and 
Borrower; 

Lender:  Bremer Bank, National Association, a national banking association, its 
successors and assigns; 

Lino Lakes:  the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota; 

Lino Lakes Facility:  a combined multifamily senior housing and health care facility, with 
approximately 103 independent living units, 34 assisted living units, 16 memory care units, 48 
skilled nursing units, and 30 townhome units, totaling approximately 106,730 square feet, to be 
located at 6075 Hodgson Road in the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota, owned and operated by 
LSH; 

Loan:  the loan of proceeds of the Notes from the Issuer to the Borrower described in 
Section 3.1 of this Agreement; 

Loan Documents:  collectively, the documents listed in Section 3.2, items (1) - (5) hereof; 

LSH:  Lyngblomsten Senior Housing, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and an 
affiliate of the Borrower;  

30 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 4  
 
 

Mortgage:  the Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as 
of November 1, 2009 by the Borrower in favor of the Lender, as amended by the Mortgage 
Amendment.   

Mortgage Amendment:  the First Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and 
Fixture Financing Statement dated as of December 20, 2018 between the Borrower and the 
Lender;  

Notes:  the Series 2018A Note and the Series 2018B Note, collectively;  

Pledge Agreement:  the Pledge Agreement of even date herewith between the Issuer and 
the Lender pledging and assigning the Issuer's interest in this Agreement to the Lender to the 
extent provided therein; 

Principal Balance:  so much of the principal sum on each of the Notes as from time to 
time remains unpaid; 

Prior Note:  the $3,200,000 Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint 
Paul, Minnesota Multifamily Housing Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009B (Heritage 
Apartments Project), currently outstanding in the principal amount of $1,523,889;  

Project:  (i) the refunding of the Prior Note, the proceeds of which were used to refinance 
the acquisition, construction, and improvement of the Saint Paul Facility and (ii) the partial 
financing of the acquisition, construction, and equipping of the Lino Lakes Facility; 

Project Costs:  all direct costs authorized by the Act and paid or incurred by the Borrower 
with respect to the Project; 

Redemption Date:  December 20, 2018; 

Resolution:  the Final Note Resolution of the Issuer, adopted December 12, 2018, 
authorizing the issuance of the Notes together with any supplement or amendment thereto; 

Saint Paul:  the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, including the Housing and Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota; 

Saint Paul Facility:  the 60-unit rental housing and assisted living facility for the elderly 
located at 1440 Midway Parkway in Saint Paul, Minnesota, commonly known as The Heritage at 
Lyngblomsten, owned and operated by the Borrower; 

Security Agreement:  the Security Agreement of even date herewith by the Borrower for 
the benefit of the Lender pledging and granting a security interest in the collateral described 
therein;  

Series 2018A Note:  the Issuer's $3,000,000 Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue 
Note, Series 2018A (Heritage Apartments Project), as it may be amended from time to time; 

31 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 5  
 
 

Series 2018B Note:  the Issuer's $1,700,000 Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note, 
Series 2018B (Heritage Apartments Project), as it may be amended from time to time;  

State:  the State of Minnesota; and 

Treasury Regulations:  all proposed, temporary or permanent federal income tax 
regulations then in effect and applicable. 

Section 1.2 Rules of Interpretation. 

(1) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with and governed by 
the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

(2) The words "herein" and "hereof" and words of similar import, without 
reference to any particular section or subdivision, refer to this Agreement as a whole rather than 
to any particular section or subdivision hereof. 

(3) References herein to any particular section or subdivision hereof are to the 
section or subdivision of this instrument as originally executed. 

(4) Where the Borrower is permitted or required to do or accomplish any act 
or thing hereunder, the Issuer may cause the same to be done or accomplished with the same 
force and effect as if done or accomplished by the Borrower. 

(5) The Table of Contents and titles of articles and sections herein are for 
convenience only and are not a part of this Agreement. 

(6) Unless the context hereof clearly requires otherwise, the singular shall 
include the plural and vice versa and the masculine shall include the feminine and vice versa. 

(7) Articles, sections, subsections and clauses mentioned by number only are 
those so numbered which are contained in this Agreement. 

(8) References to the Notes as "tax exempt" or to the "tax exempt status of the 
Notes" are to the exclusion of interest on the Note from gross income pursuant to Section 103(a) 
of the Code. 

  

32 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 6  
 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS 

Section 2.1 Representations by the Issuer.  The Issuer makes the following 
representations as the basis for its covenants herein: 

(1) The Issuer is a municipal corporation pursuant to the laws of the State of 
Minnesota; 

(2) There is no pending or, to the undersigned's actual knowledge, without 
inquiry or investigation, threatened suit, action, or proceeding against the Issuer before any court, 
arbitrator, administrative agency, or other governmental authority that challenges the Issuer's 
execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Notes, and the Pledge Agreement;  

(3) To the actual knowledge of the undersigned, without inquiry or 
investigation, the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Notes, and the Pledge 
Agreement will not constitute a breach of or default under any existing (a) provision of any 
special legislative act or charter provision relating to the establishment of the Issuer or 
(b) agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease or other instrument to which the Issuer is a party or by 
which it is bound; and 

(4) No proceeding of the Issuer for the issuance, execution or delivery of this 
Agreement, the Notes, or the Pledge Agreement has been repealed, rescinded, amended or 
revoked and Lender is entitled to rely on the same as if the same were fully incorporated herein, 
including without limitation, the Resolution. 

Section 2.2 Representations by the Borrower.  The Borrower makes the following 
representations as the basis for its covenants herein: 

(1) The Borrower is a Minnesota nonprofit corporation in good standing, is 
duly authorized to conduct its business in all states where its activities require such authorization, 
has power to enter into this Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, and the Security Agreement 
and to use, or cause to be used, the Facilities for the purpose set forth in this Agreement and by 
proper corporate action has authorized the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the 
Mortgage Amendment, and the Security Agreement; 

(2) Not more than five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Notes will be used, 
directly or indirectly, to finance property used in an unrelated trade or business of the Borrower 
determined by applying Section 513(a) of the Code or in the trade or business of any person 
other than an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  There is no action, 
proceeding or investigation pending or threatened by the Internal Revenue Service or authorities 
of the State of Minnesota which, if adversely determined, might result in a modification of the 
status of the Borrower as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; 

(3) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, 
and the Security Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, and the 
fulfillment of the terms and conditions thereof do not and will not conflict with or result in a 

33 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 7  
 
 

breach of any of the terms or conditions of the Borrower's articles of incorporation, its bylaws, 
any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Borrower is now a party or by which 
it is bound or to which any property of the Borrower is subject, and do not and will not constitute 
a default under any of the foregoing or a violation of any order, decree, statute, rule or regulation 
of any court or of any state or federal regulatory body having jurisdiction over the Borrower or 
its properties, including the Facilities, and do not and will not result in the creation or imposition 
of any lien, charge or encumbrance of any nature upon any of the property or assets of the 
Borrower contrary to the terms of any instrument or agreement to which the Borrower is a party 
or by which it is bound; 

(4) As of the date hereof, the use of the Facilities as designed and to be 
operated complies, in all material respects, with all presently applicable development, pollution 
control, water conservation and other laws, regulations, rules and ordinances of the federal 
government and the State of Minnesota and the respective agencies thereof and the political 
subdivisions in which the Facilities are (or, as to the Lino Lakes Facility, will be) located.  The 
Borrower has obtained, or will obtain in a timely manner, all necessary and material approvals of 
and licenses, permits, consents and franchises from federal, state, county, municipal or other 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Facilities and to enter into, execute and 
perform its obligations under this Agreement, the Mortgage, and the Security Agreement, and no 
violation of any local ordinance, laws, regulation or requirement exists with respect to the Land; 

(5) The proceeds of the Notes, together with any other funds to be contributed 
to the Project by the Borrower and/or LSH, including additional proceeds of LSH debt, or 
otherwise in accordance with this Agreement, will be sufficient to pay the cost of the Project in a 
manner suitable for use of the Facilities as senior housing and health care facilities, and all costs 
and expenses incidental thereto, and the proceeds of the Notes will be used only for the purposes 
contemplated hereby and allowable under the Act; 

(6) Comparable private financing for the Project was not found by the 
Borrower to be reasonably available, and the Project is economically more feasible with the 
availability of the financing herein authorized; 

(7) The Borrower is not in the trade or business of selling properties such as 
the Facilities and is undertaking the Project for investment purposes only or otherwise for use by 
the Borrower in its trade or business, and therefore the Borrower has no intention now or in the 
foreseeable future to voluntarily sell, surrender, or otherwise transfer, in whole or part, its 
interest in the Saint Paul Facility or to allow the sale, surrender, or other transfer, in whole or in 
part, of LSH's interest in the Lino Lakes Facility, except that not all of the land acquired for the 
Lino Lakes Facility is expected to be needed for the Lino Lakes Facility, so any excess land may 
be sold or otherwise conveyed, to the extent such conveyance does not have an adverse effect of 
the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Series 2018A Note; 

(8) There are no actions, suits, or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of 
the Borrower, threatened against or affecting the Borrower or LSH or any property of the 
Borrower or LSH in any court or before any federal, state, municipal, or other governmental 
agency, which, if decided adversely to the Borrower or LSH would have a material adverse 
effect upon the Borrower or LSH or upon the business or properties of the Borrower or LSH; and 

34 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 8  
 
 

the Borrower and LSH are not in default with respect to any order of any court or governmental 
agency; 

(9) The Borrower is not in default in the payment of the principal of or 
interest on any indebtedness for borrowed money nor in default under any instrument or 
agreement under and subject to which any indebtedness for borrowed money has been issued; 

(10) The Borrower has filed all federal and state income tax returns which are 
required to be filed and has paid all taxes shown on said returns and all assessments and 
governmental charges received by the Borrower to the extent that they have become due; 

(11) To the knowledge of the Borrower, no public official of the Issuer has 
either a direct or indirect financial interest in this Agreement nor will any public official either 
directly or indirectly benefit financially from this Agreement;  

(12) The Borrower has approved the terms and conditions of the Notes; 

(13) The Borrower intends the Saint Paul Facility to be and intends to cause the 
Lino Lakes Facility to be operated as senior housing and healthcare facilities until the date on 
which the entire Principal Balances of the Series 2018B Note and Series 2018A Note, 
respectively, have been fully paid and are no longer outstanding; 

(14) Each document executed by the Borrower in connection with the Loan 
constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower, enforceable in accordance 
with its terms (subject, as to enforceability, to limitations resulting from bankruptcy, insolvency 
and other similar laws affecting creditors' rights generally); 

(15) The financial statements of the Borrower heretofore furnished to the 
Lender are complete and correct in all material respects and fairly present the financial condition 
of the Borrower at the date of such statements.  Since the most recent set of audited financial 
statements delivered by the Borrower to the Lender, there have been no material adverse changes 
in the financial condition of the Borrower; 

(16) Except with respect to the construction and occupancy of the Lino Lakes 
Facility, no consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing 
with, or notice to, any governmental authority or any third party is required in connection with 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement, or any of the agreements or instruments herein 
mentioned or related hereto to which the Borrower is a party or the carrying out or performance 
of any of the transactions required or contemplated hereby or thereby or, if required, such 
consent, approval, order or authorization has been (or, with respect to the filing of the Form 8038 
with the Internal Revenue Service, will be) obtained or such registration, declaration, or filing 
has been or will be accomplished or such notice has been or will be given; 

(17) The Saint Paul Facility is, and the Lino Lakes Facility will be upon 
completion, in substantial compliance with the accessibility guidelines set forth in Title III of 
The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as the same may be amended from time to time, 
and any rules and regulations promulgated thereunder (the "ADA"). 

35 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 9  
 
 

(18) LSH is a Minnesota nonprofit corporation in good standing and is duly 
authorized to conduct its business in all states where its activities require such authorization.  
LSH is an affiliate of the Borrower.  There is no action, proceeding or investigation pending or 
threatened by the Internal Revenue Service or authorities of the State of Minnesota which, if 
adversely determined, might result in a modification of the status of LSH as an organization 
described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code.  

ARTICLE III 
 

THE LOAN 

Section 3.1 Amount and Source of Loan.  The Issuer has authorized the issuance of 
the Notes in the principal amount of $3,000,000 and $1,700,000, respectively, to provide funds 
to the Borrower for its use in financing and refinancing the Project.  The Borrower agrees to 
cause LSH to acquire and construct the Lino Lakes Facility and Borrower will refund and 
redeem the Prior Note, and the Issuer, upon receipt of its administrative fee of $[23,500], agrees 
to lend the Borrower, upon the other terms and conditions set forth herein, the proceeds received 
from the Notes by causing such sums to be advanced to the Borrower and disbursed at Closing or 
pursuant to this Agreement. 

Section 3.2 Documents Required Prior to Closing and Disbursement of the Loan.  
Prior to the closing and any advance of the proceeds, the Borrower shall deliver to the Lender the 
following: 

(1) The Notes; 

(2) This Agreement; 

(3) The Pledge Agreement; 

(4) The Mortgage Amendment; 

(5) The Security Agreement; 

(6) Opinion of Counsel for the Borrower as prescribed by the Lender and 
Bond Counsel; 

(7) An opinion of Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association, to the effect 
that the Issuer has duly authorized the Notes and that the interest thereon is exempt from federal 
income taxation and subject to other conditions acceptable to the Lender; 

(8) 501(c)(3) determination letters from the Internal Revenue Service 
evidencing that the Borrower and LSH are exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) 
of the Code and such other documents and opinions as Bond Counsel may reasonably require for 
purposes of rendering its opinion required in subsection (7) above; and 

(9) Any certification, instrument, assignment or other document referenced in 
or required by any of the foregoing. 

36 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 10  
 
 

Section 3.3 Disbursement of the Loan.  Pursuant to this Agreement and the Act, the 
Issuer authorizes the Borrower to provide directly for the financing of the Project in such manner 
as determined by the Borrower and hereby authorizes the Lender to advance the proceeds of the 
Notes directly to or for the benefit of the Borrower or such other parties as may be entitled to 
payment or reimbursement for Project Costs or Issuance Expenses, upon receipt of a 
Disbursement Request in the form of Exhibit B hereto and such supporting documentation as the 
Lender may deem reasonably necessary or as required by this Agreement.  At Closing, Lender 
will advance Note proceeds of $____________ as follows: $____________ of the Series 2018A 
Note proceeds and $[0.00] of the Series 2018B Note proceeds will be disbursed for Issuance 
Expenses, $1,527,548.44 of the Series 2018B Note proceeds will be disbursed to the Lender to 
be applied to the refunding of the Prior Note on the Redemption Date, and $___________ of the 
Series 2018A Note proceeds will be disbursed as directed by the Borrower to pay Project Costs 
of the Lino Lakes Facility, provided that no more than 2% of the amount actually advanced on 
the Notes may be used to pay Issuance Expenses.  Upon Lender's receipt of approved 
Disbursement Requests from the Borrower the remaining proceeds of the Series 2018A Note 
proceeds shall be advanced by the Lender and disbursed pursuant to this Agreement until fully 
advanced, completion of the Lino Lakes Facility, or December 1, 2020, whichever occurs 
earliest.  Any unadvanced proceeds of the Series 2018A Note as of December 1, 2020 or upon 
completion of the Lino Lakes Facility shall remain unadvanced.  

Section 3.4 Repayment.  Subject to the prepayment provisions set forth in the Notes, 
the Borrower agrees to repay the Loan by making all payments of principal, interest, and any 
premium or charge that are required to be made by the Issuer under the Notes at the times and in 
the amounts provided therein.  All payments shall be made directly to the Lender as provided in 
the Notes for the account of the Issuer.  The Borrower represents and covenants that the source 
of payment of the Notes is from revenues derived from its ownership of the Saint Paul Facility 
and other funds of the Borrower obtained pursuant to its tax-exempt purposes. 

Section 3.5 Fee Payments.  In addition to the repayments required by Section 3.4 
hereof, the Borrower shall pay to the Issuer, as fee payments, the following amounts, in each 
case promptly after receipt of an appropriate invoice stating the basis and amount of the charge:  
all costs and expenses of the Issuer incurred in the issuance and payment of the Notes and the 
making, administration and collection of the Loan, including (i) all costs incurred in connection 
with the purchase, transfer, registration, exchange or redemption of the Notes, (ii) the reasonable 
fees and other costs incurred for services of such engineers, attorneys, management consultants, 
accountants and other consultants as are employed by the Issuer to make examinations and 
reports, provide services and render opinions required under this Agreement, and (iii) amounts 
advanced by the Issuer under the provisions of this Agreement and which the Borrower is 
obligated to repay. 

Section 3.6 Borrower's Obligations Unconditional.  All payments required of the 
Borrower hereunder shall be paid without notice or demand and without setoff, counterclaim, 
abatement, deduction or defense.  The Borrower will not suspend or discontinue any payments, 
and will perform and observe all of its other agreements in this Agreement, and, except as 
expressly permitted herein, will not terminate this Agreement for any cause, including but not 
limited to any acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration, destruction or 
damage to the Facilities, eviction by paramount title, commercial frustration of purpose, 

37 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 11  
 
 

bankruptcy or insolvency of the Issuer or the Lender, change in the tax or other laws or 
administrative rulings or actions of the United States of America or of the State of Minnesota or 
any political subdivision thereof, or failure of the Issuer to perform and observe any agreement, 
whether express or implied, or any duty, liability or obligation arising out of or connected with 
this Agreement. 

Section 3.7 Interest Rate Adjustment. 

(1) General.  In the event of a Corporate Tax Rate Change which causes a 
change in the Equivalent Tax Exempt Yield, then, subject to the provisions of Section 3.8, the 
annual interest rate on the Notes shall be adjusted as of the Corporate Tax Rate Change Date by 
multiplying the then-current interest rate under the Notes by the Ratio, as further described in the 
Notes and in Section 3.8 hereof. 

(2) Survival.  Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the 
Borrower under this Agreement, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in 
this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment in full of the Notes 
and the obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement. 

Section 3.8 Procedure for Interest Rate Adjustment.  If the conditions described in 
Section 3.7(1) above occur, the following procedure must be followed: 

(1) Certificates for Reimbursement.  The Lender shall prepare and deliver to 
the Borrower a certificate of the Lender setting forth the new annual interest rate applicable to 
the Notes and the Effective Date.  The Lender certificate as to such matters shall be conclusive 
absent manifest error. 

(2) Conditions Precedent.  Establishment of the Effective Date is subject to 
satisfaction of the following conditions: 

(a) The Issuer has approved the reissuance of the Notes for federal income tax 
purposes on the Effective Date, if determined necessary by Bond Counsel. 

(b) All procedural requirements required by the Code necessary to assure the 
tax-exempt status of the Notes as of the Effective Date have been satisfied. 

(c) There shall be delivered to the Lender and the Issuer on the Effective Date 
the following: 

(i) a favorable opinion of Bond Counsel that (I) interest on the Notes 
is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes from and after the 
Effective Date and (II) evidence of satisfaction of any procedural requirements of 
the Code necessary to assure the tax-exempt status of the Notes as of the Effective 
Date; 

(ii) replacement Notes or allonges to the Notes evidencing the new 
annual interest rate applicable to the Notes and the Effective Date; 

38 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 12  
 
 

(iii) any amendments or supplements to the Loan Documents required 
in connection with the amendment of the Notes; and 

(iv) such other documents, certificates, and opinions as are reasonably 
required by the Lender and Bond Counsel. 

(3) The Borrower has paid all the fees and expenses incurred by the Issuer, the 
Lender and Lender participants in conjunction with establishing and documenting the new 
annual interest rate on the Notes. 

(4) Delay in Requests.  Failure or delay on the part of the Lender to demand 
implementation of the Ratio as described in this Section shall not constitute a waiver of the 
Lender's or Borrower's right to demand such implementation of the interest rate change. 

(5) Survival.  Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the 
Borrower under this Agreement, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in 
this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment in full of the Notes 
and the obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

BORROWER'S COVENANTS 

Section 4.1 Indemnity.  The Borrower will, to the extent permitted by law, pay, and 
will protect, indemnify and save the Issuer, the Lender, and their respective officers, agents, and 
employees harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, damages, costs, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses), causes of action, suits, claims, demands and judgments 
of any nature arising from the following: 

(1) any injury to or death of any person or damage to property in or upon the 
Facilities or growing out of or connected with the use, non-use, condition or occupancy of the 
Facilities or a part thereof; 

(2) violation of any agreement or condition of this Agreement, except by the 
Issuer or its assignee; 

(3) violation of any contract, agreement or restriction by the Borrower or LSH 
relating to the Project; 

(4) violation of any law, ordinance or regulation affecting the Facilities or a 
part thereof or the ownership, occupancy or use thereof, or arising out of this Agreement, the 
Note or the transactions contemplated thereby, including any requirements imposed on the 
Lender as a financial institution or any disclosure or registration requirements imposed by any 
federal or state securities law; and 

(5) any statement or information relating to the expenditure of the proceeds of 
the Notes contained in a non-arbitrage certificate or similar document furnished by the Borrower 
to the Issuer which, at the time made, is misleading, untrue or incorrect in any material respect. 

39 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 13  
 
 

Section 4.2 Continuing Existence and Qualification; Transfer.  Throughout the term of 
this Agreement the Borrower and LSH will remain duly qualified to do business as nonprofit 
corporations in Minnesota and will continue to operate as organizations described in Section 
501(c)(3) of the Code whose income is exempt from taxation under Section 501(a) of the Code, 
and the Borrower and LSH will maintain their corporate existence, will not dissolve or otherwise 
dispose of all or substantially all of their assets, and will not consolidate with or merge into 
another corporation or other business entity or permit any other corporation or other business 
entity to consolidate with or merge into it unless (1) the surviving, resulting or transferee 
corporation, or other business entity, as the case may be, shall be a nonprofit corporation 
operating under the laws of the United States, any state or the District of Columbia, and an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code (provided the Project will not constitute 
an unrelated trade or business within the meaning of Section 513(a) of the Code) or a 
governmental unit under Section 145 of the Code; (2) the surviving, resulting or transferee 
corporation, or other business entity, as the case may be, if other than the Borrower, assumes in 
writing all of the obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement, the Mortgage, and the 
Security Agreement, and shall deliver that instrument to the Lender, (3) the surviving, resulting 
or transferee corporation or other business entity, as the case may be, is duly qualified to do 
business in Minnesota, and (4) the Borrower first obtains the written consent of the Lender to 
such merger, transfer, or consolidation, which approval may be granted or withheld by the 
Lender in its reasonable discretion.  At least 60 days before any proposed merger, transfer or 
consolidation would become effective, the Borrower shall deliver to the Lender a written request 
seeking the Lender's approval of such merger, transfer, or consolidation, and shall thereafter 
promptly furnish to the Lender such information pertaining to the proposed merger, transfer, or 
consolidation as the Lender shall request.  If the Lender approves the proposed merger, transfer, 
or consolidation, the surviving, resulting or transferee corporation and other entity referred to in 
this Section 4.2 shall be bound by all of the covenants and agreements of the Borrower herein 
with respect to any further consolidation, merger, sale or transfer.   

Section 4.3 Reports to Governmental Agencies.  The Borrower will furnish to 
agencies of the State of Minnesota, such periodic reports or statements as may be required under 
the Act, or as they may otherwise reasonably require of the Issuer or the Borrower throughout 
the term of this Agreement in connection with the transaction contemplated herein.  Copies of 
such reports will be provided to the Issuer and the Lender. 

Section 4.4 Security for the Loan.  As additional security for the Lender, and to induce 
the Issuer to issue and deliver the Notes, the Borrower agrees to execute and deliver (or cause to 
be executed and delivered) the documents described in Section 3.2 hereof and agrees to meet all 
its obligations under such documents, which documents shall remain in effect until all payments 
required hereunder have been made; and the Borrower will direct Bond Counsel or the Lender to 
cause to be recorded and filed the Mortgage Amendment, financing statements, and such other 
documents requested by Bond Counsel or the Lender, in such places and in such manner as Bond 
Counsel or the Lender deems necessary or desirable to perfect or protect the security interest of 
the Lender in and to the Saint Paul Facility and other collateral referred to in said documents.  
Except as otherwise may be provided in the Mortgage, the Borrower will not further encumber 
the property pledged therein without the Lender's prior written consent. 

40 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 14  
 
 

Section 4.5 Preservation of Tax Exemption. 

(1) The Borrower covenants and agrees that, in order to assure that the interest 
on the Notes shall at all times be free from federal income taxation, the Borrower represents and 
covenants to the Issuer and the Lender that it will comply with the applicable provisions of 
Section 103 and Section 141 through 150 of the Code and as follows: 

(a) The Saint Paul Facility is and will continue to be owned and operated by 
the Borrower and the Lino Lakes Facility will be owned and operated by LSH, and no 
portion of the Facilities is or will be managed by anyone other than the Borrower or a 
governmental entity or an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or 
pursuant to a "qualified management agreement" within the meaning of all pertinent 
provisions of law, including all relevant provisions of the Code and regulations, rulings 
and revenue procedures thereunder, including Revenue Procedure 2017-13. 

(b) The Facilities will not be used by the Borrower or LSH in an unrelated 
trade or business, determined by the application of Section 513(a) of the Code. 

(c) No more than five percent (5%) of the net proceeds of the Notes is to be 
used for any private business use as defined in Section 141(b)(6) of the Code. 

(d) The payment of the principal of, or interest on, no more than five percent 
(5%) of the net proceeds of the Notes is (under the terms of the Notes or any underlying 
arrangement) directly or indirectly (a) secured by any interest in (i) property used or to be 
used for a private business use, or (ii) payments in respect of such property, or (b) to be 
derived from payments (whether or not to the Issuer) in respect of property, or borrowed 
money, used or to be used for a private business use. 

(e) The aggregate authorized face amount of the Notes (when increased by 
any outstanding tax-exempt "qualified 501(c)(3) bonds" issued prior to 1997, other than 
"qualified hospital bonds," of the Borrower, or any organization with which the Borrower 
is under common management or control and is a test period beneficiary determined in 
accordance with Section 145(b) of the Code) does not exceed $150,000,000 or, 
alternatively, at least 95% of the net proceeds of the Note will be used for capital 
expenditures. 

(f) The weighted average maturity of the Notes will not exceed the estimated 
economic life of the Facilities by more than twenty percent (20%), all within the meaning 
of Section 147(b) of the Code. 

(g) While the Notes remain outstanding, no portion of the proceeds of the 
Notes will be used to provide any airplane, skybox or other private luxury box, any 
facility primarily used for gambling, or a store, the principal business of which is the sale 
of alcoholic beverages for consumption off premises. 

(h) Not more than 2% of the proceeds of the Notes will be used to finance 
Issuance Expenses. 

41 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 15  
 
 

(i) The Borrower agrees it will not use the proceeds of the Notes in such a 
manner as to cause the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 
of the Code and applicable Treasury Regulations.  The Borrower shall: 

(i) maintain records identifying all "gross proceeds" and "replacement 
proceeds" (as defined in Section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code attributable to the 
Notes, the yield at which such gross proceeds are invested, any arbitrage profit 
derived therefrom (earnings in excess of the yield on the Notes) and any earnings 
derived from the investment of such arbitrage profit; 

(ii) make, or cause to be made as of the end of each fifth bond year, 
the annual determinations of the amount, if any, of excess arbitrage required to be 
paid to the United States, unless the Borrower obtains an Opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that such calculations need not be made (the "Rebate 
Amount"); 

(iii) pay, or cause to be paid, to the United States at least once every 
fifth bond year the amount, if any, which is required to be paid to the United 
States, including the last installment which shall be made no later than 60 days 
after the day on which the Notes are paid in full; 

(iv) not invest, or permit to be invested, "gross proceeds" of the Notes 
in any acquired non-purpose obligations so as to deflect arbitrage otherwise 
payable to the United States as a "prohibited payment" to a third party; and 

(v) if applicable, retain all records of the determination of the 
foregoing amounts until six (6) years after the Notes have been fully paid. 

Unless the Opinion of Bond Counsel described in (ii) above is provided, the 
Borrower agrees that, in order to comply with this paragraph (i), it shall determine the 
Rebate Amount within 30 days after each fifth year of the anniversary of the Closing and 
upon payment in full of the Notes; upon request, the Borrower shall furnish the Lender a 
certificate showing how such calculation was made. 

(j) The Borrower and LSH have not leased, sold, assigned, granted or 
conveyed and will not lease, sell, assign, grant or convey all or any portion of the 
Facilities or any interest therein to the United States or any agency or instrumentality 
thereof within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code. 

(k) In addition to the Notes, no other obligations have been or will be issued 
under Section 103 of the Code which are sold at substantially the same time as the Notes 
pursuant to a common plan of marketing and at substantially the same rate of interest as 
the Notes and which are payable in whole or part by the Borrower or otherwise have with 
the Notes any common or pooled security for the payment of debt service thereon, or 
which are otherwise treated as the same "issue of obligations" as the Notes as described 
in Treasury Regulations Section 1.150-(1)(c)(1). 

42 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 16  
 
 

(l) No proceeds of the Notes shall be invested in investments which cause the 
Notes to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.  If at 
any time the moneys in such funds exceed, within the meaning of Section 149(b)(3)(B) of 
the Code, (i) amounts invested for an initial temporary period until the moneys are 
needed for the purpose for which the Notes were issued, (ii) investments of a bona fide 
debt service fund, and (iii) investments of a reserve which meet the requirement of 
Section 148(d) of the Code, such excess moneys shall be invested in only those 
investments, which are (A) obligations issued by the United States Treasury, (B) other 
investments permitted under regulations, or (C) obligations which are (a) not issued by, 
or guaranteed by, or insured by, the United States or any agency or instrumentality 
thereof or (b) not federally insured deposits or accounts, all within the meaning of 
Section 149(b) of the Code.  

(m) Not otherwise use proceeds of the Notes, or take or fail to take any action 
within its control, the effect of which would be to impair the exemption of interest on the 
Notes from federal income taxation. 

(n) Maintain such written procedures as appropriate and applicable to ensure 
Borrower's principal responsibility for compliance with the post-issuance requirements 
necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes, including 
requirements that must be continually monitored, including (i) monitoring the investment 
(pending expenditure) of Note proceeds (and keep detailed records thereof) in order to 
assure compliance with the arbitrage requirements applicable to the Notes, (ii) monitoring 
the expenditures of Note proceeds (and keep detailed records thereof), (iii) monitoring 
the use of the Facilities in order to ensure that the Notes continue to qualify as a qualified 
501(c)(3) bond within the meaning of Section 145 of the Code, (iv) periodically 
consulting with Bond Counsel with respect to arbitrage issues and compliance, and 
(v) consulting with Bond Counsel as necessary to determine whether, and to what extent, 
any change in the use or purpose of the financed facility will require any remedial action 
under the relevant Treasury Regulations.   

(2) For the purpose of this Section, a "Determination of Taxability" shall 
mean the issuance of a statutory notice of deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service, or a ruling 
of the National Office or any District Office of the Internal Revenue Service, or a final decision 
of a court of competent jurisdiction, or a change in any applicable federal statute, which holds or 
provides in effect that all of the interest payable on the Notes is includible, for federal income tax 
purposes under Section 103 of the Code, in the gross income of the Lender or any other holder or 
prior holder of the Notes for any reason, if the period, if any, for contest or appeal of such action, 
ruling or decision by the Borrower or the Lender or any other interested party has expired 
without any such contest or appeal having been properly instituted by the Lender, the Borrower 
or any other interested party.  The expenses of any such contest shall be paid by the party 
initiating the contest, and neither the Lender nor the Borrower shall be required to contest or 
appeal any Determination of Taxability.  The "Date of Taxability" shall mean that point in time, 
as specified in the determination, ruling, order, or decision, that the interest payable on the Notes 
becomes includible in the gross income of the Lender or any other holder or prior holder of the 
Notes, as the case may be, for federal income tax purposes. 

43 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 17  
 
 

(3) If the Borrower receives a Determination of Taxability it will promptly 
give notice of such Determination of Taxability to the Issuer and the Lender and the Notes shall 
convert to a taxable obligation effective as of the Date of Taxability. The interest rate for interest 
accruing from the Date of Taxability shall be adjusted to the "Taxable Rate" (as defined in the 
Notes) on the date of the Determination of Taxability and the Borrower shall pay any interest 
accruing from the Date of Taxability which is retroactively due as a result of the interest rate 
adjustment on the next payment date along with regularly scheduled principal payment and 
interest accruing from the previous payment date at the Taxable Rate, as provided in the Notes. 

Section 4.6 Lease or Sale of Facilities.  The Borrower and LSH shall not lease, sell, 
convey or otherwise transfer the Facilities in whole or part, without first securing the written 
consent of the Lender with respect to the Saint Paul Facility or notifying the Lender with respect 
to the Lino Lakes Facility, provided that in no event shall such lease, transfer, assignment or sale 
be permitted if the effect thereof would otherwise be to impair the validity or the tax exempt 
status of the Notes, nor shall any such transaction release the Borrower of any of its obligations 
under this Agreement, unless the Saint Paul Facility has been conveyed in whole and such 
conveyance has been approved in writing by the Lender.  The Borrower shall promptly notify the 
Issuer of any such sale, transfer, assignment, or lease.   

Section 4.7 Facilities Operation and Maintenance Expenses; Insurance.  The Borrower 
shall pay or cause to be paid all expenses of the operation and maintenance of the Saint Paul 
Facility including, but without limitation, all taxes and special assessments levied upon or with 
respect to the Saint Paul Facility and payable during the term of this Agreement.  The Borrower 
shall keep or cause to be kept the Saint Paul Facility in good working order and condition, 
subject to ordinary wear and tear.  The Saint Paul Facility shall not be used for purposes which 
violate any Federal, State or other laws prohibiting discrimination in access or employment 
based on race, creed, sex, sexual orientation, handicap, ethnic origin, age or marital status.  The 
Borrower shall purchase and maintain or cause to be purchased and maintained such insurance as 
will protect the Borrower against risk of loss or damage to its property and against claims which 
may arise from its maintenance and use of its property, including all operations conducted in 
connection therewith, or from any other activities of the Borrower, in amounts and with coverage 
not less than is reasonable and customary for a senior housing facility comparable to the 
Borrower. 

Section 4.8 Notification of Changes.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it will 
promptly notify the Lender of: 

(1) any litigation which might affect the Borrower or any of its properties, 
where the amount in dispute, singly or in the aggregate, exceeds $50,000 and is not covered by 
insurance, and any proceedings materially affecting the Borrower or its properties by or before 
any governmental or regulatory authority; 

(2) the occurrence of any Event of Default under this Agreement or under any 
other loan agreement, debenture, notes, purchase agreement or any other agreement providing 
for the borrowing of money by the Borrower or any event of which the Borrower has knowledge 
and which, with the passage of time or giving of notice, or both, would constitute an Event of 

44 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 18  
 
 

Default under this Agreement or under such other agreements or obligations whether owing to 
the Lender or other lenders; and 

(3) any material adverse change in the operations, business, properties, assets 
or conditions, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower. 

Section 4.9 Financial Covenants.  The Borrower will:   

(a) Maintain a Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.15 to 1.00, measured 
annually at the end of each Fiscal Year based on audited financial statements for such 
Fiscal Year; 

(b) Deliver to the Lender consolidated audited financial statements of the sole 
member or parent of the Borrower, which shall include the Borrower, within 120 days of 
each Fiscal Year end; 

(c) Deliver to the Lender internally prepared financial statements of the 
Borrower within 30 days of the end of each fiscal quarter;  

(d) Deliver to the Lender an annual compliance certificate substantially in the 
form of Exhibit A within 120 days of the end of each Fiscal Year; 

(e) Maintain its main depository and checking relationship with the Lender 
for the term of the Notes; and 

(f) Deliver to the Lender internally prepared financial statements within 60 
days of the end of such Fiscal Year; 

(g) Such other reports and financial information as Lender may, from time to 
time, reasonably request. 

Section 4.10 Access.  The Borrower grants to the Lender and to the Lender's agents 
access to the Saint Paul Facility at any reasonable time during normal business hours in order to 
inspect the Saint Paul Facility subject to reasonable prior notice. 

Section 4.11 Access to Books and Inspection.  The Borrower shall keep proper books 
of record and accounts with respect to the use and operation of the Saint Paul Facility, and, 
subject to any privacy laws applicable to Borrower, upon request of the Lender or the Issuer, 
provide any duly authorized representative of the Lender or the Issuer access during normal 
business hours to, and permit such representative to examine, copy or make extracts from, or 
audit any and all books, records and documents of the Borrower relating to the Project, or the 
Borrower's affairs and to inspect any of its facilities and properties. (The Lender or the Issuer 
shall be permitted to disclose the information contained therein to its legal counsel, its 
independent public accountants, any participating lenders, or in connection with any action to 
collect any indebtedness of the Borrower or to enforce this Agreement and the documents related 
hereto, or as otherwise permitted or required by law). 

45 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 19  
 
 

Section 4.12 IRS Audit Expenses.  The Borrower agrees to pay any reasonable costs 
incurred by the Issuer or the Lender as a result of the Issuer's or the Lender's compliance with an 
audit, random or otherwise, by the Internal Revenue Service, the Minnesota Department of 
Revenue, the Office of the State Auditor, or any other governmental entity with respect to the 
Notes or the Project, or the Facilities. 

Section 4.13 Matters Related to Management Contracts.  The manager under any 
management contract for the management of the Facilities shall be an organization recognized as 
exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or such management contract shall comply with 
Department of Treasury Revenue Procedure 2017-13 (and any amended or successor rule) and in 
particular with one of the "safe harbor" limitations thereof. 

Section 4.14 Replacement Reserve.  On or before January 1, 2019, the Borrower shall 
deposit into a fund held at the Lender (the "Replacement Reserve Fund") an amount equal to 
$24,000.  The Borrower may draw amounts from the Replacement Reserve Fund to be used for 
any capital repair or improvements to the Saint Paul Facility.  Upon any such withdrawal, the 
Borrower shall replenish such amount to the Replacement Reserve Fund within the succeeding 
twelve-month period. 

  

46 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 20  
 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

PREPAYMENT OF LOAN 

Section 5.1 Prepayment at Option of Borrower.  The Borrower may, at its option, 
prepay the Loan, in whole or in part, on any date, by paying the principal amount to be prepaid 
and accrued interest thereon, with such penalty or premium then due as set forth in the Notes  
Any partial prepayment shall be applied in the order described in Paragraph 7 of the Notes. At 
the date fixed for prepayment, funds shall be paid to the Lender at its registered address 
appearing on the Notes.  In the event the Borrower elects to prepay the Loan, the Borrower shall 
cause to be given in the name of the Issuer notice of prepayment of the Note to the Lender by 
first-class mail, addressed to the Lender at its registered address, not less than sixty (60) days 
prior to the date fixed for prepayment, provided that the Lender may waive or provide alternative 
reasonable notice requirements, and shall pay the prepayment price when due to the Lender. The 
Issuer hereby authorizes the Borrower to give mailed notice of prepayment and, if required by 
law, published notice of prepayment of the Notes in the name of the Issuer, from time to time. 

  

47 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 21  
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 6.1 Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events is an Event of 
Default under this Agreement: 

(1) If the Borrower shall fail to make (a) any payments required under 
Section 3.4 of this Agreement on the date due as set forth in the Notes, or (b) any other payment 
due under this Agreement on or before the date that the payment is due and such default 
continues for ten (10) days after receiving written notice of such failure from Lender. 

(2) If the Borrower shall fail to observe and perform any other covenant, 
condition or agreement on its part under this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after 
written notice, specifying such default and requesting that it be remedied, given to the Borrower 
by the Issuer or the Lender, unless the default does not consist of the non-payment of money and 
cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days then for such longer period as may be 
reasonably necessary to remedy such default provided that the Borrower is proceeding with 
reasonable diligence to remedy the same, and provided that such longer period does not place the 
Project at material risk. 

(3) If the Borrower shall file a petition in bankruptcy or for reorganization or 
for an arrangement pursuant to any present or future federal bankruptcy act or under any similar 
federal or state law, shall consent to the entry of an order for relief pursuant to any present or 
future federal bankruptcy act or under any similar federal or state law, or shall make an 
assignment for the benefit of its creditors or shall admit in writing its inability to pay its debts 
generally as they become due, or if a petition or answer proposing the entry of an order for relief 
of the Borrower under any present or future federal bankruptcy act or any similar federal or state 
law shall be filed in any court and such petition or answer shall not be discharged or denied 
within ninety (90) days after the filing thereof, or a receiver, trustee or liquidator of the Borrower 
of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, or of the Project shall be appointed in any 
proceeding brought against the Borrower and shall not be discharged within ninety (90) days 
after such appointment or if the Borrower shall consent to or acquiesce in such appointment, or if 
the estate or interest of the Borrower in the Facilities or a part thereof shall be levied upon or 
attached in any proceeding and such process shall not be vacated or discharged within ninety 
(90) days after such levy or attachment; or if the Borrower shall be dissolved or liquidated or 
shall be merged with or is acquired by another business entity in violation of Section 4.2. 

(4) If the articles of incorporation of the Borrower shall expire or be annulled; 
or if the Borrower shall be dissolved (other than administratively dissolved by the Minnesota 
Secretary of State, so long as the Borrower is reinstated within one year) or liquidated (other than 
when a new entity assumes the obligations of the Borrower under the conditions permitting such 
action contained in Section 4.2). 

(5) If any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or by an 
officer or representative of the Borrower in any document or certificate furnished the Lender or 

48 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 22  
 
 

the Issuer in connection herewith or therewith or pursuant hereto or thereto, shall prove at any 
time to be, in any material respect, incorrect or misleading as of the date made. 

(6) If the Borrower shall default or fail to perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part under any of the Security Agreement, the Mortgage, or any other security 
document securing the Notes, and such failure continues beyond the period set forth in such 
documents during which the Borrower may cure the default. 

(7) Any state or federal tax lien shall be filed against the Borrower and shall 
remain undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days. 

(8) All or any portion of the Land or the Saint Paul Facility, or the legal, 
equitable or any other interest therein, shall be sold, transferred, assigned, leased, further 
encumbered (except as permitted herein or in the Mortgage) or otherwise disposed of, unless the 
prior written consent of the Lender is first obtained; provided that nothing in this Agreement 
prohibits the Borrower from entering into an agreement for sale of the Land where the Loan and 
all other amounts due under this Agreement and the other documents evidencing the Loan will 
be paid in full at the closing of the sale. 

Section 6.2 Remedies.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 6.1 
hereof shall have happened and be subsisting, any one or more of the following remedial steps to 
the extent permitted by law may be taken by the Issuer with the prior written consent of the 
Lender or by the Lender itself: 

(1) The Lender's obligation to advance any further amounts under the Notes 
shall terminate.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other 
instrument evidencing or securing the Loan, the Lender may exercise the foregoing remedy upon 
the occurrence of an event that would constitute such an Event of Default but for the requirement 
that notice be given or that a period of grace or time elapse. 

(2) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender, or the Lender may 
declare all installments of the Loan (being an amount equal to that necessary to pay in full the 
Principal Balance plus accrued interest thereon and any premium of the Notes assuming 
acceleration of the Notes under the terms thereof and to pay all other indebtedness thereunder) to 
be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and 
payable by the Borrower. 

(3) [Reserved.] 

(4) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender (except as otherwise 
provided in Section 7.9 herein), or the Lender (in either case at no expense to the Issuer) may 
take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or appropriate to collect the 
amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this Agreement, or to enforce performance 
and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the Borrower under this Agreement. 

(5) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender, or the Lender may 
exercise any other remedy permitted under any other instrument evidencing or securing the Loan 
including, without limitation, the Mortgage and the Security Agreement. 

49 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 23  
 
 

(6) In addition to the remedies set forth in this Agreement, upon the 
occurrence of any Event of Default and thereafter while the same be continuing, the Borrower 
hereby irrevocably authorizes the Lender to set off all sums owing by the Borrower to the Lender 
against all deposits and credits of the Borrower with, and any and all claims of the Borrower 
against, the Lender. 

Section 6.3 Disposition of Funds.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
in this Agreement, any amounts collected pursuant to action taken under Section 6.2 hereof, 
except for any amounts collected solely for the benefit of the Issuer under any of the provisions 
set forth in Section 7.9, shall, after deducting (a) all reasonable expenses incurred in collecting 
the same and (b) then accrued interest on the Notes, the remainder of such amounts, if any, be 
applied as a prepayment of the Notes in accordance with Section 5.1. 

Section 6.4 Manner of Exercise.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the 
Issuer or the Lender is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but 
each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy 
given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity by statute.  No delay 
or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right 
or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be 
exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient.  In order to entitle the 
Issuer or the Lender to exercise any remedy reserved to either of them in this Article, it shall not 
be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be herein expressly required. 

Section 6.5 Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  In the event the Borrower should default 
under any of the provisions of this Agreement and the Issuer or the Lender should employ 
attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of amounts due hereunder or the enforcement 
of performance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the Borrower, the Borrower will on 
demand pay to the Issuer or the Lender the reasonable fees and costs of such attorneys and such 
other expenses so incurred. 

Section 6.6 Effect of Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this Agreement 
should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be 
limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach 
hereunder.  The Lender shall not be deemed, by any act of omission or commission, to have 
waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the 
Lender and, then only to the extent specifically set forth in the writing. A waiver with reference 
to one event shall not be construed as continuing or as a bar to or waiver of any right or remedy 
as to a subsequent event. 

Section 6.7 Default Rate.  Following an Event of Default hereunder, and for so long as 
such Event of Default shall continue, the obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall bear 
interest at an annual rate equal to 4% per annum over the interest rate on the Notes that would 
otherwise be applicable (the "Default Rate"), for so long as such Event of Default continues. 

50 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 24  
 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

GENERAL 

Section 7.1 Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall 
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or received by certified or 
registered United States mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, with proper address as 
indicated below.  The Issuer, the Borrower, and the Lender may, by written notice given by each 
to the others, designate any address or addresses to which notices, certificates or other 
communications to them shall be sent when required as contemplated by this Agreement.  Until 
otherwise provided by the respective parties, all notices, certificates and communications to each 
of them shall be addressed as follows: 

To the Issuer: City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota 
2077 Larpenteur Ave. W. 
Falcon Heights, MN 55113-5551 
Attn:  City Administrator 
 

To the Borrower: Heritage Apartments, Inc.  
1415 Almond Ave. 
St. Paul, MN 55108 
Attn:  Chief Financial Officer 

To the Lender: Bremer Bank, National Association 
225 S. Sixth Street, Suite 200 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
Attn:  David Borden 

Section 7.2 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 
binding upon the Issuer and the Borrower and their respective successors and assigns. 

Section 7.3 Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held 
invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate 
or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

Section 7.4 Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  Except as otherwise provided 
in this Agreement or in the Resolution, subsequent to the Closing date and before the Notes are 
satisfied and discharged in accordance with their terms, this Agreement may not be effectively 
amended, changed, modified, altered, or terminated without the prior written consent of the 
Lender. 

Section 7.5 Execution Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed 
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but 
one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.6 Limitation of Issuer's Liability.  It is understood and agreed by the 
Borrower and the Lender that no covenant of the Issuer herein shall give rise to a pecuniary 

51 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 25  
 
 

liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general credit, or taxing powers.  It is further 
understood and agreed by the Borrower and the Lender that the Issuer shall incur no pecuniary 
liability hereunder, and shall not be liable for any expenses related hereto, including 
administrative expenses and fees and disbursements of the Issuer's attorney, Bond Counsel and 
fiscal consultant retained in connection therewith, all of which expenses the Borrower agrees to 
pay. 

Section 7.7 Issuer's and Host Cities' Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  If, notwithstanding 
the provisions of Section 7.6 hereof, the Issuer incurs any expense, or suffers any losses, claims 
or damages, or incurs any liabilities in connection with the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement, the Borrower will indemnify and hold harmless the Issuer from the same and will 
reimburse the Issuer for any reasonable legal or other expenses incurred by the Issuer in relation 
thereto.  The Borrower shall also reimburse the Issuer and the Host Cities for all other costs, fees, 
and expenses, including without limitation reasonable attorneys' fees, paid or incurred by the 
Issuer or the Host Cities in connection with (i) the discussion, negotiation, preparation, approval, 
execution and delivery of the Joint Powers Agreement, this Agreement, the Notes, the Pledge 
Agreement and the documents and instruments related hereto or thereto; (ii) any amendments or 
modifications hereto or to the Joint Powers Agreement, the Notes, the Pledge Agreement and any 
document, instrument or agreement related hereto or thereto, and the discussion, negotiation, 
preparation, approval, execution and delivery of any and all documents necessary or desirable to 
effect such amendments or modifications; and (iii) the enforcement by the Issuer during the term 
hereof or thereafter of any of the rights or remedies of the Issuer hereunder or under the Notes, 
the Pledge Agreement or any document, instrument or agreement related hereto or thereto, 
including, without limitation, costs and expenses of collection in the Event of Default, whether 
or not suit is filed with respect thereto. 

Section 7.8 Release.  The Borrower hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Issuer 
shall not be liable to the Borrower, and hereby releases and discharges the Issuer from any 
liability, for any and all losses, costs, expenses (including attorneys' fees), damages, judgments, 
claims and causes of action, paid, incurred or sustained by the Borrower as a result of or relating 
to any action, or failure or refusal to act, on the part of the Lender with respect to this Agreement 
or the documents and transactions related hereto or contemplated hereby, including, without 
limitation, the exercise by the Lender of any of its rights or remedies pursuant to Article VI, the 
Notes, the Pledge Agreement, the Mortgage, or any collateral security documents.  The 
Borrower's release of the Issuer pursuant to the preceding sentence does not extend to the Lender 
following the assignment of the Issuer's rights to the Lender pursuant to the Pledge Agreement. 

Section 7.9 Pledge and Assignment by Issuer and Survival of Obligations.  The Issuer 
may pledge and assign its rights under this Agreement and any related documents to the Lender 
to secure payment of the principal of and interest and premium, if any, on the Notes, conditioned 
upon the Lender's assumption of the Issuer's and Lender's obligations to the Borrower hereunder, 
except for the Issuer's obligations in connection with its representations in Section 2.1 hereof, 
which are not being assumed, but any such assignment shall not operate to limit or otherwise 
affect the following provisions hereof to the extent that they run to the Issuer from the Borrower 
to which extent they shall survive any such assignment: 

52 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 26  
 
 

Section 3.5 Section 6.5 
Section 4.1 Section 7.6 
Section 4.3 Section 7.7 
Section 4.11 Section 7.8 
Section 4.12  

 
Upon any such pledge and assignment, the provisions immediately above running to the Issuer 
from the Borrower for the Issuer's benefit shall run jointly and severally to the Issuer and the 
Lender (if appropriate), provided that the Issuer shall have the right to enforce any retained rights 
without the approval of the Lender but only upon prior written notice to the Lender and if the 
Lender is not enforcing such rights in a manner to protect the Issuer or is otherwise taking action 
with respect thereto that brings adverse consequences to the Issuer.  The obligations of the 
Borrower running to the Issuer and the Lender for the purpose of preserving the tax exempt 
status of the Notes or otherwise for the Issuer's benefit under the foregoing Sections shall survive 
repayment of the Notes and interest thereon.  All other agreements, representations and 
warranties made in this Agreement shall survive the execution of this Agreement and the making 
of the Loan, and shall continue until the Lender receives payment in full of all indebtedness of 
the Borrower incurred under this Agreement. 

Section 7.10 Required Approvals.  Consents and approvals required by this Agreement 
to be obtained from the Borrower or the Issuer shall be in writing and shall not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed. 

Section 7.11 Termination Upon Retirement of Notes.  At any time when no Principal 
Balance on either of the Notes remains outstanding, and arrangements satisfactory to the Lender 
and the Issuer have been made for the discharge of all other accrued and contingent liabilities, if 
any, under this Agreement, this Agreement shall terminate, except as otherwise expressly 
provided in Section 7.9 or otherwise herein or in a separate writing signed by the Borrower, the 
Issuer, and the Lender. 

Section 7.12 Expenses of Lender.  Upon Closing, the Borrower shall pay the Lender a 
loan origination fee equal to [$11,750].  The Borrower shall also pay or reimburse the Lender for 
any and all costs and expenses, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, paid or 
incurred by the Lender in connection with (i) review, negotiation, preparation, and approval of 
this Agreement and any other document or agreement related hereto or thereto or the transactions 
contemplated hereby;  (ii) the review, negotiation, preparation, and approval of any amendments, 
modifications or extensions to any of the foregoing documents, instruments or agreements, and 
the preparation and consummation of any and all documents necessary or desirable to effect such 
amendments, modifications or extensions; (iii) any appraisals, environmental assessments, 
surveys, or other reports relating to the Land which the Lender is authorized to seek, order or 
prepare pursuant to this Agreement or any other instrument evidencing or securing the Loan or is 
required to seek, order or prepare pursuant either to applicable laws or regulations or the Lender's 
policies or procedures generally applicable to commercial mortgage loans by the Lender;  (iv) 
any reasonable fees or costs charged to the Lender by an architect or other design or inspection 
professional engaged by the Lender to, among other things, inspect the construction of any 
approved improvements to the Land, or verify compliance thereof with applicable building and 
zoning laws;  (v) all title insurance premiums, filing and recording fees and mortgage registration 

53 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 27  
 
 

tax paid or payable in connection with the consummation of the transaction contemplated 
hereby;  and (vi) the enforcement by the Lender during the term hereof or thereafter of any of the 
rights or remedies of the Lender under any of the foregoing documents, instruments or 
agreements or under applicable law, whether or not suit is filed with respect thereto (attorneys' 
fees and costs are limited to reasonable fees and costs). 

Section 7.13 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the 
parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior 
letters, proposals, contracts and understandings between the parties with respect to the same, 
including, but not limited to, any proposal or commitment letter, and such letters, proposals, 
contracts and understandings are hereby terminated.  

Section 7.14 Further Assurances.  At any time and from time to time, upon request by 
the Lender, the Borrower will make, execute and deliver or cause to be made, executed and 
delivered, to the Lender, any and all other further instruments, certificates and other documents 
as may, in the reasonable opinion of the Lender, be necessary or desirable in order to effectuate, 
complete, secure, or perfect, or to continue and preserve, the obligations of the Borrower 
hereunder and under any of the other documents related to the Loan.  Upon any failure by the 
Borrower so to do after ten (10) days written notice from the Lender, the Lender may make, 
execute and record any and all such instruments, certificates and documents for and in the name 
of the Borrower at the Borrower's expense and the Borrower hereby irrevocably appoints the 
Lender its agent and attorney-in-fact of the Borrower so to do.  The Borrower hereby 
understands, acknowledges and agrees that the Lender may prepare and file such UCC financing 
statements or similar instruments as may be necessary to perfect the Lender's security interest in 
any real or personal property pledged by the Borrower as security for the Loan. 

Section 7.15 Non-Responsibility.  Neither the Issuer nor the Lender assumes liability 
for the sufficiency of Loan proceeds to complete the Project. 

54 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 S-1  
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer and the Borrower have caused this Agreement to 
be executed in their respective names all as of the date first above written. 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

By ____________________________________ 
     Mayor 

By ____________________________________ 
     City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature page to Loan Agreement between the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota and 
Heritage Apartments, Inc.] 

55 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 S-2  
 
 

Heritage Apartments, Inc.  

By  ____________________________________ 

Its  ___________________________________ 

 

Acknowledged by Lyngblomsten Senior 
Housing, Inc.  

By  ____________________________________ 

Its  ____________________________________ 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Loan Agreement between the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota and 
Heritage Apartments, Inc.  

 

56 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 A-1  
US.120937318.02 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, certifies as follows to Bremer Bank, National Association (the 
"Lender"), with reference to that certain Loan Agreement dated as of December 20, 2018 (the 
"Loan Agreement") between Heritage Apartments, Inc.  (the "Borrower") and the City of Falcon 
Heights, Minnesota (the "Issuer") (any capitalized terms used herein and not defined shall have 
its respective meaning as set forth in the Loan Agreement): 

1. The undersigned has made a review of all activities of the Borrower during the 
preceding fiscal year ended ____________, 20__, for the purpose of determining whether or not 
the Borrower has complied with all of the terms, provisions and conditions of the Loan 
Agreement. 

2. To the best of the undersigned's knowledge, the Borrower has kept, observed, 
performed and fulfilled each and every covenant, provision and condition in the Loan Agreement 
(including, without limitation, those financial covenants set forth in Article IV of the Loan 
Agreement as calculated below) on their part to be performed and no Event of Default or Default 
has occurred. 

3. Calculation of Financial Covenants: 

(a) Debt Service Coverage Ratio 
Calculation: 
Sum of: 
(a) Change in Unrestricted Net Assets 
      (net of unrealized gains or losses on investments)   
(b) Plus depreciation expense   
(c) Plus amortization and other non-cash expenses   
(d) Plus interest expense   
(e) Plus [equity contributions]   
(f) Less [dividends and distributions of cash or assets]   
Total   
Divided by the sum of: 
(x) [Obligations to pay principal during such fiscal year ended]   
(y) [Plus interest expense during such fiscal year ended]   

Total   
Debt Service Coverage Ratio:   to 1.00 
Covenant Requirement: 1.15 to 1.00 

Compliance?     (circle one): YES NO 
 

57 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 A-2  
US.120937318.02 
 

All amounts and calculations set forth in this Certificate are accurate and complete in all 
material respects and are made in accordance with the Loan Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Borrower has executed and delivered this Certificate as of 
the ________ day of _______________, 20___. 

HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC.  
 
 
By  ____________________________________ 
Name  _________________________________ 
Title  __________________________________ 

58 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 A-1  
US.120937318.02 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

FORM OF DISBURSEMENT REQUEST 
 

 
 $   Requisition No.   
 

__________, 201_ 
 
 
 

Bremer Bank, National Association 
225 South Sixth Street, Suite 200 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

On behalf of Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the 
"Borrower"), I hereby requisition from the funds representing the proceeds of the $3,000,000 
City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Note, Series 2018A 
(Heritage Apartments Project) (the "Note"), issued by the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the 
"Issuer"), and dated December 20, 2018, which funds are to be advanced by Bremer Bank, 
National Association (the "Lender"), under the Loan Agreement, dated as of December 20, 2018 
(the "Loan Agreement") between the Issuer and the Borrower, the sum of 
$____________________. 

I hereby certify that (a) the amount set forth above was incurred by the Borrower or a 
“Related Organization” (as defined below) in connection with the Project (defined to in the Loan 
Agreement), is a proper charge against the Project Costs (as defined in the Loan Agreement), and 
has not been the basis for any prior requisition which has been paid; (b) the Borrower has not 
received written notice of any lien, right to lien or attachment upon, or claim affecting the right 
of any payee to receive payment of, any of the money payable under this requisition to any of the 
persons, firms or corporations named herein, or if any notice of any such lien, attachment or 
claim has been received such lien, attachment or claim has been released or discharged or will be 
released or discharged upon payment of this requisition; (c) this requisition contains no items 
representing payment on account of any retained percentages which the Borrower or Related 
Organization is entitled to retain at this date; (d) subject to the last sentence of this paragraph, the 
payment of this requisition will not result in (i) less than substantially all (95% or more) of the 
proceeds of the Note to be expended under this requisition and under all prior requisitions having 
been used for the acquisition and installation of real property or property of a character subject to 
the allowance for depreciation under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
"Code") or (ii) more than 2% of the proceeds of the Note having been used to pay for issuance 
costs within the meaning of Section 147(g)(1) of the Code; and (e) no "Event of Default" (as 
defined in the Loan Agreement), or event which after notice or lapse of time or both would 
constitute such an "Event of Default" has occurred and not been waived.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the undersigned may requisition to pay issuance costs with respect to the Note at any 
time and from time to time, so long as such requisition, together with all prior requisitions, do 

59 of 208



11220237v3 
 

 

 A-2  
US.120937318.02 
 

not include amounts to pay issuance costs that exceed in total 2% of the Note Proceeds expected 
to be available to pay Project Costs. 

Capitalized terms used in this requisition and certificate and not defined herein shall have 
the meanings assigned thereto in the Loan Agreement.  “Related Organization” means any 
corporation, foundation, joint venture or partnership related to the Borrower either as a parent, 
subsidiary, or brother/sister or is under common control with the Borrower and that is recognized 
as an organization described in Code Section 501(c)(3). 

The following paragraph is to be completed when any requisition and certificate includes 
any item for payment for labor or to contractors, builders or materialmen. 

I hereby certify that insofar as the amount covered by the above requisition includes 
payments to be made for labor or to contractors, builders or materialmen, including materials or 
supplies, in connection with the acquisition of the Project, (i) all obligations to make such 
payment have been properly incurred, (ii) any such labor was actually performed and any such 
materials or supplies were actually furnished or installed in or about the Project and are a proper 
charge against the Project Costs, and (iii) such materials or supplies either are not subject to any 
lien or security interest or, if the same are subject, such lien or security interest will be released 
or discharged upon payment of this requisition. 

 

_______________________________________ 
Borrower Representative 
 
 
 

APPROVED this ____ day of __________, _____. 

 

BREMER BANK, NATIONAL 
      ASSOCIATION, as Lender 

By:   
Name:   
Title:   

 

60 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF RAMSEY 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2018B 
(Heritage Apartments Project) 

Date:  December 20, 2018 $[1,700,000] 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, (the "City") hereby 
promises to pay to the order of Bremer Bank, National Association, a national banking 
association, in Minneapolis, Minnesota, its successors or registered assigns (the "Lender"), from 
the source and in the manner hereinafter provided, the principal sum of [ONE MILLION 
SEVEN HUNDRED THOUSAND] DOLLARS ($[1,700,000]), or so much thereof as has been 
advanced and remains unpaid from time to time (the "Principal Balance"), with interest thereon 
from the date hereof until paid or otherwise discharged as set forth in Paragraph 1 below, in any 
coin or currency which at the time or times of payment is legal tender for the payment of public 
or private debts in the United States of America, in accordance with the terms hereinafter set 
forth. 

1. Commencing on the date of this Note and continuing through December 1, 2028 
(the "Adjustment Date") interest shall accrue on the outstanding Principal Balance at the initial 
rate of ____ % per annum (the "Initial Rate"). 

On the Adjustment Date, through December 1, 2038 (the "Final Maturity Date"), the 
interest rate on this Note will be adjusted to a rate per annum equal to (a) the sum of (i) 2.25% 
and (ii) the then current rate of the 10-Year Treasury Rate as reported by the Federal Reserve for 
the preceding month (b) multiplied by 0.79 (the "Adjusted Rate").  Except in the event of a 
Determination of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, the annual rate of interest 
payable hereunder shall not be less than the Initial Rate nor greater than 3.0 % above the Initial 
Rate during the term of this Note.  All such adjustments to the interest rate shall be made and 
become effective as of the Adjustment Date and the interest rate as adjusted shall remain in 
effect through and including the day immediately preceding the Final Maturity Date, as 
applicable. 

As used herein, "10-Year Treasury Rate" means the published monthly average yield on 
United States Treasury Notes adjusted to a constant maturity of ten years for the most recent 
month available as of the Adjustment Date, as published and made available by the Federal 
Reserve Board pursuant to its Federal Reserve Statistical Release (H.15(519)) (the "Index"); 
provided, however, that in the event that such Index is no longer published or otherwise made 
available, the Index shall be a substantially comparable index selected by the Lender in its sole 
discretion. 

Principal and interest on this Note shall be payable in 240 equal monthly installments on 
the 1st Business Day of each month commencing January 1, 2019 and continuing thereafter until 
the Final Maturity Date in such amounts as are required to fully amortize the Principal Balance, 
together with accrued interest thereon at the interest rate then in effect, over twenty-five (25) 

61 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 
 2  
 

years, and monthly payments of principal and interest shall be recomputed as of the Adjustment 
Date.  Payments shall be applied first to amounts which are neither principal nor interest, next to 
interest due on the Principal Balance, and thereafter to reduction of the Principal Balance. 

In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and interest 
due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service charge, at 
maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise.  Interest shall be computed on a 365/360 basis. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the interest rate on this Note may also be adjusted in the 
event of a Determination of Taxability as of the Date of Taxability as provided in Paragraph 8 
below or in the event of a Corporate Tax Rate Change as of the Corporate Tax Rate Change Date 
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 3.7 and 3.8 of the Loan Agreement.  

The Lender, with 180 days written notice to the Borrower, has the option to require the 
Borrower to pay the remaining outstanding principal and interest on this Note plus accrued 
interest thereon on December 1, 2028. 

Upon an "Event of Default" as defined in the Loan Agreement and the exercise by the 
Lender of certain rights thereunder, this Note shall bear a default rate of interest that is 4% per 
annum over the interest rate otherwise applicable hereto, as provided in Section 6.7 of the Loan 
Agreement.  This Note is subject to acceleration of maturity upon an "Event of Default" as 
defined in the Loan Agreement. 

2. In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and 
interest due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service 
charge, at maturity, upon prepayment, or otherwise. 

3. Principal and interest and premium, if any, due hereunder shall be payable at the 
principal office of the Lender, or at such other place as the Lender may designate in writing. 

4. This Note is issued by the City to provide funds pursuant to a Loan Agreement 
dated as of the date hereof (the "Loan Agreement") by and between the City and Heritage 
Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and 501(c)(3) organization (the 
"Borrower"), to refinance the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul, 
Minnesota’s Health Care Revenue Note, Series 2009B (Heritage Apartments Project) (the "Prior 
Note"), the proceeds of which were used to refinance the acquisition, construction, and 
equipping of a 60-unit rental housing and assisted living facility for the elderly located at 1440 
Midway Parkway in Saint Paul, Minnesota, commonly known as The Heritage at Lyngblomsten.  
This Note is further issued pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of 
the State of Minnesota, particularly Minnesota Statutes, Section Chapter 462C, and pursuant to a 
resolution of the City Council of the City duly adopted on December 12, 2018 (the 
"Resolution"). 

5. This Note is secured by a Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof between 
the City and the Lender (the "Pledge Agreement") and is further secured by a Mortgage, Security 
Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of November 1, 2009, as amended by a 
First Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of 

62 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 
 3  
 

December 20, 2018 by the Borrower as mortgagor, in favor of the Lender (the "Mortgage") and 
certain other assignments, security agreements, guaranties, financing statements, and other 
instruments evidencing or securing the Loan as may be required by the Lender.   

6. The City, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby waives demand, 
presentment, protest and notice of dishonor; and to the extent permitted by law, the Lender may 
extend interest and/or principal of or any service charge or premium due on this Note, including 
the Final Maturity Date, or release any part or parts of the property and interest subject to the 
Mortgage or to any other security document from the same, all without notice to or consent of 
any party liable hereon or thereon and without releasing any such party from such liability and 
whether or not as a result thereof the interest on the Note is no longer exempt from the federal or 
state income tax.  In no event, however, may the Final Maturity Date of the Note be extended 
beyond 30 years from the date hereof. 

7. This Note is subject to prepayment in immediately available funds on any date at 
the option of the Borrower, in whole or in part as provided in Section 5.1 of the Loan 
Agreement.  For prepayments in an amount up to 20% of the outstanding Principal Balance as of 
January 1 of each year, the prepayment price is equal to the outstanding principal amount of this 
Note to be prepaid plus accrued interest, without penalty or premium.  Any prepayment by the 
Borrower in excess of 20% of the outstanding Principal Balance as of January 1 each year will 
be subject to a prepayment premium equal to the percentages set forth below applied to the 
prepaid amounts of the Principal Balance of this Note, or the entire outstanding Principal 
Balance in the event such amount is prepaid in full: 

(a) three percent (3%) as of any date prior to or on the 3rd anniversary of this Note 
and 3rd anniversary of the Adjustment Date; 

(b) two percent (2%) as of any date after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 
6th anniversary of this Note and after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th anniversary of 
the Adjustment Date; 

(c) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the 8th 
anniversary of this Note and after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the 8th anniversary of the 
Adjustment Date; and 

(d) after the 8th anniversary of this Note or the Adjustment Date, this Note may be 
prepaid in whole or in part on any date without premium. 

In the event of any partial prepayment of this Note, the Lender shall apply any such 
prepayment first against amounts which are neither principal nor interest, including any 
collection costs, late fees or prepayment or termination fees, then against the accrued interest on 
the Principal Balance and then against the outstanding principal amount of this Note.  The 
monthly payments due under Paragraph 1 hereof, shall continue to be due and payable in full 
until the entire Principal Balance and accrued interest due on this Note have been paid.  
However, the Note shall be reamortized by the Lender upon the request of the Borrower if the 
Borrower is in compliance with all terms of the Loan Agreement. 

63 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 
 4  
 

8. Upon a Determination of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, this Note 
shall convert to a taxable obligation and the interest rate for interest accruing from the Date of 
Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be adjusted to an interest rate per annum 
equal to the then current interest rate payable hereunder, divided by 0.79 (the "Taxable Rate").  
Any interest accruing from the Date of Taxability which is retroactively due as a result of the 
interest rate adjustment shall be payable on the 1st Business Day of the following month along 
with regularly scheduled principal payment and interest accruing from the previous payment date 
at the Taxable Rate. 

9. As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, 
this Note is only transferable upon the books of the City at the office of the City Administrator, 
by the Lender in person or by its agent duly authorized in writing, at the Lender's expense, upon 
surrender hereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the City 
Administrator, duly executed by the Lender or its duly authorized agent.  Upon such transfer the 
City Administrator will note the date of registration and the name and address of the new 
registered owner in the registration blank appearing below.  The City may deem and treat the 
person in whose name the Note is last registered upon the books of the City with such 
registration noted on the Note, as the absolute owner hereof, whether or not overdue, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of or on the account of the Principal Balance, redemption price or 
interest and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made to the Lender or upon his 
order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon the Note to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid, and the City shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

10. All of the agreements, conditions, covenants, provisions and stipulations 
contained in the Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are 
hereby made a part of this Note to the same extent and with the same force and effect as if they 
were fully set forth herein. 

11. This Note and interest thereon and any service charge or premium, if any, due 
hereunder are payable solely from the revenues and proceeds derived from the Loan Agreement 
and any security agreements related hereto and do not constitute a debt of the City within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation, are not payable from or a charge upon any 
funds other than the revenues and proceeds pledged to the payment thereof, and do not give rise 
to a pecuniary liability of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees, and no Holder of 
this Note shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the City to pay 
this Note or the interest thereon, or to enforce payment thereof against any property of the City, 
and this Note does not constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any 
property of the City, and the agreement of the City to perform or cause the performance of the 
covenants and other provisions herein referred to shall be subject at all times to the availability of 
revenues or other funds furnished for such purpose in accordance with the Loan Agreement, 
sufficient to pay all costs of such performance or the enforcement thereof. 

12. If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, 
then the Lender shall have the right and option, among other things, to declare the Principal 
Balance and accrued interest thereon immediately due and payable, whereupon the same, plus 
any premiums or service charges, shall be due and payable, but solely from sums made available 
under the Loan Agreement and any security agreements related hereto.  Failure to exercise such 

64 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 
 5  
 

option at any time shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise the same at any 
subsequent time. 

13. The remedies of the Lender, as provided herein and in any security agreements 
related hereto, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are not exclusive 
and shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be pursued singly, successively or together, at 
the sole discretion of the Lender, and may be exercised as often as occasion therefor shall occur; 
and the failure to exercise any such right or remedy shall in no event be construed as a waiver or 
release thereof. 

14. The Lender shall not be deemed, by any act of omission or commission, to have 
waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the 
Lender and, then only to the extent specifically set forth in the writing.  A waiver with reference 
to one event shall not be construed as continuing or as a bar to or waiver of any right or remedy 
as to a subsequent event. 

15. This Note has been issued without registration under state or federal or other 
securities laws, pursuant to an exemption for such issuance; and accordingly this Note may not 
be assigned or transferred in whole or part, nor may a participation interest in this Note be given 
pursuant to any participation agreement, except to another "accredited investor" or "financial 
institution" in accordance with an applicable exemption from such registration requirements and 
with full and accurate disclosure of all material facts to the prospective purchaser(s) or 
transferee(s). 

16. This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" under Section 265(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all conditions, acts and things 
required to exist to happen and to be performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Note do 
exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form as required by law. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.] 

65 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 

S-1 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Note to be duly executed in its name 
by the manual signatures of the Mayor and City Administrator, the seal of the City having been 
intentionally omitted as permitted by law, and has caused this Note to be dated as of 
December __, 2018. 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, 
MINNESOTA 

By ____________________________________ 
Its Mayor 

And By ________________________________ 
Its City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66 of 208



11221891v3 
 

 

S-2 
 
 

PROVISIONS AS TO REGISTRATION 

The ownership of the unpaid Principal Balance of this Note and the interest accruing 
thereon is registered on the books of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota in the name of the 
holder last noted below. 

Date of 
Registration 

 Name and Address 
Registered Owner 

 Signature of 
City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
December __, 2018 

  
Bremer Bank, National 
Association 
225 South Sixth Street 
Suite 200 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

  
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 

67 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF RAMSEY 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, MINNESOTA 

Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Note, Series 2018A 
(Heritage Apartments Project) 

Date:  December 20, 2018 $3,000,000 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, (the "City") hereby 
promises to pay to the order of Bremer Bank, National Association, a national banking 
association, in Minneapolis, Minnesota, its successors or registered assigns (the "Lender"), from 
the source and in the manner hereinafter provided, the principal sum of THREE MILLION 
DOLLARS ($3,000,000), or so much thereof as has been advanced and remains unpaid from 
time to time (the "Principal Balance"), with interest thereon from the date hereof until paid or 
otherwise discharged as set forth in Paragraph 1 below, in any coin or currency which at the time 
or times of payment is legal tender for the payment of public or private debts in the United States 
of America, in accordance with the terms hereinafter set forth. 

1. Commencing on the date of this Note and continuing to but not including 
December 1, 2020 interest shall accrue at the annual rate set forth in the paragraph below.  

The per annum rate of interest payable hereunder shall initially be equal to ______% per 
annum.  On January 1, 2019 and on the 1st Business Day of each month thereafter through 
November 1, 2020 (each a "Reset Date"), the interest rate on this Note will be adjusted to a rate 
per annum equal to (a) the sum of (i) 2.25% and (ii) the One-Month LIBOR Rate in effect as of 
the Reset Date, (b) multiplied by 0.79.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, during 
any period of time while the One-Month LIBOR Rate would be less than zero percent (0.0%), 
the One-Month LIBOR Rate shall be deemed to be zero (0). 

As used herein, the "One-Month LIBOR Rate" means a fluctuating rate of interest per 
annum equal to the ICE London Interbank Offered Rate ("ICE LIBOR"), as published by 
InterContinental Exchange ("ICE") (or other commercially available source providing quotations 
of ICE LIBOR as selected by Lender from time to time) as determined for each London Banking 
Day at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, two (2) London Banking Days (as hereinafter 
defined) prior to the Reset Date, for U.S. Dollar deposits with a one (1) month term. In the event 
that ICE LIBOR (i) is permanently or indefinitely unavailable or unascertainable, (ii) ceases to 
be published, (iii) is officially discontinued, or (iv) can no longer be lawfully relied upon in 
contracts, then all references to ICE LIBOR herein will instead be to a replacement benchmark 
rate (including any mathematical or other adjustments to the benchmark incorporated therein) 
reasonably determined by the Lender, using commercially reasonable judgment, and giving due 
consideration to any existing convention for substitute benchmarks in agreements of this kind. In 
order to account for the relationship of the comparable or successor index to the original ICE 
LIBOR index, such alternate method will incorporate any spread to any comparable or successor 
index as is necessary to ensure that the alternate method will measure interest rates in a manner 
similar to the original ICE LIBOR index. Any successor rate or alternate methodology must be 
an interest-based index, variations in the value of which can reasonably be expected to measure 

68 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 
 2  
 

contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds in United States dollars. The 
Lender will provide reasonable notice to the Borrower of such replacement rate, which will be 
effective on the date of the earliest event set forth in clauses (i)-(iv) of this paragraph. If there is 
any ambiguity as to the date of occurrence of any such event, the Lender's judgment will be 
dispositive.  

On December 1, 2020 and December 1, 2028 (each, an "Adjustment Date"), through 
December 1, 2038 (the "Final Maturity Date"), the interest rate on this Note will be adjusted. On 
the first Adjustment Date, the rate will be adjusted to a rate per annum equal to (a) the sum of (i) 
2.25% and (ii) the then current rate of the 7-Year Treasury Rate as reported by the Federal 
Reserve for the preceding month (b) multiplied by 0.79.  On the second Adjustment Date, the 
rate will be adjusted to a rate per annum equal to (a) the sum of (i) 2.25% and (ii) the then 
current rate of the 10-Year Treasury Rate as reported by the Federal Reserve for the preceding 
month (b) multiplied by 0.79 (each an "Adjusted Rate").  Except in the event of a Determination 
of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, the annual rate payable hereunder during the 
term of this Note shall not be less than, nor greater than 3.0% above, the first Adjusted Rate.  All 
such adjustments to the interest rate shall be made and become effective as of such Adjustment 
Date and the interest rate as adjusted shall remain in effect through and including the day 
immediately preceding an Adjustment Date or the Final Maturity Date, as applicable. 

As used herein, "7-Year Treasury Rate" means the published monthly average yield on 
United States Treasury Notes adjusted to a constant maturity of seven years for the most recent 
month available as of the Adjustment Date, as published and made available by the Federal 
Reserve Board pursuant to its Federal Reserve Statistical Release (H.15(519)) (the "7-Year 
Index"); provided, however, that in the event that such 7-Year Index is no longer published or 
otherwise made available, the 7-Year Index shall be a substantially comparable index selected by 
the Lender in its sole discretion. 

As used herein, "10-Year Treasury Rate" means the published monthly average yield on 
United States Treasury Notes adjusted to a constant maturity of ten years for the most recent 
month available as of the Adjustment Date, as published and made available by the Federal 
Reserve Board pursuant to its Federal Reserve Statistical Release (H.15(519)) (the "10-Year 
Index"); provided, however, that in the event that such 10-Year Index is no longer published or 
otherwise made available, the 10-Year Index shall be a substantially comparable index selected 
by the Lender in its sole discretion. 

Interest only shall be paid commencing on January 1, 2019 and on each Reset Date to, 
and including, the first Adjustment Date. Thereafter, principal and interest on this Note shall be 
payable in 216 equal monthly installments on the 1st Business Day of each month continuing 
until the Final Maturity Date in such amounts as are required to fully amortize the Principal 
Balance, together with accrued interest thereon at the interest rate then in effect, over twenty-
three (23) years, and monthly payments of principal and interest shall be recomputed as of each 
Adjustment Date.   

Payments shall be applied first to amounts which are neither principal nor interest, next to 
interest due on the Principal Balance, and thereafter to reduction of the Principal Balance. 

69 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 
 3  
 

In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and interest 
due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service charge, at 
maturity, upon redemption, or otherwise.  Interest shall be computed on a 365/360 basis. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the interest rate on this Note may also be adjusted in the 
event of a Determination of Taxability as of the Date of Taxability as provided in Paragraph 8 
below or in the event of a Corporate Tax Rate Change as of the Corporate Tax Rate Change Date 
in accordance with the provisions of Sections 3.7 and 3.8 of the Loan Agreement.  

The Lender, with 180 days written notice to the Borrower, has the option to require the 
Borrower to pay the remaining outstanding principal and interest on this Note plus accrued 
interest thereon on December 1, 2028. 

Upon an "Event of Default" as defined in the Loan Agreement and the exercise by the 
Lender of certain rights thereunder, this Note shall bear a default rate of interest that is 4% per 
annum over the interest rate otherwise applicable hereto, as provided in Section 6.7 of the Loan 
Agreement.  This Note is subject to acceleration of maturity upon an "Event of Default" as 
defined in the Loan Agreement. 

2. In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and 
interest due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service 
charge, at maturity, upon prepayment, or otherwise. 

3. Principal and interest and premium, if any, due hereunder shall be payable at the 
principal office of the Lender, or at such other place as the Lender may designate in writing. 

4. This Note is issued by the City to provide funds pursuant to a Loan Agreement 
dated as of the date hereof (the "Loan Agreement") by and between the City and Heritage 
Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and 501(c)(3) organization (the 
"Borrower"), to finance, in part, the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined 
multifamily senior housing and health care facility, with approximately 103 independent living 
units, 34 assisted living units, 16 memory care units, 48 skilled nursing units, and 30 townhome 
units, totaling approximately 106,730 square feet, to be located at 6075 Hodgson Road in the 
City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota, which will be owned, operated, and managed by Lyngblomsten 
Senior Housing, Inc. a Minnesota nonprofit corporation ("LSH"), and an organization described 
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code, of which the Borrower is an affiliate.  This Note is further 
issued pursuant to and in full compliance with the Constitution and laws of the State of 
Minnesota, particularly Minnesota Statutes, Section Chapter 462C, and pursuant to a resolution 
of the City Council of the City duly adopted on December 12, 2018 (the "Resolution"). 

5. This Note is secured by a Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof between 
the City and the Lender (the "Pledge Agreement") and is further secured by a Mortgage, Security 
Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of November 1, 2009, as amended by a 
First Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of 
December 20, 2018 by the Borrower as mortgagor, in favor of the Lender (the "Mortgage") and 
certain other assignments, security agreements, guaranties, financing statements, and other 
instruments evidencing or securing the Loan as may be required by the Lender.   

70 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 
 4  
 

6. The City, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby waives demand, 
presentment, protest and notice of dishonor; and to the extent permitted by law, the Lender may 
extend interest and/or principal of or any service charge or premium due on this Note, including 
the Final Maturity Date, or release any part or parts of the property and interest subject to the 
Mortgage or to any other security document from the same, all without notice to or consent of 
any party liable hereon or thereon and without releasing any such party from such liability and 
whether or not as a result thereof the interest on the Note is no longer exempt from the federal or 
state income tax.  In no event, however, may the Final Maturity Date of the Note be extended 
beyond 30 years from the date hereof. 

7. This Note is subject to prepayment in immediately available funds on any date at 
the option of the Borrower, in whole or in part as provided in Section 5.1 of the Loan 
Agreement.  Prior to the first Adjustment Date, the prepayment price is equal to the outstanding 
principal amount of this Note to be prepaid plus accrued interest, without penalty or premium.  
After the first Adjustment Date for prepayments in an amount up to 20% of the outstanding 
Principal Balance as of January 1 of each year, the prepayment price is equal to the outstanding 
principal amount of this Note to be prepaid plus accrued interest, without penalty or premium.  
After the first Adjustment Date, any prepayment by the Borrower in excess of 20% of the 
outstanding Principal Balance as of January 1 each year will be subject to a prepayment premium 
equal to the percentages set forth below applied to the prepaid amounts of the Principal Balance 
of this Note, or the entire outstanding Principal Balance in the event such amount is prepaid in 
full: 

(a) three percent (3%) as of any date prior to or on the 3rd anniversary of each 
Adjustment Date; 

(b) two percent (2%) as of any date after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 
6th anniversary of each Adjustment Date and after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th 
anniversary of each Adjustment Date; 

(c) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the 
date that is two weeks prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment Date;  

(d) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on to the 
8th anniversary of the second Adjustment Date; 

(e) after the date that is two weeks prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment 
Date and prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment date, this Note may be prepaid in 
whole or in part on any date without premium; and 

(f) after the 8th anniversary of the second Adjustment Date, this Note may be prepaid 
in whole or in part on any date without premium. 

In the event of any partial prepayment of this Note, the Lender shall apply any such 
prepayment first against amounts which are neither principal nor interest, including any 
collection costs, late fees or prepayment or termination fees, then against the accrued interest on 
the Principal Balance and then against the outstanding principal amount of this Note.  The 

71 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 
 5  
 

monthly payments due under Paragraph 1 hereof, shall continue to be due and payable in full 
until the entire Principal Balance and accrued interest due on this Note have been paid.  
However, the Note shall be reamortized by the Lender upon the request of the Borrower if the 
Borrower is in compliance with all terms of the Loan Agreement. 

8. Upon a Determination of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, this Note 
shall convert to a taxable obligation and the interest rate for interest accruing from the Date of 
Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be adjusted to an interest rate per annum 
equal to the then current interest rate payable hereunder, divided by 0.79 (the "Taxable Rate").  
Any interest accruing from the Date of Taxability which is retroactively due as a result of the 
interest rate adjustment shall be payable on the 1st Business Day of the following month along 
with regularly scheduled principal payment and interest accruing from the previous payment date 
at the Taxable Rate. 

9. As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, 
this Note is only transferable upon the books of the City at the office of the City Administrator, 
by the Lender in person or by its agent duly authorized in writing, at the Lender's expense, upon 
surrender hereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the City 
Administrator, duly executed by the Lender or its duly authorized agent.  Upon such transfer the 
City Administrator will note the date of registration and the name and address of the new 
registered owner in the registration blank appearing below.  The City may deem and treat the 
person in whose name the Note is last registered upon the books of the City with such 
registration noted on the Note, as the absolute owner hereof, whether or not overdue, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of or on the account of the Principal Balance, redemption price or 
interest and for all other purposes, and all such payments so made to the Lender or upon his 
order shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability upon the Note to the extent 
of the sum or sums so paid, and the City shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

10. All of the agreements, conditions, covenants, provisions and stipulations 
contained in the Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are 
hereby made a part of this Note to the same extent and with the same force and effect as if they 
were fully set forth herein. 

11. This Note and interest thereon and any service charge or premium, if any, due 
hereunder are payable solely from the revenues and proceeds derived from the Loan Agreement 
and any security agreements related hereto and do not constitute a debt of the City within the 
meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation, are not payable from or a charge upon any 
funds other than the revenues and proceeds pledged to the payment thereof, and do not give rise 
to a pecuniary liability of the City or any of its officers, agents or employees, and no Holder of 
this Note shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the City to pay 
this Note or the interest thereon, or to enforce payment thereof against any property of the City, 
and this Note does not constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any 
property of the City, and the agreement of the City to perform or cause the performance of the 
covenants and other provisions herein referred to shall be subject at all times to the availability of 
revenues or other funds furnished for such purpose in accordance with the Loan Agreement, 
sufficient to pay all costs of such performance or the enforcement thereof. 

72 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 
 6  
 

12. If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, 
then the Lender shall have the right and option, among other things, to declare the Principal 
Balance and accrued interest thereon immediately due and payable, whereupon the same, plus 
any premiums or service charges, shall be due and payable, but solely from sums made available 
under the Loan Agreement and any security agreements related hereto.  Failure to exercise such 
option at any time shall not constitute a waiver of the right to exercise the same at any 
subsequent time. 

13. The remedies of the Lender, as provided herein and in any security agreements 
related hereto, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are not exclusive 
and shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be pursued singly, successively or together, at 
the sole discretion of the Lender, and may be exercised as often as occasion therefor shall occur; 
and the failure to exercise any such right or remedy shall in no event be construed as a waiver or 
release thereof. 

14. The Lender shall not be deemed, by any act of omission or commission, to have 
waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the 
Lender and, then only to the extent specifically set forth in the writing.  A waiver with reference 
to one event shall not be construed as continuing or as a bar to or waiver of any right or remedy 
as to a subsequent event. 

15. This Note has been issued without registration under state or federal or other 
securities laws, pursuant to an exemption for such issuance; and accordingly this Note may not 
be assigned or transferred in whole or part, nor may a participation interest in this Note be given 
pursuant to any participation agreement, except to another "accredited investor" or "financial 
institution" in accordance with an applicable exemption from such registration requirements and 
with full and accurate disclosure of all material facts to the prospective purchaser(s) or 
transferee(s). 

16. This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" under Section 265(b) of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all conditions, acts and things 
required to exist to happen and to be performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Note do 
exist, have happened and have been performed in regular and due form as required by law. 

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank. Signature page follows.] 

73 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 

S-1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Note to be duly executed in its name 
by the manual signatures of the Mayor and City Administrator, the seal of the City having been 
intentionally omitted as permitted by law, and has caused this Note to be dated as of 
December __, 2018. 

CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS, 
MINNESOTA 

By ____________________________________ 
Its Mayor 

And By ________________________________ 
Its City Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74 of 208



11223463v3 
 

 

S-2 
 

PROVISIONS AS TO REGISTRATION 

The ownership of the unpaid Principal Balance of this Note and the interest accruing 
thereon is registered on the books of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota in the name of the 
holder last noted below. 

Date of 
Registration 

 Name and Address 
Registered Owner 

 Signature of 
City Administrator 

 
 
 
 
 
December __, 2018 

  
Bremer Bank, National 
Association 
225 South Sixth Street 
Suite 200 
Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

  
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

  
 
 
  

 

75 of 208



11224019v2 
 

 

   

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE,  
SECURITY AGREEMENT AND FIXTURE FINANCING STATEMENT 

 
between 

HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC., 
as Mortgagor 

and 

BREMER BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Mortgagee 

Dated as of December 20, 2018 

(THIS MORTGAGE CONTAINS AFTER-ACQUIRED PROPERTY PROVISIONS AND 
CONSTITUTES A FIXTURE FINANCING STATEMENT UNDER MINNESOTA 

STATUTES SECTION 336.9-502) 

  

By this First Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement the 
Mortgagor and the Mortgagee amend this Mortgage to increase the principal amount of this 
Mortgage to $___________ and to pay the additional Mortgage Registration Tax due of 
$____________ for the additional $____________ of principal added thereto and secured 
hereby. 

This instrument was drafted by: 
Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association (CJC) 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South Eighth Street 
Minneapolis, MN  55402-2157 

76 of 208



11224019v2 
 

 

 1  
 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE, SECURITY AGREEMENT 
AND FIXTURE FINANCING STATEMENT  

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE, SECURITY AGREEMENT AND 

FIXTURE FINANCING STATEMENT (the "Amendment") is made and entered into as of the 
20th day of December, 2018 between HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC., a Minnesota 
nonprofit corporation (the "Mortgagor"), and BREMER BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
(the "Mortgagee" or the "Lender"). 

RECITALS: 

1. The Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota 
(the "Saint Paul HRA") previously issued its Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2009 
(Heritage Apartments Project) (the "Prior Note") and the Lender purchased the Prior Note; and 

2. The Saint Paul HRA and the Mortgagor entered into a Loan Agreement dated as 
of November 1, 2009 (the "Original Loan Agreement") whereby, among other things, the 
Mortgagor agreed to pay to the Saint Paul HRA loan repayments in an amount and at the times 
sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Prior Note as it becomes due; and 

3. To secure the Mortgagor's obligations under the Original Loan Agreement, the 
Mortgagor granted to the Mortgagee a mortgage on certain property legally described on Exhibit 
A thereto, pursuant to a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as 
of November 1, 2009, which Mortgage was filed in the offices of the Ramsey County Recorder 
on November 12, 2009 as Document No. 4192089 (the "Original Mortgage"); and 

4. The Prior Note is being restructured with the proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes 
(defined below), the proceeds of which will also finance, in part, the acquisition, construction, 
and equipping of additional improvements; and 

5. For the purpose of restructuring the Prior Note and to finance the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of certain other improvements, the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota (the "Issuer" or "City") has issued its Senior Housing and Health Care Revenue Note, 
Series 2018A (Heritage Apartments Project) and its Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note, 
Series 2018B (Heritage Apartments Project) (the "Series 2018 Notes") with a final maturity date 
of December 1, 2038 and bearing interest as provided therein; and 

6. The City will loan the proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes to the Mortgagor 
pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of the date hereof, between the City and the Mortgagor 
(the "Loan Agreement") for the purpose of (a) refinancing the Prior Note, the proceeds of which 
were used to refinance the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota’s Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Lyngblomsten Project), Series 1993B,  the proceeds of which were used for financing the 
acquisition, construction, and equipping of an approximately 60-unit rental housing and assisted 
living facility at the Borrower's facility known as the The Heritage at Lyngblomsten located on 
the property legally described on Exhibit A attached hereto and (b) financing, in part, the 
acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined multifamily senior housing and health 

77 of 208



11224019v2 
 

  

 2  
 

care facility located in Lino Lakes, Minnesota (collectively, the "Project"), and the City's interest 
in the Loan Agreement, except for certain reserved rights, has been assigned to the Lender; and 

7. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Mortgagor has covenanted, among other 
things, to make loan repayments sufficient to pay amortized installments of principal and interest 
on the Series 2018 Notes when due; and 

8. The City and the Lender have required, as a condition for the issuance of the 
Notes by the City and for the purchase and acceptance of the Notes by the Lender, that the 
Mortgagor secure the 2018 Notes by the Original Mortgage, as amended by this Amendment 
(collectively, the "Mortgage") in the maximum principal amount of [$4,700,000]; and 

9. As a result of the execution and delivery by the Borrower of the Loan Agreement, 
the principal balance of the debt secured by this Mortgage is increasing by the sum of 
$___________, from $1,523,889 to [$4,700,000], and the original loan to the Borrower, as so 
amended and increased, is secured by the Original Mortgage, as hereby amended; and 

10. Because of the increase in the principal amount of the debt secured by the 
Mortgage, the Original Mortgage, as amended hereby is a "supplemental mortgage" within the 
meaning of Minnesota Statutes, § 287.05, as a result of which additional mortgage registry tax in 
the amount of $____________ is payable as a condition to the recording of this Amendment; and 

11. This Amendment amends the Original Mortgage as follows. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of $1.00 and other good and valuable consideration and 
the premises contained herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. All references to the "Note" in the Original Mortgage shall refer to the Series 
2018 Notes, as defined in this Amendment. 

2. All references in the Original Mortgage to "$3,200,000", whether spelled out or 
depicted numerically, are hereby changed to ["$4,700,000."] 

3. All references in the Original Mortgage to "November 1, 2019" are hereby 
changed to "December 1, 2038." 

4. All references in the Original Mortgage to "Kelly Elkin" are hereby changed to 
"David B. Borden." 

5. Except as modified herein, all of the terms and provisions of the Original 
Mortgage remain unchanged, and shall remain in full force and effect.  

78 of 208



11224019v2 
 

  

 S-1  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be signed 
in their name and on their behalf by their appropriate officers, all as of the day and year first 
above written. 

HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC.  
 
By ____________________________________ 
 Its  _________________________________ 
 
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 

This Instrument was acknowledged before me on the ___ day of December, 2018 by 
____________________, the ____________________ of Heritage Apartments, Inc., a 
Minnesota nonprofit corporation, on behalf of such corporation. 

_____________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to First Amendment to Mortgage 
 
  

79 of 208



11224019v2 
 

  

 S-2  
 

BREMER BANK,  
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Lender 
 
 
By ____________________________________ 
    Its Senior Vice President 
 
 

 
 
 
STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN ) 

This Instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of December, 2018 by 
David B. Borden, the Senior Vice President of Bremer Bank, National Association, a national 
banking association, on behalf of said association. 

_____________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to First Amendment to Mortgage 

80 of 208



11224019v2 
 

  

 A-1  
 

EXHIBIT A 

Legal Description 

The real property situated in the City of Saint Paul, County of Ramsey, State of Minnesota, 
described as follows: 
 
Lot 1, Block 1, Lyngblomsten Subdivision No. 1 

81 of 208



 
4850-1618-8032.3  

KUTAK DRAFT  
12/4/18 

SECURITY AGREEMENT 

 
HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the “Debtor”), whose 
address is 1415 Almond Avenue, Saint Paul, Minnesota 55108, and BREMER BANK, 
NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association, whose address is 225 South Sixth 
Street, Suite 200, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 (the “Secured Party"), agree as follows: 

The Debtor hereby grants to the Secured Party a first position security interest in the property 
described below together with any additions and accessions thereto, replacements thereof, and all 
insurance, condemnation and other products or proceeds thereof, to secure prompt payment when 
due of all amounts owed by the Debtor to the Secured Party whether now existing or hereafter 
existing, including all amounts owed pursuant to that certain Loan Agreement, dated December 
20, 2018 (the “Loan Agreement”), between the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the “Issuer”) 
and the Debtor, and the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota Senior Housing and Health Care 
Revenue Note (Heritage Apartments Project) Series 2018A and the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota Senior Housing and Revenue Refunding Note (Heritage Apartments Project) Series 
2018B (collectively, the “Notes”), together with all other liabilities of the Borrower to the 
Secured Party (primary, secondary, direct, contingent, sole, joint, or several) due or to become 
due or which may be hereafter contracted or acquired and the performance of all of the terms and 
conditions of this Security Agreement: 

All assets of the Debtor, including, but not limited to: (a) all 
fixtures, equipment, vehicles and personal property of every kind 
and nature whatsoever now owned or hereafter owned, including 
all extensions, additions, improvements, betterments, renewals and 
replacements of any of the foregoing; (b) all Accounts, Chattel 
Paper, Commercial Tort or other claims, and General Intangibles; 
(c) all inventory now owned or hereafter owned; and (d) all 
insurance, condemnation and other products or proceeds of the 
foregoing. 

The above-described property hereinafter referred to as the "Collateral". 

DEBTOR HEREBY AGREES, WARRANTS AND COVENANTS THAT: 

1. The Collateral will be kept in the State of Minnesota.  The Debtor will not remove the 
Collateral from the State of Minnesota without the prior written consent of the Secured 
Party. The Secured Party may examine and inspect the Collateral at any time, wherever 
located; provided, that, so long as no Event of Default (as defined in the Loan 
Agreement) has occurred and is outstanding, all such examinations shall take place 
during Debtor's ordinary business hours following two (2) business days prior written 
notice to Debtor. 

82 of 208



 

 2  
4850-1618-8032.3  

2. The Collateral is for business use and is specifically to be used in operation of the 
Debtor's business. 

3. The Collateral shall not be attached to real estate (except for any Collateral that is 
attached to real estate on the date hereof) without the Secured Party's prior written 
consent.  If any of the Collateral is or is to become a fixture, the Debtor agrees to furnish 
the Secured Party with a statement signed by all persons who have or claim an interest in 
the real estate concerned, which statement shall provide that the signer consents to the 
security interest created hereby and disclaims any interest in the Collateral as fixtures. 

4. Except as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, the Debtor is the owner of the 
Collateral, free and clear of all liens, security interests or encumbrances, and the Debtor 
will defend the Collateral against all claims and demands of all persons at any time 
claiming the same or any interest therein. 

5. The Debtor will keep the Collateral in good order and repair, and will not waste or 
destroy the Collateral and will not sell or offer to sell or otherwise transfer (except for the 
sale of worn, obsolete or surplus assets or except as permitted in the Loan Agreements) or 
encumber the Collateral without the prior written consent of the Secured Party; except 
for: 

(a) Liens in favor of the Secured Party; 

(b) Liens existing on the date of this Agreement and disclosed on Exhibit A attached 
hereto; 

(c) Liens securing purchase money indebtedness incurred for the replacement of 
Debtor's computers; 

(d) Deposits or pledges to secure payment of workers' compensation, unemployment 
insurance, old age pensions or other social security obligations, in the ordinary 
course of business of the Debtor; 

(e) Liens for taxes, fees, assessments and governmental charges not delinquent or to 
the extent that payments therefor shall not at the time be required to be made; 

(f) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics and materialmen, and other like 
Liens arising in the ordinary course of business, for sums not due or to the extent 
that payment therefor shall not at the time be required to be made;  

(g) Deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts, leases, statutory 
obligations and other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course 
of business; and 

(h) Tenant security deposits and reservation deposits. 

6. Except as shown on Exhibit A, no financing statement covering the Collateral is on file in 
any public office other than the financing statements filed by or at the direction of the 

83 of 208



 

 3  
4850-1618-8032.3  

Secured Party and at the request of the Secured Party, the Debtor hereby authorizes the 
Secured Party to file one or more financing statements pursuant to the Uniform 
Commercial Code in form satisfactory to the Secured Party for filing in all public offices 
wherever filing is deemed necessary or desirable by the Secured Party. 

7. The Debtor will keep the Collateral insured at all times against loss by fire and other 
hazards concerning which, in the commercially reasonable judgment of the Secured 
Party, insurance protection is necessary, in a company or companies satisfactory to the 
Secured Party and in amounts sufficient to protect the Secured Party against loss or 
damage to the Collateral and will pay the premiums therefor.  Copies of such policy or 
policies of insurance will be delivered to and held by the Secured Party, together with 
loss payable clauses in favor of the Secured Party as its interest may appear, in form 
satisfactory to the Secured Party.  Following the occurrence and during the continuance 
of an Event of Default, the Secured Party may act as attorney-in-fact for the Debtor in 
obtaining, adjusting, settling and canceling such insurance and endorsing any drafts. 

8. At its option, upon default of the Debtor to do so, the Secured Party may discharge taxes, 
liens, or security interests or other encumbrances placed on the Collateral, may pay for 
insurance on the Collateral, and may pay for the maintenance and preservation of the 
Collateral.  The Debtor agrees to reimburse the Secured Party on demand for any 
payment made, or any expense incurred by the Secured Party pursuant to the foregoing 
authorization. 

9. Except when an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan Agreement) has occurred and is 
continuing, the Debtor may retain possession of the Collateral and use the same in any 
lawful manner not inconsistent with the agreements herein or with the terms and 
conditions of any policy of insurance thereon. 

10. Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, the Secured Party shall 
have the right, at its option and without demand or notice, in addition to all other rights 
and remedies available in law and equity, to exercise all of the rights and remedies of a 
Secured Party under the Uniform Commercial Code or any other applicable law.  The 
Debtor agrees that upon the occurrence and continuance an Event of Default, the Debtor 
will make the Collateral available to the Secured Party at a place to be designated by the 
Secured Party which is reasonably convenient.  The Debtor further agrees to pay all costs 
and expenses of the Secured Party, including reasonable attorney's fees, in collection of 
any amount due from the Borrower or the Debtor to the Secured Party herein or for the 
enforcement hereof.  If any notice of sale, disposition or other intended action by the 
Secured Party is required by law to be given to the Debtor, such notice shall be deemed 
reasonably and properly given if mailed, at least ten (10) days before such sale, 
disposition or other intended action, to the Debtor at the address set forth above. 

11. Waiver of any default hereunder by the Secured Party shall not be a waiver of any other 
default or of the same default on a later occasion.  No delay or failure by the Secured 
Party to exercise any right or remedy shall be a waiver of any such right or remedy and 
no single or partial exercise by the Secured Party of any right or remedy shall preclude 
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right or remedy at any time. 

84 of 208



 

 4  
4850-1618-8032.3  

12. This Agreement and the security interest in the Collateral created hereby shall terminate 
when the Borrower has repaid the Secured Party the amount due on the Notes and all 
other indebtedness and liability from the Borrower or the Debtor to the Secured Party 
whether now existing or hereafter existing. 

13. No waiver by the Secured Party of any default shall be effective unless in writing nor 
operate as a waiver of any other default or of the same default on a future occasion. 

14. The Secured Party is hereby appointed the Debtor's attorney-in-fact to do all things and 
acts necessary to perfect and to continue to perfect the security interest in the Collateral 
and, following the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default, to 
exercise its rights with respect to the Collateral. 

[Signature page follows.] 

85 of 208



 

 S-1 
4850-1618-8032.3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have signed this Agreement this ___ day of 
December, 2018. 

SECURED PARTY: 
BREMER BANK, NATIONAL 
ASSOCIATION 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Its:  Senior Vice President 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to Security Agreement 

86 of 208



 

 S-2 
4850-1618-8032.3  

DEBTOR: 
HERITAGE APARTMENTS, INC. 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Its:  ___________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature page to Security Agreement 

87 of 208



 

 A-1 
4850-1618-8032.3  

Exhibit A 

Existing Security Interests 

None 

88 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 

Extract of Minutes of a Meeting of the 
City Council of the City of Falcon Heights 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Falcon Heights was duly held in the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, on Wednesday, 
December 12, 2018, at 7:00 o'clock P.M. 

The following members were present: 

and the following were absent: 

 

During said meeting _________ introduced the following resolution and moved its 
adoption: 

RESOLUTION NO. 18-37 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A HOUSING PROGRAM AND APPROVING 
THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF 

SENIOR HOUSING AND HEALTH CARE REVENUE NOTES AND AUTHORIZING 
THE EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS RELATING THERETO 

(HERITAGE APARTMENTS PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, 

(a) Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C, as amended (the "Act"), confers upon 
cities the power to issue revenue obligations to finance combined multifamily housing and health 
care developments; 

(b) The City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the "City") desires to facilitate the 
selective development of the community, retain and improve the tax base and help to provide the 
range of services and employment opportunities required by the population, including senior 
housing and health care services; and the Project, as defined below, will assist the City in 
achieving those objectives and will enhance the image and reputation of the community; 

(c) Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the 
"Borrower"), and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the "Code"), has proposed that the City undertake a program to finance and 
refinance the Project through the issuance of revenue notes or other obligations, in one or more 
series (the "Notes"), pursuant to the Act, Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.656, and a Joint 
Powers Agreement (the "Joint Powers Agreement") between the City, the City of Lino Lakes, 
Minnesota ("Lino Lakes"), and the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint 

89 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 2 
 

Paul, Minnesota (the "Saint Paul HRA") and in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$5,000,000; 

(d) The "Project" consists of: (i) financing, in part, the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of a combined multifamily senior housing and health care facility, 
with approximately 103 independent living units, 34 assisted living units, 16 memory care units, 
48 skilled nursing units, and 30 townhome units, totaling approximately 106,730 square feet, to 
be located at 6075 Hodgson Road in the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota ("Lino Lakes") (the 
"Lino Lakes Project"); (ii) refinancing the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of 
Saint Paul, Minnesota's Multifamily Housing Revenue Note, Series 2009B (Heritage Apartments 
Project), the proceeds of which were used to refinance the Housing and Redevelopment 
Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota's Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
(Lyngblomsten Project), Series 1993B, which were originally issued to finance the acquisition, 
construction, and equipping of a 60-unit rental housing and assisted living facility for the elderly 
located at 1440 Midway Parkway in Saint Paul, Minnesota ("Saint Paul"), commonly known as 
The Heritage at Lyngblomsten (the "Heritage Apartments Project" and together with the Lino 
Lakes Project, the "Project"); and (iii) financing the costs of issuing the Notes.  The Heritage 
Apartments Project is owned, operated, and managed by the Borrower, and the Lino Lakes 
Project will be owned, operated, and managed by Lyngblomsten Senior Housing, Inc., a 
Minnesota nonprofit corporation ("LSH"), and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the Code, of which the Borrower is an affiliate; 

(e) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that 
conventional, commercial financing to pay the capital cost of the Project is available only on a 
limited basis and at such high costs of borrowing that the economic feasibility of operating the 
Project would be significantly reduced; 

(f) Based on representations of the Borrower, no public official of the City 
has either a direct or indirect financial interest in the Project nor will any public official either 
directly or indirectly benefit financially from the Project;  

(g) The Notes, as and when issued, will not constitute a charge, lien or 
encumbrance upon any property of the City, Lino Lakes, or Saint Paul and will not be a charge 
against the general credit or taxing powers of the City, Lino Lakes, or Saint Paul; 

(h) As required by the Act and Section 147(f) of the Code, a notice of public 
hearing was published in the City's official newspaper and newspaper of general circulation, for 
a public hearing on the proposed issuance of the Notes by the City and the proposal of the 
Borrower to undertake and finance the Project;  

(i) As required by the Act and Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council 
has on this same date held a public hearing on a housing finance program and the issuance of the 
Notes by the City and the proposal by the Borrower to undertake and refinance the Project, at 
which hearing all those appearing who desired to speak were heard and written comments were 
accepted; and 

90 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 3 
 

(j) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that, in 
accordance with Section 147(f) of the Code, the Board of Commissioners of the Saint Paul HRA, 
on behalf of the City of Saint Paul, held a public hearing on this same date on the Heritage 
Apartments Project and has given its approval to the Joint Powers Agreement and the issuance of 
the Notes by the City. 

(k) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that, in 
accordance with Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council of Lino Lakes held a public 
hearing on December 10, 2018 on the Lino Lakes Project and has given its approval to the Joint 
Powers Agreement and the issuance of the Notes by the City. 

(l) Pursuant to Section 462C.04 of the Act, the City made timely submission 
of the housing finance program to the Metropolitan Council for its review and comment, and the 
City has heretofore received favorable comment from the Metropolitan Council on such 
program. 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the 
"City"), as follows: 

SECTION 1.  LEGAL AUTHORIZATION AND FINDINGS. 

1.1 Findings.  The City hereby finds, determines and declares as follows: 

(a) The City is a municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State 
of Minnesota and is authorized under the Act to assist the Project referred to herein, and 
to issue and sell the Notes, as hereinafter defined, for the purpose, in the manner, and 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in the Act and in this Resolution. 

(b) The issuance and sale of the Notes by the City, pursuant to the Act, is in 
the best interest of the City, and the City hereby determines to issue the Notes and to sell 
the Notes to Bremer Bank, National Association, Minneapolis, Minnesota, or another 
bank in Minnesota (the "Lender").  The City will loan the proceeds of the Notes (the 
"Loan") to the Borrower in order to finance and refinance the Project. 

(c) Pursuant to a Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") to be entered into 
between the City and the Borrower, the Borrower has agreed to repay the Notes in 
specified amounts and at specified times sufficient to pay in full when due the principal 
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes.  In addition, the Loan Agreement contains 
provisions relating to the maintenance and operation of the Project, indemnification, 
insurance, and other agreements and covenants which are required or permitted by the 
Act and which the City and the Borrower deem necessary or desirable for their financing 
of the Project.  A draft of the Loan Agreement has been submitted to the City Council. 

(d) Pursuant to a Pledge Agreement (the "Pledge Agreement") to be entered 
into between the City and the Lender, the City has pledged and granted a security interest 
in all of its rights, title, and interest in the Loan Agreement to the Lender (except for 
certain rights of indemnification and to reimbursement for certain costs and expenses).  A 
draft of the Pledge Agreement has been submitted to the City Council. 

91 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 4 
 

(e) Payments due under the Loan Agreement and Notes shall also be secured 
pursuant to a Security Agreement (the "Security Agreement") given by the Borrower to 
the Lender by granting a security interest in the property described therein.  A draft of the 
Security Agreement has been submitted to the City Council. 

(f) As additional security, the Borrower will grant a security interest in the 
Heritage Apartments Project pursuant to a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture 
Financing Statement as amended by a First Amendment to Mortgage, Security 
Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement (the "Mortgage Amendment"). A draft of the 
Mortgage Amendment has been submitted to the City Council.  

(g) The Notes will be special, limited obligations of the City.  The Notes shall 
not be payable from or charged upon any funds other than the revenues pledged to the 
payment thereof, nor shall the City be subject to any liability thereon.  No holder of the 
Notes shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the City to 
pay the Notes or the interest thereon, nor to enforce payment thereof against any property 
of the City.  The Notes shall not constitute a debt of the City within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory limitation. 

(h) On the basis of information available to the City it appears, and the City 
hereby finds, that the Project constitutes properties, real and personal, used or useful in 
connection with senior housing and health care facilities within the meaning of the Act; 
that the Project furthers the purposes stated in the Act; that the availability of the 
financing under the Act and the willingness of the City to furnish such financing and 
refinancing will be a substantial inducement to the Borrower to undertake the Project, and 
that the effect of the Project, if undertaken, will be to assist in the prevention of the 
emergence of blighted and marginal land, to help prevent chronic unemployment, to help 
the surrounding area retain and eventually improve the tax base, to provide the range of 
service and employment opportunities required by the population, to help prevent the 
movement of talented and educated persons out of the state and to areas within the State 
where their services may not be as effectively used, and to promote more intensive 
development and use of land within the City and surrounding communities, and to 
provide available adequate senior housing and health care services to residents of the 
State at a reasonable cost. 

(i) It is desirable, feasible, and consistent with the objects and purposes of the 
Act to issue the Notes, for the purpose of financing and refinancing the costs of the 
Project. 

SECTION 2.  THE NOTES. 

2.1 Authorized Amount and Form of Notes.  The Notes are hereby approved and shall 
be issued pursuant to this Resolution in substantially the forms submitted to the City Council 
with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are necessary and appropriate and 
are permitted or required by this Resolution, and in accordance with the further provisions 
hereof; and the total aggregate principal amount of the Notes that may be outstanding hereunder 

92 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 5 
 

is expressly limited to $5,000,000, unless a duplicate Note is issued pursuant to Section 2.7.  The 
Notes shall bear interest at a rate or rates as set forth therein. 

2.2 The Notes.  The Notes shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the Lender, shall 
be payable at the times and in the manner, shall bear interest at the rate, and shall be subject to 
such other terms and conditions as are set forth therein. 

2.3 Execution.  The Notes shall be executed on behalf of the City by the signatures of 
its Mayor and the City Administrator and shall be sealed with the seal of the City; provided that 
the seal may be intentionally omitted as provided by law.  In case any officer whose signature 
shall appear on the Notes shall cease to be such officer before the delivery of the Notes, such 
signature shall nevertheless be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if had remained 
in office until delivery.  In the event of the absence or disability of the Mayor or the City 
Administrator such officers of the City as, in the opinion of the City Attorney, may act in their 
behalf, shall without further act or authorization of the City Council execute and deliver the 
Notes. 

2.4 Delivery of Initial Notes.  Before delivery of the Notes there shall be filed with 
the Lender (except to the extent waived by the Lender) the following items: 

(1) an executed copy of each of the following documents: 

(a) the Loan Agreement; 

(b) the Pledge Agreement;  

(c) the Security Agreement;  

(d) the Mortgage Amendment; and 

(e) the Joint Powers Agreement. 

(2) an opinion of Counsel for the Borrower and LSH as prescribed by the 
Lender and Bond Counsel; 

(3) the opinion of Bond Counsel as to the validity and tax exempt status of the 
Notes; 

(4) evidence that the Borrower and LSH are organizations described in 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and are exempt from income taxation under Section 
501(c)(3) of the Code; and 

(5) such other documents and opinions as Bond Counsel may reasonably 
require for purposes of rendering its opinion required in subsection (3) above or that the 
Lender may reasonably require for the closing. 

93 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 6 
 

2.5 Disposition of Proceeds of the Notes.  Upon delivery of the Notes to Lender, the 
Lender shall, on behalf of the City, disburse the proceeds of the Notes for financing and 
refinancing the Project in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement. 

2.6 Registration of Transfer.  The City will cause to be kept at the office of the City 
Administrator a Note Register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may 
prescribe, the City shall provide for the registration of transfers of ownership of the Notes.  The 
Notes shall be initially registered in the name of the Lender and shall be transferable upon the 
Notes Register by the Lender in person or by its agent duly authorized in writing, upon surrender 
of the Notes together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the City Administrator, 
duly executed by the Lender or its duly authorized agent.  The following form of assignment 
shall be sufficient for said purpose. 

For value received ___________ hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
________________ the within Note of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, 
and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint ___________________ 
attorney to transfer said Note on the books of said City with full power of 
substitution in the premises.  The undersigned certifies that the transfer is made in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 2.9 of the Resolution authorizing the 
issuance of the Notes. 

Dated:         

         
Registered Owner 

Upon such transfer the City Administrator shall note the date of registration and the name and 
address of the new Lender in the applicable Note Register and in the registration blank appearing 
on the Notes. 

2.7 Mutilated, Lost or Destroyed Note.  In case the Notes issued hereunder shall 
become mutilated or be destroyed or lost, the City shall, if not then prohibited by law, cause to 
be executed and delivered, a new Note of like outstanding principal amount, number and tenor in 
exchange and substitution for and upon cancellation of such mutilated Note, or in lieu of and in 
substitution for such Note destroyed or lost, upon the Lender's paying the reasonable expenses 
and charges of the City in connection therewith, and in the case of a Note destroyed or lost, the 
filing with the City of evidence satisfactory to the City with indemnity satisfactory to it.  If the 
mutilated, destroyed or lost Note has already matured or been called for redemption in 
accordance with its terms it shall not be necessary to issue a new Note prior to payment. 

2.8 Ownership of Note.  The City may deem and treat the person in whose name the 
Note is last registered in the Notes Register and by notation on the Note whether or not such 
Note shall be overdue, as the absolute owner of such Note for the purpose of receiving payment 
of or on account of the principal balance, redemption price or interest and for all other purposes 
whatsoever, and the City shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

2.9 Limitation on Note Transfers.  The Notes will be issued to an "accredited 
investor" and without registration under state or other securities laws, pursuant to an exemption 

94 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 7 
 

for such issuance; and accordingly the Notes may not be assigned or transferred in whole or part, 
nor may a participation interest in the Notes be given pursuant to any participation agreement, 
except to  another "accredited investor" or "financial institution" in accordance with an 
applicable exemption from such registration requirements and with full and accurate disclosure 
of all material facts to the prospective purchaser(s) or transferee(s). 

2.10 Issuance of a New Note.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.9, the City shall, 
at the request and expense of the Lender, issue a new note, in aggregate outstanding principal 
amount equal to that of the Notes surrendered, and of like tenor except as to number, principal 
amount, and the amount of the periodic installments payable thereunder, and registered in the 
name of the Lender or such transferee as may be designated by the Lender. 

SECTION 3.  GENERAL COVENANTS. 

3.1 Payment of Principal and Interest.  The City covenants that it will promptly pay or 
cause to be paid the principal of and interest on the Notes at the place, on the dates, solely from 
the source and in the manner provided herein and in the Notes.  The principal and interest are 
payable solely from and secured by revenues and proceeds derived from the Loan Agreement 
and the Pledge Agreement, which revenues and proceeds are hereby specifically pledged to the 
payment thereof in the manner and to the extent specified in the Notes, the Loan Agreement, and 
the Pledge Agreement; and nothing in the Notes or in this Resolution shall be considered as 
assigning, pledging, or otherwise encumbering any other funds or assets of the City. 

3.2 Performance of and Authority for Covenants.  The City covenants that it will 
faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions 
contained in this Resolution, in the Notes executed, authenticated, and delivered hereunder and 
in all proceedings of the City Council pertaining thereto; that it is duly authorized under the 
Constitution and laws of the State of Minnesota including particularly and without limitation the 
Act, to issue the Notes authorized hereby, pledge the revenues and assign the Loan Agreement in 
the manner and to the extent set forth in this Resolution, the Notes, the Loan Agreement, and the 
Pledge Agreement that all action on its part for the issuance of the Notes and for the execution 
and delivery thereof has been duly and effectively taken; and that the Notes in the hands of the 
Lender are and will be valid and enforceable special limited obligations of the City according to 
the terms thereof. 

3.3 Enforcement and Performance of Covenants.  The City agrees to enforce all 
covenants and obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, upon request of the 
Lender and being indemnified to the satisfaction of the City for all expenses and claims arising 
therefrom, and to perform all covenants and other provisions pertaining to the City contained in 
the Notes and the Loan Agreement and subject to Section 3.4. 

3.4 Nature of Security.  Notwithstanding anything contained in the Notes, the Loan 
Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, the Security Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, or any 
other document referred to in Section 2.4 to the contrary, under the provisions of the Act the 
Notes may not be payable from or be a charge upon any funds of the City other than the revenues 
and proceeds pledged to the payment thereof, nor shall the City be subject to any liability 
thereon, nor shall the Notes otherwise contribute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the City 

95 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 8 
 

or, to the extent permitted by law, any of the City's officers, employees and agents.  No holder of 
the Notes shall ever have the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power of the City to pay 
the Notes or the interest thereon, or to enforce payment thereof against any property of the City 
other than the revenues pledged under the Pledge Agreement; and the Notes shall not constitute a 
charge, lien or encumbrance, legal or equitable, upon any property of the City; and the Notes 
shall not constitute a debt of the City within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory 
limitation; but nothing in the Act impairs the rights of the Lender to enforce the covenants made 
for the security thereof as provided in this Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge 
Agreement, and the Security Agreement, and in the Act, and by authority of the Act the City has 
made the covenants and agreements herein for the benefit of the Lender; provided that in any 
event, the agreement of the City to perform or enforce the covenants and other provisions 
contained in the Notes, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, the Security Agreement, 
and the Mortgage Amendment shall be subject at all times to the availability of revenues under 
the Loan Agreement sufficient to pay all costs of such performance or the enforcement thereof, 
and the City shall not be subject to any personal or pecuniary liability thereon. 

3.5 Qualified Tax Exempt Obligation.  In order to qualify the Notes as "qualified tax-
exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the "Code"), the City hereby makes the following factual statements and 
representations: 

(a) the Notes are not treated as "private activity bonds" under Section 
265(b)(3) of the Code; 

(b) the City hereby designates the Notes as qualified tax-exempt obligations 
for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code; 

(c) the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than 
obligations described in clause (ii) of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code) which will be 
issued by the City (and all entities whose obligations will be aggregated with those of the 
City) during the calendar year 2018 will not exceed $10,000,000; 

(d) not more than $10,000,000 of obligations issued by the City during the 
calendar year 2018 have been designated for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code; 
and 

(e) the aggregate face amount of the Notes does not exceed $10,000,000. 

SECTION 4.  MISCELLANEOUS. 

4.1 Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution shall be held or deemed to be or 
shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction 
or jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions or in all cases because it conflicts with any provisions of 
any constitution or statute or rule or public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances 
shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable in 
any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein 
contained invalid, inoperative, or unenforceable to any extent whatever.  The invalidity of any 

96 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 9 
 

one or more phrases, sentences, clauses or paragraphs in this Resolution contained shall not 
affect the remaining portions of this Resolution or any part thereof. 

4.2 Authentication of Transcript.  The officers of the City are directed to furnish to 
Bond Counsel certified copies of this Resolution and all documents referred to herein, and 
affidavits or certificates as to all other matters which are reasonably necessary to evidence the 
validity of the Notes.  All such certified copies, certificates and affidavits, including any 
heretofore furnished, shall constitute recitals of the City as to the correctness of all statements 
contained therein. 

4.3 Authorization to Execute Agreements.  The forms of the proposed Loan 
Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Joint Powers Agreement are hereby approved in 
substantially the form presented to the City Council, together with such additional details therein 
as may be necessary and appropriate and such modifications thereof, deletions therefrom and 
additions thereto as may be necessary and appropriate and approved by Bond Counsel prior to 
the execution of the documents.  The Mayor and the City Administrator of the City are 
authorized to execute the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, the Joint Powers Agreement, 
and such other documents as Bond Counsel consider appropriate in connection with the issuance 
of the Notes, in the name of and on behalf of the City.  In the event of the absence or disability of 
the Mayor or the City Administrator such officers of the City as, in the opinion of the City 
Attorney, may act on their behalf, shall without further act or authorization of the City Council 
do all things and execute all instruments and documents required to be done or executed by such 
absent or disabled officers.  The execution of any instrument by the appropriate officer or 
officers of the City herein authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of such 
documents in accordance with the terms hereof. 

4.4 Approval of Housing Program.  The housing program in substantially the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved.  

97 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 10 
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota, this 12th day of 
December, 2018. 

 
After full discussion thereof and upon vote being taken thereon, the following voted in favor 
thereof: 

 

 

and the following voted against the same: 

whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
                 Peter Lindstrom 
                 Mayor   
               
  
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
LEEHY                            Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS  ____  Against             City Administrator 
GUSTAFSON         
MIAZGA

98 of 208



11219782v3 
 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROGRAM FOR FINANCING  
A COMBINED MULTIFAMILY SENIOR HOUSING 
AND HEALTH CARE FACILITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
 

Proposal Authority.  Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 et seq. (the "Joint Powers Act") 

provides that two or more governmental units, by agreement entered into through action of their 

governing bodies, may jointly or cooperatively exercise any power common to the contracting 

parties, and may provide for the exercise of such power by one of the participating governmental 

units. The City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the "City"), the City of Lino Lakes, Minnesota, 

and the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, on behalf of 

the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota, have entered into such an agreement (the "Agreement"), which 

Agreement authorizes the City to exercise the powers granted under the Joint Powers Act.  

Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C (the "Act"), confers upon cities the authority to 

develop and administer programs of multifamily senior housing developments and health care 

facilities for seniors who need additional assisted living and special services under the 

circumstances and within the limitations set forth in the Act, specifically Minnesota Statutes, 

Section 462C.05, Subdivision 7.  Minnesota Statutes, Section 462C.07 provides that such 

programs for Minnesota multifamily housing and health care developments may be financed by 

revenue bonds issued by a city. This Program for Financing a Combined Multifamily Senior 

Housing and Health Care Facility Development (this "Program") is undertaken by the City to 

finance, in part, a Project (as hereafter described) owned and operated by Lyngblomsten Senior 

Housing, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation ("Lyngblomsten"), of which Heritage 

Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the "Borrower") is an affiliate.  The City 

expects to issue revenue notes (the "Notes") pursuant to the Act, in part, to assist in financing the 

Project, in part. 

General Description of the Project and Location.  The Project is located at 6075 Hodgson 

Road in Lino Lakes.  The City anticipates loaning the proceeds of the Notes to the Borrower, in 

part, to finance, in part, the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined multifamily 

senior housing and health care facility, totaling approximately 106,730 square feet (the 

"Project"). The living units of the Project are expected to include: 

99 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 A-2 
 

Units Number of 
Units 

Approximate 
Square Footage 

Per Unit 

Estimated Initial 
Rents Per Unit 

Independent Living:    
  One Bedroom 38 730 $ 1,800 
  One Bedroom & Den 33 900 $ 2,100 
  Two Bedroom 32 1,120 $ 2,650 
    
Assisted Living:    
  Studio 16 485 $ 2,975 
  One Bedroom 18 575 $ 3,275 
    
Memory Care:    
  Memory Care 16 515 $ 3,400 
    
Skilled Nursing Units:    
  One Bedroom (MA/PVT) 24 350     $ 267/day 
  One Bedroom (Medicare/HMO) 24 350     $ 475/day 
    
Townhomes:    
  Two Bedroom 30 1,800 $ 3,000 
    

     
Operation of the Project.  Lyngblomsten will operate the Project in accordance with 

applicable development restrictions, and all construction was and is subject to applicable state 

and local building codes.  The Project is and will be available for rental to the general public.  

Lyngblomsten is and will be required to operate the Project in accordance with state and local 

anti-discrimination laws and ordinances. 

Revenue Notes.  The Borrower has indicated that the amount of Notes required to finance 

the Project, in part, is not to exceed $5,000,000 and will mature in approximately 20 years.  The 

proceeds will, in part, finance the Project, in part, and pay certain costs of issuing the Notes. 

Allocation of Issuance Authority.  Because the Borrower is a nonprofit entity and an 

organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, 

no allocation of authority to issue tax-exempt bonds is required pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 

Chapter 474A.  The Notes will be issued pursuant to Section 462C.05, Subd. 1 of the Act and 

shall be payable primarily from revenues of the Program.  Issuance of the Notes is anticipated to 

occur in December, 2018. 

100 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 A-3 
 

Monitoring.  The Borrower expects to enter into suitable agreements with necessary 

parties to ensure consistent compliance with the objectives of this Program, as well as with the 

requirements of applicable law. 

Use of Note Proceeds.  The proceeds of the Notes will be loaned to the Borrower 

pursuant to a revenue agreement (the "Loan Agreement") by and between the City and the 

Borrower.  The Borrower will be required, pursuant to the Loan Agreement, to make payments 

sufficient to pay when due the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Notes. 

 
 

101 of 208



11219782v3 
 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF RAMSEY 
CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Administrator of the City of 

Falcon Heights, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the attached and foregoing 

extract of minutes with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a full, true 

and complete transcript of the minutes of a meeting of the City Council duly called and held on 

the date therein indicated, insofar as such minutes relate to a resolution authorizing the issuance 

of senior housing and health care revenue notes. 

WITNESS my hand this ____ day of December, 2018. 

 
 
_______________________________________ 
City Administrator 

 

102 of 208



        REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

      The City That Soars! 

Item Payable 2019 Truth in Taxation Hearing to Adopt Tax Levy and 2019 Budget 

Description Each year the City Council is required to adopt a budget and tax levy to fund City 
operations.  This action must be completed before the end of the year, and the 
adopted levy is then provided to Ramsey County so they can produce property tax 
statements for each parcel in the County.  On September 26th, the City Council 
adopted a preliminary levy and established December 12th as the date at which the 
public would be given an opportunity to address the Council about the proposed 
budget and tax levy.   

Before the Council, are a proposed property tax levy of $1,980,918 and a General 
Fund Budget of $2,668,698.  The levy and budget with a comparison to previous 
years is detailed below: 

2017 Levy  2018 Levy Proposed 2019 
Levy 

% Increase 
(Decrease)/ 
2017 to 2018 

Ad Valorem $1,152,646 $1,487,059 $1,747,260 17.5% 
Debt Service $125,585 $98,330 $233,658 137.6% 

Total $1,278,231 $1,585,389 $1,980,918 24.0% 

2017 General 
Fund Budget 

2018 General 
Fund Budget 

Proposed 2019 
General Fund 

Budget 

% Increase 
2018 to 2019 

$2,022,555 $2,405,810 $2,668,698 10.9% 

The impact of this proposed levy on a median valued home, which in 2018 is 
assessed at $281,100 (5.5% increase over 2018), is estimated to result in an increase of 
$198, in the City portion of the homeowner’s taxes. 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Public Hearing E2 

Attachment Resolutions(s) 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

103 of 208



A full presentation with more details will be presented at the City Council meeting 
and will be available on the City’s website.  In addition, attached to this report is the 
budget cover letter which goes into more detail about specific budget line items, 
factors influencing the proposed budget, and historical information.  
 

Budget Impact This budget preserves the core functions of the City’s current operations. 

Attachment(s) · Resolutions 18-38 Approving 2019 Tax Levy 
· Resolution 18-39 Approving 2019 City Budget  

 
Due to the size and cost of printing the 2019 Budget, the document is available on the 
City’s website and at City Hall. 
 
2019 Budget:  https://www.falconheights.org/vertical/Sites/%7BA88B3088-FA03-
4D5D-9D04-CCC9EF496399%7D/uploads/2019_Budget.pdf  
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council hold a public hearing and 
receive comment.  Once the hearing is closed, staff recommends that the City 
Council adopt attached resolutions regarding the 2019 Tax Levy and regarding the 
2019 City of Falcon Heights Budget. 
 

 
 

104 of 208



2019 Truth and 
Taxation Hearing

Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator
Roland Olson, Finance Director

105 of 208



Factors That Affect Taxes

Changes in the tax levy (or spending decision) made by the city, 
county, school, or special taxing authority

Changes in the market value of your property

Legislative changes

New taxes approved by referendum are applied to market value 
(not tax capacity)

106 of 208



Ramsey County Tax Statement

107 of 208



Market Value Exclusion

In 2011, State eliminated Market Value 
Homestead Credit (MVHC) and replaced 

it with Market Value Exclusion. 

Taxable Market Value is what is used to 
calculate your taxes.

Benefit to properties decreases as values 
rise

Only applies to homesteaded properties

108 of 208



Ramsey County Median Values
2019 Median Value 2018 Median Value % Change

Arden Hills $346,900 $333,800 3.9%

Falcon Heights $281,100 $266,600 5.4%
Gem Lake $283,800 $262,850 8.0%

Lauderdale $206,300 $189,100 9.1%

Little Canada $255,800 $240,800 6.2%

Maplewood $222,500 $209,600 6.2%

Mounds View $219,100 $197,300 11.0%

New Brighton $264,500 $242,400 9.1%

North St. Paul $185,200 $172,800 7.2%

Roseville $254,900 $236,900 7.6%

St. Paul $186,200 $173,900 7.1%

Shoreview $303,800 $289,800 4.8%

Vadnais Heights $269,400 $246,200 9.4%

White Bear Lake $222,500 $208,400 6.8%

True 2019 TAXABLE market value of median valued home is $ 269,159. 109 of 208



2019 Property Tax Allocation

110 of 208



Ramsey County Tax Rates

111 of 208



City Tax Rate History

112 of 208



History of Transfer of 
Reserves to General Fund

113 of 208



History of Property Tax Levy

114 of 208



History of Property Tax 
Levy, cont.

Overall levy has increased by $1,106,580 since 2004 with a $329,150 increase for 
2018  and a $395,529 increase for 2019 included. Primarily due to the increase in 
police service costs and increases to the debt levy portion  due to street projects..

No transfers from Reserves to General Fund operations since 2014. However, in 
2017 there was a $150,000 transfer to lower the debt levy for 2018.

Since 2014 to 2017, the average city portion tax increase on a median value home 
was $22 per year.  However, for 2018, the increase on a median value home was 
$177 and for 2019 the increase was $198 primarily due to increased costs of police 
services and debt service levy increase due to street projects.

115 of 208



Property Tax Impacts
Payable 2019 Payable 2018 Payable 2017 Payable 2016 Payable 2015

Median 
Valued Home

$281,100 $266,600 $252,600 $247,700 $251,500

Taxable 
Median Value 

after 
Exclusion

$269,159 $253,354 $238,094 $232,753 $236,895

Tax Capacity 
(1% of value)

2691 2534 2381 2328 2369

City Tax Rate 37.271% 31.780% 26.334% 25.840% 23.459%

City Taxes 1003 805 627 601 $556

Net Change 
Prior Year

$198
Increase

$177
Increase

$26 Increase $45 Increase $41 
Increase

$487 increase since 2015 for an average of $97 per year for the last 5 years116 of 208



Estimated Percentage Change in 2019 
Property Tax On Median Value Single 
Family Properties (as of 10/26/18)

117 of 208



2019 City Taxes on a Median 
Value Home in Ramsey County

118 of 208



2019 Total Property Taxes on a Median 
Value Home in Ramsey County

119 of 208



Stratified Change Property 
Taxes 2019 

TOTAL # PARCELS IN FALCON 
HEIGHTS: 1299

Cumulative

% of  Total
% of 
total

Decrease or 
"0" 157 12% 12%

$1 to $100 321 25% 37%

$101 to $200 118 9% 46%

$201 to $300 229 18% 64%

$301 to  $400 171 13% 77%

$401 to $500 118 9% 86%

> $500 185 14% 100%

Total: 1299 100%

120 of 208



2019 Expenditures

121 of 208



Cities Receive Sales Tax 
Exemption

Effective 2014

•2013 MN State Legislature passed State Law 
changes exempting cities from sales taxes

•General Fund operational expenditure savings 
are estimated at around $5,500 yearly

122 of 208



2019 Budgeted General 
Fund Expenditures By Dept.

123 of 208



2019 General Fund 
Expenditures by Department

124 of 208



Levy Comparisons
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Proposed 

2019
% Change

Ad 
valorem 

levy

$944,570 $1,014,116 $1,046,183 $1,152,646 $1,487,059 $1,747,260 +$260,201
+17% 

Debt 
levy

$139,280 $69,734 * $127,264 $125,585 $98,330 * $233,658 +$135,328 
+138%

Total 
levy

$1,083,850 $1,083,850 $1,173,447 $1,278,231 $1,585,389 $1,980,918 +$395,529 
+24%

* In 2017 a transfer of $150,000 from reserves to decrease debt levy.   125 of 208



2019 Proposed Budget 

• Police Services budget increased by $ 179,459. 
• 3.5% renewal rate estimated for health insurance 

through PEIP
• Expect license and permit revenues comparable to 

2018 levels.  Possible apartment complex built in 2019.

126 of 208



2019 Proposed Budget, cont.

There will be no transfer of reserve 
funds for general operating budget

LGA receipts from State of MN 
increased $2,941.  Fiscal Disparities 

increased $69,339

Overall, general fund expenditures 
and revenues are $2,668,698, or 10.9%, 
higher than the 2018 operating budget.

127 of 208



Additional Information

¢ Ramsey County Proposed Budget and Levy Hearing – Held Nov 
26th  – 6:30 pm – Union Depot-Red Cap Room 214 4th Street E St. 
Paul. 

¢ Roseville School District Proposed Budget and Levy Hearing –
Held Dec 18th – 6:00 pm - District Service Center – 1251 Cty Rd B2 
W, Roseville

¢ State of Minnesota Property Tax Refund Programs
l www.taxes.state.mn.us
l Regular Refund – based on income
l Circuit Breaker – if taxes increased over 12% and $100
l Senior Citizen Tax Deferral through City & Ramsey County
l Disabled Veteran Market Value Exclusion

¢ To contest your property valuation to be used for 2020 property 
taxes – watch for notices in the mail during March 2019.

128 of 208



For More Information:

¢ Visit: www.falconheights.org
¢ Call Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator at (651)792-7600
¢ E-mail: Sack.Thongvanh@falconheights.org

129 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

130 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
December 12, 2018 

 
No. 18-38 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019 TAX LEVY FOR THE CITY OF FALCON 
HEIGHTS, COUNTY OF RAMSEY, STATE OF MINNESOTA 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, County 
of Ramsey, State of Minnesota, that the following sums of money be levied for the taxes 
payable 2019, upon the taxable property in the City of Falcon Heights, for the following 
purposes: 
 
 CERTIFIED LEVY 
 
GENERAL FUND 
 

 
$1,747,260 

 
DEBT SERVICE 
(G.O. Fire Truck Bond, Series 2013B) 

 
 
$233,658 

  
TOTAL LEVY $1,980,918 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Administrator is hereby directed to transmit 
a certified copy if this Resolution to the County Auditor and should extend the tax levy 
in the amount of $1,980,918 to be collected for the year 2019.   
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
                    Peter Lindstrom  
                    Mayor     

       
      

LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
GUSTAFSON                        Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS  ____  Against     City Administrator 
LEEHY          
MIAZGA 
 

131 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

132 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
December 12, 2018 

 
No. 18-39 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE 2019 BUDGET 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights that the General Fund Operating 
Budget for the year 2019 in the amount of $2,668,698 and other Fund Budgets as listed are adopted.   
 

Fund Name Fund Number Amount 
($) 

Park Program Fund 201 35,790 
Charitable Gambling  600 
Community Garden 203 1,000 
Water Fund 204 14,582 
Recycling Fund 206 96,590 
Community Development Fund 208 37,365 
Street Light Utility 209 39,950 
Community Inclusion 210 38,650 
GO Improvement Cert. Series 
2013A 

311 74,337 

GO Equipment Cert. Series 2013 
B 

312 97,882 

GO Improvement Street Series 
2017A 

316 145,475 

General Capital Improvements 401 9,350 
Public Safety Capital 402 9,350 
Parks Recreation/Public 
Facilities Capital 

403 216,30 

TIF District #1-3 414 269,850 
Infrastructure Capital  419 156,350 
Street Improvements 2017 427 53,850 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
                 Peter Lindstrom  
                 Mayor  
                 
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
GUSTAFSON                               Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS  ____  Against           City Administrator 
LEEHY         
MIAZGA     

133 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

134 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item General Disbursements and Payroll 

Description 
 

General Disbursements through: 12/05/18  $170,406.01 
Payroll through: 11/30/18 $36,228.17 

Budget Impact The general disbursements and payroll are consistent with the budget.  

Attachment(s) · General Disbursements and Payroll  

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve general 
disbursements and payroll. 

 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent  F1 

Attachment General Disbursements and Payroll 
Submitted By Roland Olson, Finance Director 

135 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

136 of 208



137 of 208



138 of 208



139 of 208



140 of 208



141 of 208



142 of 208



143 of 208



144 of 208



145 of 208



146 of 208



147 of 208



148 of 208



149 of 208



150 of 208



151 of 208



152 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Approval of City Licenses 

Description 
 

The following individuals have applied for a Municipal Business License for 2019.  
Staff has received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Golden Tailor 
2. Peterson Dental 
3. Spire Credit Union 
4. Hair Designs Unlimited 
5. Twin Cities Laboratories 
6. Young Spa 
7. The F.I.T. Lab 
8. Otto Law P.A. 
9. Eighty Eight Notes School of Music 
10. Warner's Stellian 
11. Falcon Heights Gas Convenience, Inc 
12. TIES/Sourcewell Techonology  
13. American Family Insurance 
14. Cox Insurance Associates 
15. Get Pressed Dry Cleaning & Laundry  
16. John A Knutson & Co., PLLP 
17. H1 HH MN INC dba Honest 1 Auto Care Hamline Hoyt 
18. The Good Acre 
19. DZ LLC dba Snap Fitness  
20. DM Massage/ Coffman Ct. 
21. Merwin Liquors 
22. Bie Grand Enterprises Inc dba Hermes Floral 

 
The following individuals have applied for Liquor Licensure for 2019.  Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Stouts Pub 
2. Dino's Gyros 
3. New Fresh Wok, Inc (background check) 
4. Merwin Liquors (background check) 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Restaurant License for 2019.  Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure. 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018  
Agenda Item Consent F2 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Amanda Lor, Administrative 

Coordinator 

153 of 208



1. Dino's Gyros 
2. Stouts Pub 
3. New Fresh Wok, Inc 
4. Piper D, LLC dba Toppers Pizza 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Cigarette License for 2019.  Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Falcon Heights Gas Convenience, Inc 
2. Merwin Liquors 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Refuse License for 2019.  Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Tennis Sanitation 
2. Curbside Waste Inc 
3. Gene's Disposal 
4. Aspen Waste Systems Inc 
5. Republic Services  
6. Walter's Recycling & Refuse 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Gas Station License for 2019.  Staff 
has received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Falcon Heights Gas Convenience, Inc 
 
The following individuals have applied for a Retail Grocery License for 2019.  Staff 
has received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Falcon Heights Gas Convenience, Inc 
 
The following individuals have applied for a Massage License for 2019.  Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure. 

1. Hair Designs Unlimited (background check) 
2. DM Massage/ Coffman Ct. (background check) 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Home Occupation License for 2019. 
Staff has received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. Pamela M. Harris, PLLC 
2. The Touch-Up Artist, Inc 

 
The following individuals have applied for a Tree Sales License for 2018. Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. Falcon Heights Lauderdale Lions 
2. University of MN Forestry Club 
3.  

The following individuals have applied for a Bus Benches License for 2019. Staff 
has received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. United States Bench Corporation 

154 of 208



The following individuals have applied for a Tree Trimmers License for 2019. Staff 
has received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. Landscape and Tree, Inc
2. Three Trees Horticulture
3. The Davey Tree Expert Company dba S&S Tree and Horticultural

Specialists Inc.
4. Northern Arborists
5. Northeast Tree, Inc.

The following individuals have applied for a Carwash License for 2019. Staff has 
received the necessary documents for licensure.  

1. Falcon Heights Gas Convenience, Inc

Budget Impact N/A 
Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve the 2019 City 
License Applications contingent on background checks as required by each permit. 

155 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

156 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Designation of Prosecuting Attorney 

Description 
 

Each year the City of Falcon Heights designates a prosecuting attorney. This person 
works closely with the St. Anthony Police Department and City Staff in prosecuting 
all misdemeanor and felony level offenses as well as Ordinance Violations. For 
several years our prosecuting attorney has been Katrina Joseph. She also serves as 
the attorney for the City of Lauderdale. 
 

Budget Impact The monthly retainer will not change and has been included in the 2019 operating 
budget. 
 

Attachment(s) N/A 
 
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve Katrina Joseph and 
the law firm of Hughes and Costello as the City’s prosecuting attorneys for 2019. 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F3 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

157 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

158 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Appointment of City Attorney 

Description 
 

Falcon Heights has used the law firm of Campbell Knutson, P.A. for Civil Attorney 
services for many years. Roger Knutson is the main contact, but the City uses 
various attorneys in the firm for our daily needs. 
 
 

Budget Impact Funds have been allocated in the 2019 Budget. 
 
 

Attachment(s) N/A 
 
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve the law firm of 
Campbell Knutson, P.A. for civil legal services for 2019. 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F4 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

159 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

160 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Appointment of City Engineer 

Description 
 

For several years the City has contracted with the City of Roseville for engineering 
services. Staff is seeking to continue this relationship and appoint Roseville’s City 
Engineer, Jesse Freihammer, as the City Engineer for 2019. 
 
 

Budget Impact Funds have been allocated in the 2019 Budget. 
 
 

Attachment(s) N/A 
 
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends the approval of Jesse Freihammer and the City of Roseville 
Engineering Department as City of Falcon Heights’ Engineer for 2019. 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F5 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

161 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

162 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Appointment of City Auditor 

Description 
 

Each year the City is required to have an independent firm audit our financial 
records. For the past several years, we have used Kern-DeWenter-Viere as our 
auditors, and we have been very satisfied with their services. 

Budget Impact Funds have been allocated in the 2019 Budget. 

Attachment(s)  

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends the approval of KDV, Kern-DeWenter-Viere, as the City Auditor 
for 2019. 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F6 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

163 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

164 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Designation of Official Newspaper 

Description 
 

State statute requires that a city designate a legal newspaper of general circulation 
in the city. This newspaper is used when the city is required to publish legal 
notification regarding public hearings, elections and city financial matters. There 
are two local papers that service Falcon Heights: the Park Bugle and the Roseville 
Review. 
 
Staff recommends that the City designate the Roseville Review as its legal 
newspaper in 2019 for the following reasons. 
 
· The Roseville Review circulates to most households in Falcon Heights.    
· The Roseville Review is a weekly publication.  A monthly publication such as 

The Park Bugle would not suit the City’s needs, as the City Council meets twice 
a month and legal notices must be published on a more timely schedule. 

 
Budget Impact Funds have been allocated in the 2019 Budget for any costs associated with public 

notices. 
 
 

Attachment(s) N/A 
 
 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Designate the Roseville Review as the City’s legal newspaper for 2019. 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F7 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

165 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

166 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 2019 Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA) 

Description 
 

As part of the 2019 Budget process, employee salaries are adjusted based on various 
factors, one of which is a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA).  Incorporated into the 
approved 2019 budget is a three(3) percent increase for full time employees, 
including the City Administrator.  The three(3) percent increase will also apply to 
on-call and drill pay for the Fire Department.   
 
 

Budget Impact The three percent COLA is incorporated into the approved 2019 Budget. 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council approve a three percent cost 
of living adjustment for all full time city employees for 2019 as reflected in the 
approved 2019 Budget. 
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F8 

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

167 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

168 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Charitable/Lawful Gambling License for Falcon Heights Elementary PTA 

Description 
 

For the past several years the Falcon Heights Elementary PTA has held a 
fundraising raffle a part of their annual carnival event. Because the total value of the 
prizes is expected to be over $1,500, an exempt permit to conduct lawful gambling 
activity is required. The PTA is requesting that the City approve their application 
with no waiting period. They are making the request now for the carnival in 
February of 2018 so that they can begin printing and selling raffle tickets as soon as 
possible. 
 
If Council chooses to approve the charitable gambling application, the City would 
then need to sign the LG220 Application Form completed by the applicant and 
forward it to the Minnesota Gambling Control Board for review and final approval.  
 
 

Budget Impact             N/A 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that Council approve the exemption charitable gambling 
application for Falcon Heights Elementary PTA to conduct lawful gambling activity 
at their annual carnival and authorize the City Administrator to execute all 
necessary documents.   
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F9 

Attachment City’s Charitable Gambling Application 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

169 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

170 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 2018 Year End Budget Amendments 
 

Description 
 

Sometimes, at the end of the year, budget amendments need to be made to improve 
the financial statements for year end.   Staff recommends the following 
amendments: 
 
The Emerald Ash Borer Grant Fund (205) is to be closed during 2018 when the grant 
was completed.  The balance is to be transferred to the Infrastructure Fund.   Staff 
recommends increasing the budget line item 205-4205-97000 by $1,000 additional to 
allow for additional funds transferred to Infrastructure and completing transfers to 
close the fund.  
 
In the 2013B G. O. General Obligation Equipment Certificates Bond Fund (312) the 
arbitrage calculation requirement for the bond and yearly bond fees will result in 
increased costs for the bond fee line item 312-4312-94900.  Staff recommends 
amending the line item an additional $2,000.  
 
There has been a balance in TIF District #51 Fund (412) of $5,132.63 that per Ehlers 
and Associates can be spent on the 2017 Grove Street Improvement Project.  Staff 
recommends  establishing a budget line item of $6,000 for 412-4412-92040 in Fund 
412 and using the funds to help pay for the final pay estimate for the Grove project. 
 
The Grove Street Improvement Fund (427) also needs a budget amendment.   The 
original 2017 budget line item was inadvertently understated by $150,000.  An 
additional budget amendment needs to be made for the expenses on account  
427-4427-92098 for $150,000.   Some of the expenses are first paid out this account 
and then reimbursed from other sources like the expenses for the water line 
improvements. 
 
 

Budget Impact Amend budget line items as explained above.  

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F10     

Attachment N/A 
Submitted By Roland Olson, Finance Director 

171 of 208



Attachment(s) NA 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends amending the budget line items as recommended above and 
transferring as recommended.   

 
 

172 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
                REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
  The City That Soars! 

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Description  Grant Application to Target Corporate – Soccer Application 

Background 
 

The City of Falcon Heights regularly explores grant funding opportunities to 
enhance Parks and Recreation throughout the city. An opportunity to enhance our 
soccer programming through a Target Corporate grant application was presented to 
staff by a local resident in May at the Spring Together event.  

The effort of the grant is to primarily enhance our scholarship program. This 
program provides Parks and Recreation programming to low-income families who 
are residents of the City of Falcon Heights.  

Over the years, the scholarship program has received donations from various 
sources including individuals, local businesses and other grant opportunities.  

At the June 4th, 2018 Parks and Recreation Commission meeting, the commission 
voted unanimously to submit this application. 

At the June 27th, 2018 City Council meeting, the Council voted unanimously to 
submit this application as recommended by the Park and Recreation Commission.   

 

Budget Impact The grant funding will be spread over two years and would benefit up to 40 
participants. The check will be mailed in mid-December from Scholarship 
America’s office in Minnesota.   
 

Attachment(s) N/A 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommends that the Falcon Heights City Council accept the awarded grant 
amount of $1,000 from Target Corporation for Park and Recreation Programming to 
enhance the scholarship program for 2019 and 2020.    
 

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F11 

Attachment Award Letter  
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

173 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

174 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Removal of Hibo Ali from the Community Engagement Commission 

Description 
 

Ms. Hibo Ali was appointed to the Community Engagement Commission on 
February 28, 2018. 

 
Budget Impact N/A 

Attachment(s) · Resolution 18-40 Removal of Hibo Ali from the Community Engagement 
Commission 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommend approval of attached resolution to remove Hibo Ali from the 
Community Engagement Commission.   

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F12 

Attachment Resolution 
Submitted By Sack Thongvanh, City Administrator 

175 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

176 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
December 12, 2018 

 
No. 18-40 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 
RESOLUTION REMOVING HIBO ALI FROM THE COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT COMMISSION 
 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council consolidated the Human Rights Commission with the Neighborhood 
Commission to establish the Community Engagement Commission in 2015; 

 
WHEREAS, The community engagement commission shall serve in an advisory capacity to the city 
council regarding the effective, meaningful and equal involvement of Falcon Heights residents in their 
community. The commission will identify opportunities to collaborate with community, educational, 
business and social services groups and organizations; identify ways to improve the city’s public 
participation, identify under-represented groups, remove any barriers, and engage and promote increased 
participation for all residents, businesses, community and neighborhood organizations; review and 
recommend ways to improve the city’s communications efforts so as to facilitate effective two-way 
communication between the city and all residents, businesses, community and neighborhood 
organizations; review and recommend ways to help improve resident emergency preparedness and crime 
prevention programs.   
 
The commission shall review complaints of alleged human rights violations occurring within the city and 
secure equal opportunity for all residents of the city regarding public services, public accommodations, 
housing, employment and education. 
 
WHEREAS, Ms. Hibo Ali has missed a numbers of meetings and can no longer commit to the needs of 
the Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Staff, and Commission Chair recommended removal of Hibo Ali from Falcon Heights 
Community Engagement Commission. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota: 

 
1.  That the removal is approved and adopted by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights. 

 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - -- - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
         Peter Lindstrom  
        Mayor 
               
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
GUSTAFSON         Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS                              ____ Against      City Administrator 
LEEHY      
MIAZGA 

177 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

178 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Resignation of Stephen Sunderland from the Planning Commission 

Description 
 

Mr. Stephen Sunderland was first appointed to the Planning Commission in 2017. 
He has served two years on the Commission and was the Secretary in 2018. 

 His position on the Commission will be filled in early 2019. 
 

Budget Impact No changes 

Attachment(s) · Resolution 18-41 Accepting the resignation of Stephen Sunderland from the 
Planning Commission 

· Resignation Letter 
 

Action(s) 
Requested 

Staff recommend approval of attached resolution to accept the resignation of 
Stephen Sunderland from the Planning Commission.  

 
 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F13 

Attachment Resolution and Resignation Letter 
Submitted By Justin Markon, Community 

Development Coordinator 

179 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

180 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
December 12, 2018 

 
No. 18-41 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE RESIGNATION OF STEPHEN SUNDERLAND  
FROM THE CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City appointed Stephen Sunderland in 2017 as a member of the City of Falcon Heights 
Planning Commission; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 3, 2018, Stephen Sunderland submitted his letter of resignation with a last day 
of service being the Planning Commission meeting of December 3, 2018;   
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota: 

 
1.  That the “Letter of Resignation” is accepted by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights. 

 
 

 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  - -- - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
         Peter Lindstrom  
        Mayor 
               
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
GUSTAFSON         Sack Thongvanh 
HARRIS                              ____ Against      City Administrator 
LEEHY      
MIAZGA 
 

181 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

182 of 208



1

Justin Markon

From: Stephen 
Sent: Monday, December 03, 2018 7:59 PM
To: Justin Markon
Subject: RE: Planning Commission

Justin: 

I should have made my decision earlier.  I will not be able to continue as commissioner on the planning commission. 

Best of luck to you. 

Stephen Sunderland 

From: Justin Markon [mailto:justin.markon@falconheights.org] 
Sent: Monday, December 3, 2018 3:14 PM 
To: Stephen Sunderland 
Subject: Planning Commission 

Hi Stephen, 

I hope you’re doing well. We have missed you at the last couple Planning Commission meetings, and I am emailing to 
see if you plan to continue serving on the Commission. I heard from John Larkin that you may not be able to continue. I 
would appreciate a response soon so that we can continue to have a full Commission roster. 

Thanks much! 
‐Justin 

Justin Markon 

Community Development Coordinator 
City of Falcon Heights 
Office: 651-792-7613 
Fax:  651-792-7610 

“The City that Soars” 
“Families, Fields and Fair” 

183 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

184 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Appointment of Scott Wilson to the Planning Commission 

Description 
 

City Staff and the Chair for the Planning Commission interviewed Mr. Scott 
Wilson for the Planning Commission.  Mr. Wilson was forwarded to Mayor 
Lindstrom for final recommendation to the City Council.   
 
Appication 
Name: Scott Wilson 
Street Address: 1889 Snelling Ave N 
City, State, Zip Code:  Falcon Heights  MN  55113  
 
How Long at Above Address?: 6 years 
 
In Which Capacity Would You Like to Serve?: I am interested in joining the 
Planning Commission. 
 
What is the Reason You Would Like to Serve?: I have always been very 
interested in development and historic preservation. Since moving to Falcon 
Heights and living adjacent to the U of M Experimental Farm Plots I have 
become very diligent in following development news on campus.  I have built 
relationships with the agriculture school department heads and the manager of 
the experimental plots, which I feel could be of value to the Planning 
Commission. Recently I have worked with members of the Planning 
Commission revising some of the 2040 Comprehensive Land Plan.  I have been 
very impressed by their professionalism and wiliness to listen to concerned 
residents of Falcon Heights. I am a very proud and passionate resident of 
Falcon Heights and feel I could be an asset to the Planning Commission. 
 
Other Relevant  Background (Other Comments): I have a lot of experience 
with committee and commission work through my job at Minnesota Medical 
Association.  I staff a number of our committees, which includes recruitment, 
scheduling & managing meetings and following up with meeting minutes.  I 
feel this experience is relevant for working on the Planning Commission. 
 

Budget Impact N/A   

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Consent F14 

Attachment Resolution 
Submitted By Justin Markon, Community 

Development Coordinator 

185 of 208



 
Attachment(s) · Resolution 18-42 Appointment of Scott Wilson to the Planning 

Commission 
 

Action(s) Requested Staff recommend approval of attached resolution appointing Scott Wilson to 
the Planning Commission.  

 

186 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

 
December 12, 2018 

 
No. 18-42 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING SCOTT WILSON TO THE  
FALCON HEIGHTS PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission serves in an advisory capacity to the City Council 
on all policy matters relating to City planning, zoning, and land use;  

 
WHEREAS, City Staff and the Commission Chair have interviewed Scott Wilson and 

recommend appointment to the Falcon Heights Planning Commission. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota: 

 
1.  That the appointment is approved and adopted by the City Council of the City of Falcon 

Heights. 
 

 
 
 
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
                 Peter Lindstrom  
                 Mayor  
               
  
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
HARRIS                                 Sack Thongvanh 
GUSTAFSON ____  Against             City Administrator 
LEEHY         
MIAZGA 
 
 
 

187 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

188 of 208



                                                                                                         
  
         REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Families, Fields and Fair 
__________________________ 

          
      The City That Soars! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item Approve Final Payment to Valley Paving, Inc.  for the 2017 Pavement Management Project 

Description 
 

On March 22, 2017, the City Council awarded the 2017 Pavement Management Project 
(PMP) to Valley Paving, Inc.  All work on the project is completed and the contractor has 
requested final payment. 

Change order #8 documents a deduct of $2,408.96 from the contract for damage done to 
infrastructure of St Paul’s lighting system on Hoyt Avenue.  

 
Payment #9 is the final payment and is in the amount of $16,045.93 and includes the 
following work: 

· Pavement patching 
· Retainage 

 
With this pay estimate, the total amount paid to date on this project is $1,475,928.49. 
 
The following streets and alleys were a part of the 2017 PMP.  

· Folwell Avenue, Fulham Stree – Hoyt Avenue 

· Vincent Street, Hoyt Avenue – Folwell Avenue 

· Northrop Street, Hoyt Avenue – Folwell Avenue 

· Burton Street, Hoyt Avenue – Folwell Avenue 

· Coffman Street, Hoyt Avenue to Larpentuer Avenue 

 

Budget 
Impact 

The final contract amount, $1,012,714.53 is less than the original contract amount of 
$1,033,858.22.  Final paid contract amount will be $1,007,714.53.  
 
Final project funding is from the following sources: 

· Special Assessments - $204,571.02 
· Municipal State Aid (MSA) dollars - $200,000 
· City funds (infrastructure, utility) - $600,157.01 
· Saint Paul Regional Water Services – $471,200.45 

 

Meeting Date December 12, 2018 
Agenda Item Policy G1 

Attachment Final Payment & Resolution 
Submitted By Jesse Freihammer, City Engineer 

189 of 208



Attachment · Resolution 18-43 Accepting Work and Authorizing Final Payment for 2017 
Pavement Management Project (PMP) 

· Change Order #8 
· Payment #9 Final 

 
Action(s) 
Requested 

Approve Change Order #8 for the 2017 Pavement Management Project.  
Approve a Resolution to accept the work completed, authorize final payment, and 
commence the one-year warranty period for the 2017 Pavement Management Project. 
 

 

190 of 208



CITY OF FALCON HEIGHTS 
COUNCIL RESOLUTION 

December 12, 2018 

No. 18-43 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -  
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING WORK AND AUTHORIZING FINAL PAYMENT  
2017 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROJECT  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to a written contract signed with the City on March 22, 2017, 
Valley Paving Inc., of Shakopee, Minnesota, has satisfactorily completed the 
improvements associated with the 2017 Pavement Management Project contract. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Falcon Heights, 
Minnesota:  
 

1. That the work completed under said contract is hereby accepted and approved; 
and 
 

2. That the City Administrator is hereby directed to issue a proper order for the 
final payment of such contract, taking the contractor's receipt in full; and 
 

3. That the one year warranty period as specified in the contract shall commence on 
December 12, 2018; and 
 

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - - - -  
 
Moved by:      Approved by: ________________________ 
                 Peter Lindstrom  
                 Mayor  
               
  
LINDSTROM  ____      In Favor   Attested by:  ________________________ 
HARRIS                                 Sack Thongvanh 
GUSTAFSON ____  Against             City Administrator 
LEEHY         
MIAZGA 
 
 

191 of 208



BLANK PAGE 

192 of 208



���������� ��	
�������

������������������������������������������	
��������	��� �	
�������!�"���� ���

#!�
�� #!�
��$	��� %��
��&���'���(��)� $	��� %��
��&���'))�(����*�!�+��,!��-!�!.-�/��� 0����	-01
�!
� #�	���!�01
�!
� 2� 	-/1
��$!���! �#�	���!��
�!
���� $	���

#*�*��3$0��2���2*��4#%��*�*3�4�5�46���$���!�7���1
�7�/0	- �
5�!���� ��	
�������4���0�$���2%��8��*4�� #*�*�%��8��*4��#�%��)(���(��� 2���2%��8��*4����(�� ��4*���*4����(����4*���*��4�9��4$�$$��##:	--�7%	;!
�3
 ���������;��#�	,����<94����� 2���*3�4�0=��>*�*�2�5�46���$���9�?4*&@�<)�����'=322A�%�3$=3*5���B2���20?4$#=5����#�*�!���
��	 ����;!���/��<	C�
��������!
��< �C��
�	�!�
/����
��	 �����+
�!C��1�!
����+	�����1���+
��� ���.7�������=5����#�*����
��	 ����	����;!�������!�7+!��1
!���! ��/����!�+��,�=5����#������!
 1����/����!�	��!�!�
	-+��,��	--.��	!�/��+!��-� 	-/1
���
-7�4�=*5���0���<3*3#5���AD9?*?�22D�6���$�4$?4$��#*��$*5�*���*����
��	 ���+!-- �C�-�����!�+��,���%	7C�
�/����!�+��,-!����	.�;�+!--.�.71
!���! �������
��	 ��!C�!�1
 �	
����)�*�!���	
������� �;������,
�+
	
�	
�! !�	��� ����	
� �
��	 ��!C�	�E1��C�
�&!/	
7'	���!.1�	.-������+��, �;����.7��!���	
��������3/�����
��	 ���!
 1��1
,
�+
	
�1
	
�! !�	���	��!�!�
	-+��,��	�	//� �� ������!C�	 ����� �!�! 	-�	��<�����
��	 ��������;������!�������F1���	
	�E1��C�
��������
��	 �	C�1
�����
��	 ��!C�!
	  ���	
 �+!��9
$�*�)���GHIJKLMNOPHQRSTUVRWX STUV YZ[T YZ[T\][̂U _̀ aZT[Tb NVẀZTc̀Zd[ZeGaTUeW]bRWXfgf��)����� ��4$?3*#D#*�9 2# &@�<)�����' � &@�<)�����'c̀Zd[ZeGaTUeW]bRWXfgfJWTahi jklmnfoXpqrGsaZeUH]dU]RWXoJWTahi jklmnfoXpqrt01
�!
� 	�����7!���F1!���/��/����	-���E� ����5�46�34��4*���**39�& �� ,�
�'$1�����!� �	
�������
��	 �*!C��	�uv3�3
 ��	���.7uv3�$� ��	���.7uv3�3
 ��	���.7uv3�$� ��	���.7 =��,!
�$	7�=��,!
�$	7��	-�
�	�$	7��	-�
�	�$	7� .� �uwv3�4����	
���uv9	7.���;!���!/+��,	//� ������ �
���--!
�����	�!�
�����;��A7%��E� ��
�!
����8����0��!�	CC�� �����;��A7��
��	 ����:	--�7%	;!
�3
 JsUITaTUWxy[ZZUzWTa[zZWTa{a]T[̂[{aZT[ZTs[ẑWZT]âTXI[eZaT̀]U|bTsUP[zT][̂TITaTUN[dMZe[ZUU][zxW]cYRPSR}\YL\HIMIHR~�aZdxW]̂WV{h[aẐU�[TsITaTUaZdcUdU]ahN[dL̀ hUz�\Wh[̂bXMh[e[|[h[TbdWUzZWTèa]aZTUUx̀Zdz�[hh|Ua�a[ha|hUX
193 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

�#*+
,-
�,.�/#00�
����
�1)1"
������
2�
����)133�4
56
�����
���7�"�
.��
��8&���&���
9��&��:
&
����
-�3"��
;�1<���
�5�
������"�
-1��3
��	
������
6��
�������"����

 /�33�	
��)1�<
#�"
 ����
����
�)�
�
 .��=����4
56
����� ������"�
6�� ��&��/��$��
6�� 6��-��
���1�$� ���������
&
����������>������
?
����������
2���
�����������@ABCDEFC
GHAIBCJ,�1<1��3
������"� K�48�84������������"�
����<�� K��4��������)1��$
������"� K�4��84������ LIBMJ
NBFIHOPDPM,�1<1��3 K�48�84�������$$1�1���3 6��*���3 K�48�84������

 QADR
@PDCSTSPM
UVSJ
WPXIPJC QADR
@PDCSTSPM
UA
YECP ZPJJ
GHAIBC
WPCESBPM ZPJJ
[DP\SAIJ
[E]HPBCJ GHAIBC
[ESM
UVSJ
WPXIPJC UACÊ
GHAIBC
[ESM
UA
YECP
@ABCDEFC
_̀ab̀ c_deffghi c_dìjdfekgif cbgbb c_dijfdkkegjh c_hdbijgfl c_dìjdfekgif���"���
����1��$�
������m 
GHAIBC
[ESM
UVSJ
@ABCDEFC
LSBÊ
[E]
WPXIPJCc_hdbijgfl 
nG[
_eiabjbab__
o_̀ab̀p c_deffghi c_dìjdfekgif cbgbb c_dijfdkkegjh c_hdbijgfl c_dìjdfekgif���"���
����1��$�
������m 

 #
����q	
"���1(	
����
�
-1��3
�r�s1���1��
���
q���
s�$�
�(
���
����$
������"�4
����
���
������"�
���
q���
"�s�3���$4
����
���
���1��
�s����
�(
>��=
.�� �
1�
��1�
-1��3
/��"���
���
q���
���(��s�$
��$
���
*���3
/�3��
�(
���
>��=
���(��s�$
1�
�""��$��"�
 1��4
��$
��������
��4
���
���s�
�(
���
������"�
1�
��
��� �
1�
��1�
-1��3
/��"���������)�$
t	

�1�	
��<1����

2��� �����)�$
t	
/�33�	
��)1�<
#�"

������"���

2��� �����)�$
t	

��q31"
>��=�
21��"���

2���

194 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
������"�
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�*ABCDEFC
GEHIJBC
1KIIEDH/DAI
LECJ ,A
LECJ MADN
*JDCOPOJQ
GJD
GJDOAQ RIAKBC
0JCEOBJQ
GJD
GJDOAQ RIAKBC
GEOQ
GJD
GJDOAQ RIAKBC
GEOQ
,A
LECJ�=��=����� �=�������� S��8=����� S=8������ S��8����=� S��8����=����������� ���������� S���8������ S��8��=��= S���8�����= S���8���������������� ���������� S�=�8�����= S��8����=� S���8������ S���8���������������� ���������� S���8������ S�=8������ S���8������ S���8���������������� ���������� S���8������ S�8������ S���8����=� S�8���8��=������������� ���������� S���8��=��� S�8�=���� S��=8�����= S�8���8�����=���������� ���������� S=�8����=� S�8������ S=�8�=���� S�8��=8���������������� ���������� S���8=����� TS=�8��=���U S���8������ S�8=��8���������������� ���������� S�8�����= TS�=8�=����U S��8�=���� S�8=��8����=�,ACEVWXYZ[\]̂[_̀ab\_ Ycbcc YZ[\]̂[_̀ab\_ 

1RG
Z̀\dĉcdcZZ
eZ]dc]f
GEHIJBC
1KIIEDHgAb /DAI
LECJ ,A
LECJ MADN
*JDCOPOJQ
GJD
0JhKJWC RIAKBC
0JCEOBJQ
GJD
0JhKJWC RIAKBC
GEOQ
GJD
0JhKJWC� �=��=����� �=�������� S��8=����� S=8������ S��8����=�� ���������� ���������� S���8������ S��8��=��= S���8�����=� ���������� ���������� S�=�8�����= S��8����=� S���8������= ���������� ���������� S���8������ S�=8������ S���8������� ���������� ���������� S���8������ S�8������ S���8����=�� ���������� ���������� S���8��=��� S�8�=���� S��=8�����=� ���������� ���������� S=�8����=� S�8������ S=�8�=����� ���������� ���������� S���8=����� TS=�8��=���U S���8������� ���������� ���������� S�8�����= TS�=8�=����U S��8�=����,ACEVWXYZ[\]̂[_̀ab\_ Ycbcc YZ[\]̂[_̀ab\_
195 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

�#*+
,-
�,.�/#00�
����
�1)1"
������
2�
����)133�4
56
�����
���7�"�
.��
��8&���&���
9��&��:
&
����
-�3"��
;�1<���
�5�
-1��3
��	
������
6��
�������"����

 /�33�	
��)1�<
#�"
 ����
����
�)�
�
 .��=����4
56
����� ������"�
6�� ��&��/��$��
6�� 6��-��
���1�$� ���������
&
����������>������
?
����������
2���
�����������@ABCDEFC
GHAIBCJ,�1<1��3
������"� K�48�84������������"�
����<�� K��4��������)1��$
������"� K�4��84������ LIBMJ
NBFIHOPDPM,�1<1��3 K�48�84�������$$1�1���3 6��*���3 K�48�84������QADR
@PDCSTSPM
UA
VECPW���
W1$
#��X� K�4���4������W�"=����� K��������<�
,�$�� K��4������.���3�X����3
�<���X��� K��4������>��=
,�$�� K����5����1�3
,�
;��$ K����*���3 K�48��4����8� 


 QADR
@PDCSTSPM
UYSJ
ZP[IPJC QADR
@PDCSTSPM
UA
VECP \PJJ
GHAIBC
ZPCESBPM \PJJ
]DP̂SAIJ
]E_HPBCJ GHAIBC
]ESM
UYSJ
ZP[IPJC UACÈ
GHAIBC
]ESM
UA
VECPGHAIBC
]ESM
UYSJ
LSBÈ
]E_
ZP[IPJCabcdefghij 
kG]
blfmegemebb
nbomeop abdliihcf abdfogdilqhfi aehee abdfgidqqlhgc abcdefghij abdfogdilqhfi���"���
����1��$�
������r 


196 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� *���

+,-.
/0
1/234,553
����
�6)6"
������
7�
����)688�9
:;
�����
���<�"�
;��
=��
��*&���&���
>��&��?
@6��8
��	
������
;��
�2AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
2RNNLSMTUV 0SUN
WLQO -U
WLQO XUSY
+OSQZ[ZO\
BOS
1O]RÔQ ANURPQ
1OQLZPO\
BOS
1O]RÔQ ANURPQ
BLZ\
BOS
1O]RÔQ� �*��*����� �*�������� _��9*����� _*9������ _��9����*�� ���������� ���������� _���9������ _��9��*��* _���9�����*� ���������� ���������� _�*�9�����* _��9����*� _���9������* ���������� ���������� _���9������ _�*9������ _���9������� ���������� ���������� _���9������ _�9������ _���9����*�� ���������� ���������� _���9��*��� _�9�*���� _��*9�����*� ���������� ���������� _*�9����*� _�9������ _*�9�*����� ���������� ���������� _���9*����� _̀*�9��*���a _���9������� ���������� ���������� _�9�����* _̀�*9�*����a _��9�*����-UQLb̂cdCeEJHefDgVEf dGVGG dCeEJHefDgVEf
2AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
0RP\ZPh
+LQOhUSM
1OiUSQ0RP\ZPh
+LQOhUSM
TUV XUSY
+OSQZ[ZO\
-U
WLQO 5Ô 
̂ANURPQ
1OQLZPO\ 5Ô 
̂BSOjZUR̂
BLMNOPQ̂ ANURPQ
BLZ\
-kẐ
1O]RÔQ -UQLb
ANURPQ
BLZ\
-U
WLQO��� ���9������ ���� ���9������ �9������ ���9��������� ��*9������ ���� ���9*����� �9������ ��*9��������� ��9�����* ���� ��9��*�*� ������ ��9�����*��* ��9*����� ���� ��9������ ��*��� ��9*�������� ��9������ ���� ��9�*���* �9��*��* ��9��������� ���9*����� ���� ���9�����* �9������ ���9*�������� ���9��*��� ���� ���9������ �9������ ���9��*������ *��9����*� ���� *��9*���*� *9������ *��9����*���� �*9������ ���� �*9*����� �*���� �*9��������� *9������ ���� �9������ &�9������ *9������-UQLb̂cdCeEJHefDgVEg dGVGG dCeEHfeggDVHl dCleGEHVfD dCeEJHefDgVEg
2AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
0RP\ZPh
2URSmO
1OiUSQAmmURPQZPh
TUV 0RP\ZPh
2URSmO ANURPQ
BLZ\
-kẐ
1O]RÔQ 1OjẐO\
+UPQSLmQ
ANURPQ 0RP\̂
3PmRNnOSO\
-U
WLQO BLZ\
-U
+UPQSLmQUS
-U
WLQO� :��6"6��8
̀:=�=
o
����a
&
@�8"��
p�6q��� ��9*�*��� ���9*���*� ���9����*� ���9**����� r�"�8 &�9������ ���9������ ���9������ ��*9������� r�"�8
&
=���s
=� ��
&
@�8"��
p�6q��� �9������ ���9*����� �*�9������ ���9��*���* t����
u�686�	
@��$ *9������ ���9������ ��*9������ *��9����*�� =��6���	
=� ��
&
@�8"��
p�6q��� �*���� ��9������ ��9������ �*9������-UQLb̂cdCleGEHVfvdCeHGEelgHVHgdCeECEegClVvgdCeEJHefDgVEg
197 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQOA4,20_A,2
C
�= ���=���� ��9̀ a�
<�b���#��
c<d̀ �9e f
@ g����� ��� � g���� ��� g�8�����=�� �������� h�=h
��
�#�����̀ :h ���i g�8������ � � g���� � g�8�������� �������� �=h
��
�#��
<�b���f�<<
a
c<���#�fe f
@ g������ ��� � g���� ��� g��8�����=�� �������� �̀ :<d�j�d9�:ì f�
dk��
� f
@ g������ � � g���� � g�8�������� �������� 9�:ì f�
��<d#:l�&����&a ���i g������ � � g���� � g�������� �������� ��:6̀ 9
�#�����f�<<
###
&l��:#d� �
k g���=� �� � g���� �� g�8�������� �������� h6��#6j̀ j<
d������h
��f
m'mh d��� g�8������ � � g���� � g����,MQSnU
/ML
1OPQVMW
A4,20_A,2
Co
 pGqGG 
 prstCEDqGJuSUO
uVv
� �������� 9̀ m#f#w�d#̀: f< g��8�=���� � � g���� � g��8�=����� �������� �f���#:l d��� g�8������ � � g���� �� g��8=������ �������� l�jmm#:l d��� g�8������ � � g���� �� g��8=�����= ���=���� ��9̀ a�
<�b���#��
c<d̀ �9e f
@ g���� ��� � g���� ��� g�8=������ ���=���� ��9̀ a�
�j�m�:6
ljdd�� f
@ g���� �=�� � g���� ���� g=�8=������ ���=���� ��9̀ a��̀ :���d�
b�fx <
k g��=� ��� � g���� ���� g��8������� ���=���� ��9̀ a��̀ :���d�6�#a�b�k��a�9�:d <
k g���� ��� � g���� ��� g=8������� ���=���� ��9̀ a�m#dj9#:̀ j<��a�9�:d <
k g���� ���� � g���� ���� g��8��=���� ���=���� ��9̀ a�
�#�����̀ : ���i g����=� � � g���� � g����=��� ���=���� ��9̀ a�
9�:ì f��̀
��d�i
m�<#: ���i g=����� � � g���� � g�8�������� ���=���� <�b#:l�̀ :���d���a�9�:d
c@jff6��die f
@ g���� ���� � g���� ���� g�8�������� ���=���� <�b#:lm#dj9#:̀ j<��a�9�:d
c@jff6��die f
@ g���� ��� � g���� ��= g�8������
198 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO�� ���=���� <�_̀�a�
��<b#:a ���c d��=��� � � d���� � d��=��=�= �������� �e99e:�f��̀�b#e: �
g d����� ��� � d���� �=�� d=�8��=����� �������� <hia��6��f��̀�b#e: �
g d����� ��� � d���� ���= d��8�������� �������� <�_��ba��:h_��ie��ej
k_̀l �
g d����� ��� � d���� ���� d��8�������� �������� �aa��a�b�a��6#:a
�:6�e9���b#e: <b� d������ �= � d���� ����� d�8=������� �������� <b���b
<j�����kj#bc
�#�mh�i�ee9l ceh� d��=��� �� � d���� �= d�8�����=�� �������� j�b�� 9a�_ d����� �� � d���� �� d�������� �������� �aa��a�b�
i�<�k�̀ l
�_�<<
� �
g d����� ��� � d���� ��� d�8�������� �������� @h__
6��bc���_�9�b#e: <
g d���� ����� � d���� ����� d��8�������� �������� i#bh9#:eh<��b�c#:a9#fbh�� be: d������ �� � d�8������ ����=� d��8�������� �������� <�j
�:6
<��_�e:b�e_
ne#:b
#:i#bh9#:eh<��̀�9�:b _
@ d���� ���� � d���� � d�����= �������� c�h_
i#bh9#:eh<��̀�9�:b���_�9�b#e:
k_̀l �
g d����� ���� � d���� ���� d��8�������� �������� i#bh9#:eh<9�b��#�_
@e�b��m
�e�b a�_ d���� ���� � d���� ��= d�8�������� �������� bg��
<�j���=�ij���#:a
�eh�<�9#f
��bcj�g be: d����� =�� � d���� ������ d��8�������� �������� bg��
<�j������j���#:a
�eh�<�9#f be: d����� ���� � d���� ���� d��8��=����� �������� bg��
<�j������j���#:a
�eh�<�9#f
k����l be: d����� ���� � d���� ���� d���8�=������ �=������ a��:h_��i��m@#__ be: d����= ���� � d���� ���� d��8�������� �������� o��o
��
�#��<�j��
�_�<<
̀o _
@ d���=� �� � d���� =� d�8�������� �������� o��o
��
�#��<�j��
�_�<<
̀o _
@ d=���= �= � d���� ��� d�8�=���=�� �������� o�=o
��
�#��<�j��
�_�<<
̀o _
@ d����� ��� � d���� ��� d��8������
199 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO�� �������� <�:#_��̀ 
<�a��<��b#��
����#� ���c d����� =� � d���� �� d�8�������= �������� �e::��_
_e�f#<_#:g<_�h�_h�� ���c d������ � � d���� � d�8�����=�� �������� #:<���_#e:
cei� ���c d������ �� � d���� � d�������� ���=���� ����#�
<��b#���h�j
<_e�
jef ���c d������ �� � d���� � d�����=�� ���=���� �6kh<_
<��b#���h�j
<_e�
jef ���c d����� � � d���� � d������� ���=���� ����#�
b�ib�
jef ���c d������ � � d���� � d�8�������� ���=���� �6kh<_
b�ib�
jef ���c d������ �= � d���� �� d�8�����==� ���=���� ���i���
b�ib�jef ���c d��=��� � � d���� = d�8=�����=� ���=���� a�_��
h_#i#_̀cei� ���c d�8������ � � d���� = d�8�=��=�=� ���=���� �f��b�_#e:
@e�a�_��
9�#:e@@<�_
e����i���9�:_ ���c d�8��=��� � � d���� � d�8����=�=� ���=���� c̀ 6��:_#:<_�ii�_#e: ���c d�8������ � � d���� � d=�8��=���== ���=���� l�l
g�_�
b�ib��:6
jefl ���c d�8������ = � d���� = d�8=�����=� ���=���� l�l
g�_�
b�ib��:6
jefl ���c d�8������ �� � d���� �= d��8����=�=� ���=���� �l
6#
a�_��
9�#:���i���9�:_ i
@ d����� �� � d���� �� d=8������=� ���=���� �l
6#
a�_��
9�#:���i���9�:_ i
@ d����� ��=� � d���� ���� d���8������=� ���=���� a�_��
<̀ <_�9��9eb�i< i
@ d����� ��� � d���� ��� d�8������=� ���=���� �l
��
a�_��<��b#�����i���9�:_ i
@ d=���� �� � d���� �� d�8�������� ���=���� �l
��
a�_��<��b#�����i���9�:_ i
@ d����� �= � d���� ��� d��8�����=�� ���=���� �l
��
a�_��<��b#�����i���9�:_
&�#��
ae�m
e:ì i
@ d�=��� ��� � d���� � d������ ���=���= l�l
#:<hi�_#e:l <
̀ d����� �� � d���� = d������� ���=���= l=l
�eì<_̀ ��:�#:<hi�_#e:l <
̀ d�=��� �� � d���� = d�������= ���=���� 6h�_#i�
�:6g��̀ 
#�e:@#__#:g< ij d���� �=�� � d���� ���� d�8����=�
200 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO�� �������� �_:<̀ �a�̀��̀�b
c�<#:
̀d��c e
@ f=���=� �� � f���� �= f�8�������� �������� �_:<̀ �a�̀��̀�b
c�<#:
̀d��� e
@ f������ � � f���� � f������ �������� �_:<̀ �a�̀9�:b_e�
̀d��
c_g��
�h#<̀ #:i�#�� e
@ f����=� � � f���� � f������ �������� �_:<̀ �a�̀9�:b_e�
̀d��
� e
@ f�����= �� � f���� �� f�8����=��� �������� �_:<̀ �a�̀9�:b_e�
̀d��
c e
@ f�����= �� � f���� � f�8�������� �������� 9�:b_e�
��<̀ #:i�&���� ���b f����=� �� � f���� �� f�8�������� �������� 9�:b_e�
��<̀ #:i�&����&g ���b f=���=� � � f���� � f�8==��=��� �������� @a�:#<b
�:6#:<̀�ee
��<̀ #:i�<<�9ced
@_�6�#g�j�d ���b f�����= � � f���� � f������ �������� �6ka<̀ 
��̀�bc�<#:
@��9�
�:6�#:i ���b f����=� �� � f���� � f�����= �������� �6ka<̀ 
9�:b_e�@��9�
'
�#:i ���b f�����= �� � f���� �� f��8����=��� �������� ��b�c#e#̀�̀�9�:b_e�
_���̀�b
c�<#:l#:̀ ��#_�m ���b f������ � � f���� � f������ �������� ��:6_9
�#�����e�<<
###
&i��:#̀� �
d f����� �� � f���� � f������ �������� n=n
�_:���̀ �j�eon <
@ f=��� �=�� � f���� ���=� f�=8�������� �������� n�n
�_:���̀ �j�eon <
@ f���� ���� � f���� ������� f��8��=����� �������� �_:���̀ �
�a�c�:6
ià �̀�6�<#i:
c��� e
@ f����� =��� � f���� ���= f��8�������� �������� �_:���̀ �
�a�c�:6
ià �̀�6�<#i:
c���l9��b#:�
e�#6m e
@ f����� ���� � f���� ���� f��8��=��=�� �������� n�n
�_:���̀ �6�#g�j�d��g�9�:̀ n <
d f����� ��� � f���� ����= f��8�������� �������= n�n
�_:���̀ �g�ee�d
ià �̀�n <
d f�=��� �� �� f�8����=� �� f�8�����=
201 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� ����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO�� �������� _�̀ :��_�6��6#̀<
6a9�< <
@ b����� ��= � b���� �� b=8=����=�= �������� _�̀ :��_�66a9�< <
@ b����� ��� � b���� ��= b��8�������� �������� _��@@#�
�a:_�ac c< b=�8�=���� � � b���� � b=�8�=������ �������� <#c_
@�:��8
_d��e# c
@ b���� ��� � b���� �� b������� �������� <_a�9
6��#:#:c�_
��a_��_#a: ���e b����� �� � b���� �� b�8�������� �������� <�6#9�:_�a:_�ac
caf_d��
�a9�a<_ c
@ b���� ���� � b���� ��� b�8�==����� �������� ��a<#a:�a:_�ac<̀ ���g#<a� c< b������ � � b���� ��� b�������� ���=���� hà c�g��6_a�<a#c
ha��ai �
d b����� ��� � b���� =����= b��8�������� �������� <a66#:f
_d��<�c_
_ac���:_ <
d b���� ���� � b���� =����� b��8�������� �������= ed6�a<��6 <d b���� ��� =� b������ �=���� b�8�������� �������� j=j
<ac#6
c#:���akdj c
@ b���= ��� � b���� =�� b������,MQSlU
/ML
1OPQVMW
mSUO
mVno
 pqrJGstuG 
 pCrqEHrvqutDu*]SWwO
.LnOL
C�� ���=���� ��9ag�
@�:�� c
@ b����� �� � b���� �� b�������� �������� #:<_�cc
@�:�� c
@ b����� �� � b���� �� b�8������,MQSlU
/ML
*]SWwO
.LnOL
Co
 pGtGG 
 pCrJqDtGG*]SWwO
.LnOL
D��� �������� �a:_���_a�6ai:
_#9�6̀ �#:f
_e�i�_��
<è _6ai:
��a��<< c
< b�8������ � � b���� � b�8������,MQSlU
/ML
*]SWwO
.LnOL
Do
 pGtGG 
 pCrJqutHs*]SWwO
.LnOL
q��= �������� j6��#6̀ à <
_����j
��c
h'hj _��� b������ �� � b���� �� b�8=�����,MQSlU
/ML
*]SWwO
.LnOL
qo
 pGtGG 
 psrEHGtGG*]SWwO
.LnOL
E��� �������� #:<_�cc�ff��f�_�
h�<��<
_�9�a���d��_�e
�_
��_�eh�<#:< c
< b=����� � � b���� � b=�������� �=������ ��_�#:#:f
i�cc< c< b��=��= � � b���� � b��=��=��� �������� 9�:eac�
��<_#:f�&����&� ���e b=����� � � b���� � b=�����
202 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO��� ��=����� #:<_�̀ 
̀�a
�̀ ����b�c
�_
��_�de�<#:< 
̀< f�8=����� � � f���� � f�8=�������� ��=����� #:<_�̀ 
̀6�#g�h�i��g��< 
̀< f������ � � f���� � f��������� �������= #:<_�̀`�̀:6<���#:j
����b�c 
̀< f������ � � f���� � f��������� �������= �̀:6<���#:j���̀���9�:_ 
̀< f�8������ � � f���� � f�8������,MQSkU
/ML
*]SWlO
.LmOL
En
 oGpGG 
 oqrGsHptH*]SWlO
.LmOL
H��� �������� ��d�e#̀#_�_�9�:db̀ �
b���_�d
e�<#:#:_��#b� 
̀< f�=8������ � � f���� � f�=8������,MQSkU
/ML
*]SWlO
.LmOL
Hn
 oGpGG 
 otErtJHpGG*]SWlO
.LmOL
s��= ���=���� ��9bg�
<�h���b�c
�:6
�̀����̀ �<<
��jj��j�_� 
̀< f�8�����= � � f���� � f�8�����=��� �������� #:<_�̀ 
̀̀bh��b@#̀�
��<_#:jb:
:�h
��_�de�<#: <̀ f������ � � f���� � f������,MQSkU
/ML
*]SWlO
.LmOL
sn
 oGpGG 
 otrDHDpsG*]SWlO
.LmOL
J��� �������= 9#̀̀ 
e#_u9#:bu<<u�@��� 
̀< f�8������ � � f���� � f�8��������� �������� �6vu<_
j�_�g�̀g�
w@#__�6<_��̀
�#:jx ���d f����� �� � f���� �� f�8=�������� �������� �6vu<_
9�:db̀ �w@#__�6
<_��̀�#:jx ���d f������ �� � f���� �� f�8������,MQSkU
/ML
*]SWlO
.LmOL
Jn
 oGpGG 
 oCJrtEJpst*]SWlO
.LmOL
q��� ��=����� �b:6u#_
<i<_�9 <̀ wf�8=�����x� � wf�8=�����x� wf�8=�����x,MQSkU
/ML
*]SWlO
.LmOL
qn
 yoDrEGqpzs{
 yoDrEGqpzs{1TYYkOROWQSk
AlLOOROWQ
C��� �������� �̀ ���#:j
�:6j�uee#:j <̀ f�8������ � � f���� � f�8�������� �������� ��_�d
e�<#:9b6#@#��_#b: ���d f������ = � f���� = f�8������,MQSkU
/ML
1TYYkOROWQSk
AlLOOROWQ
Cn
 oGpGG 
 oHrCJGpGG1TYYkOROWQSk
AlLOOROWQ
D
203 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
BLMNOPQ
+QOR
1QSQTU4VWO +QOR XOUPLVYQVMW ZWVQU ZWVQ
BLVPO *MWQLSPQ
[TSWQVQ\ [TSWQVQ\,]VU
0ÔTOUQ ARMTWQ,]VU
0ÔTOUQ [TSWQVQ\
,M
XSQO ARMTWQ
,M
XSQO��� �������� �_:���̀ �
�a�b�:6
cà �̀�6�<#c:
b��= d
@ e����� ��� � e���� =�� e��8����=���� �������� <f��66�6f��6g__69ad�f �h e=���� �� � e���� ���� e������,MQSiU
/ML
1TYYiOROWQSi
AjLOOROWQ
Dk
 lGmGG 
 lCnoCDpmpnBLMNOPQ
,MQSiUk
 lCoDppmnE
 lCoEJHopDqmEp
1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
*MWQLSPQ
*]SWjOUrMm ,\YO XSQO 2sYiSWSQVMW 2UQVRSQOt
ARMTWQ ARMTWQ
BSVt
,M
XSQO
�_� ����u�_�$�� ��������

#�
�""��$��"�
 5��
���
���v�
�(
��5�
"�����"�8
	��
���
����w	������5x�$
��$
5�����"��$
��
���(��v
���
 ��y
��
�7����$
w	���
(�77� 5�u
���)5�5����
g#dd
b�
��#6
g#̀f
���z
d_��d@a:6<
gf����<�
̀�5�
������"�
���)5$��
(��8
�v��u
�������5�u�8
���
��v�)�7
�(
��
�{5��5�u
(��"�|
gf����<�
̀�5�������"�
���)5$��
(��
���
��5����77��5��
�(
���
�{5��5�u
(��"�|gf����<�
̀��
������"���
���
���)5$�$
���
�5�	
 5��
��5���5"��
��
��v�)�
��$
��5����77
���
�{5��5�u
(��"�|
gf����<������
5�"����$
(��
��5�
�$$5�5���7
 ��y
���77
w�
��5$
(��
 5��7�"�7
(��$�
��7	�
:_g
̀f���@_��8
#̀
#<
f��bh9à a�ddh
�c���6
�:6
a:6��<̀ __6
̀f�̀�
��
̀��������"���
 577
"�v�7���
��5�
 ��y�
��
��	v���
(��
��5�
 ��y75���$
�w�)�
 577
w�
w	
��u��5���$
��5�
��5"���
��
������"�
�5v�5�
��"���u�$�
=�
̀�5�
����u�
_�$��
"�)���
���
y�� �
��$���5"5����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�5v�
�$;���v���
}5(
��	~����5w���w7�
��
���
 ��y
"�)���$
w	
��5�
����u�
_�$���
#(
���������"���
5�"���
��y�� �
��$
�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��y����
�((�"��
"����
��
5v��"��
���
"�5�5"�7
����8
���
������"��������)��
���
�5u��
��
������
��
�$;���v���
��
���
������"��v����
��
������"�
�5v�
5�
�""��$��"�
 5��
9�6_̀ 
�=���
e�8������ e�8������

<�� <���7�v����7�u���v��� ��������� g#dd
b�
��#6
g#̀f
���z
d_��d
@a:6<
gf����<�
̀�5�������"�
���)5$��
(��8
�v��u
�����
��5�u�8
v�$5(5"��5���
���� 
����v
�� ��
"��"�
w��5��
��$
���
"7���5�u
��$
u��ww5�u�(
w����
��$
�v�77
������
gf����<�
̀��
������"���
������)5$�$
���
�5�	
 5��
��5�
��5"��
��
$�
��5�
 ��y�
gf����<������
5�"����$
(��
��5�
�$$5�5���7
 ��y
���77
w�
��5$
(��
 5��7�"�7
(��$�
��7	�
:_g8
̀f���@_��8
#̀
#<
f���bh9à a�ddh
�c���6
�:6
a:6��<̀ __6
̀f�̀�
��
̀��������"���
 577
"�v�7���
��5�
 ��y�
��
��	v���
(��
��5�
 ��y75���$
�w�)�
 577
w�
w	
"�����"�
��5�
��5"���
��
������"�
�5v�
5���"���u�$�
=�
̀�5�
<���7�v����7
�u���v���
"�)���
���y�� �
��$
���5"5����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�5v�
�$;���v���
}5(��	~
����5w���w7�
��
���
 ��y
"�)���$
w	
��5�
<���7�v����7�u���v����
#(
���
"�����"���
5�"���
��y�� �
��$�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��y
����
�((�"��
"����
��
5v��"��
���"�5�5"�7
����8
���
������"���
�����)��
���
�5u��
��
������
���$;���v���
��
���
������"�
�v����
��
������"�
�5v�
5��""��$��"�
 5��
9�6_̀ 
�=��� e�8������ e�8������
204 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
*LMNOPQN
*RPMSTUVLW ,XYT ZPNT 2[Y\PMPN]LM 2UN]̂PNT_
Â L̀MN Â L̀MN
BP]_
,L
ZPNT
�a� ����b�a�$�� ��������� c#dd
e�
��#6
c#fg
���h
da��d
@i:6<
cg����<�
f�5�������"�
���)5$��
(��8
�j��b
�����
��5�b�8
"�j������5��
(��������"���
$� �
�5j�
$��5�b
���
 ����
����$� �
���"���
k	�������
cg����<�
f��
������"���
���
���)5$�$
���
�5�	
 5����5�
��5"��
(��
��5�
 ��l�
cg����<�
�����
5�"����$
(��
��5��$$5�5���7
 ��l
���77
k�
��5$
(��
 5��
7�"�7
(��$�
��7	�
:acfg���@a��8
#f
#<
g���em
9ifi�ddm
�n���6
�:6i:6��<faa6
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 577
"�j�7���
��5� ��l�
��
��	j���
(��
��5�
 ��l
75���$
�k�)�
 577
k�
k	
��5���5"���
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
��"���b�$�
=�
f�5�
����b�
a�$��"�)���
���
l�� �
��$
���5"5����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�5j��$;���j���
o5(
��	p
����5k���k7�
��
���
 ��l
"�)���$
k	
��5�����b�
a�$���
#(
���
������"���
5�"���
��l�� �
��$�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��l
����
�((�"��
"����
��
5j��"��
���"�5�5"�7
����8
���
������"���
�����)��
���
�5b��
��
������
���$;���j���
��
���
������"�
�j����
��
������"�
�5j�
5��""��$��"�
 5��
9�6af
�=��� q�8������ q�8������
<�� <���7�j����7�b���j��� ���=����� cg����<�
f�5�
"�����"�
���)5$��
(��8
�j��b
�����
��5�b�8���
�$$5�5��
�(
e��=
���"����
���k
��$
n������
cg����<�f�5�
"�����"�
���)5$��
(��8
�j��b
�����
��5�b�8
���
�$$5�5��
�(<���$$�$
g��$ ��$
9�7"��
cg����<�
f��
������"���
������)5$�$
���
�5�	
 5��
��5�
��5"��
��
$�
��5�
 ��l�
:ac8fg���@a��8
#f
#<
g���em
9ifi�ddm
�n���6
�:6i:6��<faa6
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 577
"�j�7���
��5� ��l�
��
��	j���
(��
��5�
 ��l
75���$
�k�)�
 577
k�
k	
"�����"���5�
��5"���
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
��"���b�$�
=�
f�5�<���7�j����7
�b���j���
"�)���
���
l�� �
��$
���5"5����$"����
��$
"�����"�
�5j�
�$;���j���
o5(
��	p
����5k���k7�
��
��� ��l
"�)���$
k	
��5�
<���7�j����7
�b���j����
#(
���"�����"���
5�"���
��l�� �
��$
�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��l����
�((�"��
"����
��
5j��"��
���
"�5�5"�7
����8
���
������"��������)��
���
�5b��
��
������
��
�$;���j���
��
���
������"��j����
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
�""��$��"�
 5��
9�6af
�=��� q��8������ q��8������
�a� ����b�a�$�� ��������� #�
�""��$��"�
 5��
���
���j�
�(
��5�
������"�8
	��
���
����k	������5r�$
��$
5�����"��$
��
���(��j
���
 ��l
��
�7����$
k	���
(�77� 5�b
���)5�5����
c#dd
e�
��#6
c#fg
���h
da��d@i:6<�
cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��
(��
�����b��5���$
��5�
��5"�
(��
6�"5$����
����8
���s
"�75k��8
k�77�$��$
k��
7����$�
cg����<�
�����
5�"����$
(��
��5�
 ��l
���77k�
��5$
(��
 5��
7�"�7
(��$�
��7	�
:ac
fg���@a��8
#f
#<g���em
9ifi�ddm
�n���6
�:6
i:6��<faa6
fg�f���
f��
������"���
 577
"�j�7���
��5�
 ��l�
��
��	j���
(��
��5� ��l
75���$
�k�)�
 577
k�
k	
����b��5���$
��5�
��5"���
��������"�
�5j�
5�
��"���b�$�
=�
f�5�
����b�
a�$��
"�)���
���l�� �
��$
���5"5����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�5j�
�$;���j���
o5(��	p
����5k���k7�
��
���
 ��l
"�)���$
k	
��5�
����b�
a�$���
#(���
������"���
5�"���
��l�� �
��$
�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7 ��l
����
�((�"��
"����
��
5j��"��
���
"�5�5"�7
����8
���������"���
�����)��
���
�5b��
��
������
��
�$;���j���
��
���������"�
�j����
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
�""��$��"�
 5��
9�6af�=��� q�8=����� q�8=�����

205 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
*LMNOPQN
*RPMSTUVLW ,XYT ZPNT 2[Y\PMPN]LM 2UN]̂PNT_
Â L̀MN Â L̀MN
BP]_
,L
ZPNT
�a= ����b�a�$�� ���������

c#dd
e�
��#6
@a�
c#fg
���h
da��d
@i:6<�cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��
(��8
�j��b
�����
��5�b�8���
5����77��5��
�(
$�5)� �	
��)����
cg����<�
f�5�
������"����)5$��
(��
���
5����77��5��
�(
7��$�"��5�b
���
��"k
��
����@�7 �77
�)��
cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��
(��
����7�"�j���
�(
�� 
����5�5�b
 �77
l7�"k�
�7��b
�5$� �7k
�$b�
�������
m����
@�7 �77
�)��
cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��(��
���
�7�"�j���
�(
(�l�5"
��$
�
5�"�
"7���
��"k
5�
(����
�(
�"��"�
l��5��
�7��b
����7� �
�)��
cg����<�
f�5�
������"����)5$��
(��
���
�7�"�j���
�(
�bb��b���
l���
j����5�7
5�
������� �	
��
�
��j�����	
���"�
5�
���
"��"�
l��5�
����5�
������7��b
����7� �
�)��
cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��
(�����
�$$5�5���7
7��$�"��5�b
 ��k
5�
l�� ���
�����
m����
��$�����
m
����
@�7 �77
�)��
cg����<�
f�5�
������"�
���)5$��(��
�
�� 
����j
�� ��
"���5�b8
�&����&��
:acfg���@a��8
#f
#<
9ifi�ddn
�o���6
�:6i:6��<faa6
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 577
"�j�7���
��5� ��k�
��
��	j���
(��
��5�
 ��k
75���$
�l�)�
 577
l�
l	��b��5���$
��5�
��5"���
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
��"���b�$�
=�
f�5�����b�
a�$��
"�)���
���
k�� �
��$
���5"5����$
"����
��$"�����"�
�5j�
�$;���j���8
5(
��	8
����5l���l7�
��
���
 ��k"�)���$
l	
��5�
����b�
a�$���
#(
���
������"���
5�"�����k�� �
��$
�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��k
����
�((�"��
"������
5j��"��
���
"�5�5"�7
����8
���
������"���
�����)��
���
�5b����
������
��
�$;���j���
��
���
������"�
�j����
��
������"��5j�
5�
�""��$��"�
 5��
9�6af
�=���
p�8������ p�8������

�a� ����b�a�$�� ��������� c#dd
e�
��#6
c#fg
���h
da��d
@i:6<
cg����<�
f�5�������"�
���)5$��
(��8
�j��b
�����
��5�b�8
����l575���5��
 ��k��
�
�q5��5�b
"��"�
l��5��
�7��b
����7� �
�)��
l�� ����7�)�7��$
�)�
��$
@�5�)5� 
�)��
cg����<�
f��
������"����
���)5$�$
���
�5�	
 5��
��5�
��5"��
��
����l575����
����q5��5�b
����j
�� ��
"��"�
l��5���
cg����<�
�����
5�"����$(��
��5�
�$$5�5���7
 ��k
���77
l�
��5$
(��
 5��
7�"�7
(��$�
��7	�:ac
fg���@a��8
#f
#<
g���en8
9ifi�ddn
�o���6�:6
i:6��<faa6
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 577
"�j�7�����5�
 ��k�
��
��	j���
(��
��5�
 ��k
75���$
�l�)�
 577
l�
l	��b��5���$
��5�
��5"���
��
������"�
�5j�
5�
��"���b�$�
=�
f�5�����b�
a�$��
"�)���
���
k�� �
��$
���5"5����$
"����
��$"�����"�
�5j�
�$;���j���8
5(
��	8
����5l���l7�
��
���
 ��k"�)���$
l	
��5�
����b�
a�$���
#$
���
������"���
5�"�����k�� �
��$
�����5"5����$
�$$5�5���7
 ��k
����
�((�"��
"������
5j��"��
���
"�5�5"�7
����8
���
"�����"���
�����)��
���
�5b��
��������
��
�$;���j���
��
���
������"�
�j����
��
������"��5j�
5�
�""��$��"�
 5��
9�6af
�=��� p�=8������ p�=8������

206 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �*���

+,-.
/0
1/234,553
����
�6)6"
������
7�
����)688�9
:;
�����
���<�"�
;��
=��
��*&���&���
>��&��?
@6��8
��	
������
;��
�2AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
+LMNOPQN
+RPMSTUVLW -XYT ZPNT 3[Y\PMPN]LM 3UN]̂PNT_
Â L̀MN Â L̀MN
BP]_
-L
ZPNT
�a� ����b�a�$�� ����������

c#dd
e�
��#7
c#fg
���h
da��d
@i;7=
cg����=�
f�6�������"�
���)6$��
(��
���
���"����
��$
6����88��6��
�(
�
8� ���(68�
"��"�
j��6�
"���6�b�
cg����=�
f�6�
������"����)6$��
(��
���
��k�)�8
�(
�� ��
$��6��b�
��"l
��$
����8�"�k���
�(
�8���
�
b��)�8
(��
���"�6�b
��
���
�
"��"�
j��6����
����8� �
�)��
cg����=�
f��
������"���
���
���)6$�$���
�6�	
 6��
��6�
��6"��
��
$�
��6�
 ��l�
cg����=�
�����6�"����$
(��
��6�
�$$6�6���8
 ��l
 688
j�
��6$
(��
 6��
8�"�8(��$�
��8	�
;ac
fg���@a��9
#f
#=
g���em
;ifi�ddm�n���7
�;7
i;7��=faa7
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 688"�k�8���
��6�
 ��l�
��
��	k���
(��
��6�
 ��l
86���$
�j�)�
 6��j�
j	
��b��6���$
��6�
��6"���
��
������"�
�6k�
6�
��"���b�$�
*�f�6�
����b�
a�$��
"�)���
���
l�� �
��$
���6"6����$
"������$
"�����"�
�6k�
�$<���k���9
6(
��	9
����6j���j8�
��
���
 ��l"�)���$
j	
��6�
����b�
a�$���
#(
���
������"���
6�"�����l�� �
��$
�����6"6����$
�$$6�6���8
 ��l
����
�((�"��
"������
6k��"��
���
"�6�6"�8
����9
���
������"���
�����)��
���
�6b����
������
��
�$<���k���
��
���
"�����"�
�k����
��
"�����"��6k�
6�
�""��$��"�
 6��
:�7af
�*���
o�9������ o�9������

�a� ����b�a�$�� ��������
#�
�""��$��"�
 6��
���
���k�
�(
��6�
������"�9
	��
���
����j	������6p�$
��$
6�����"��$
��
���(��k
���
 ��l
��
�8����$
j	���
(�88� 6�b
���)6�6����
c#dd
e�
��#7
c#fg
���h
da��d@i;7=
cg����=�
f�6�
������"�
���)6$��
(��
k6886�b
�(��k�����	
 6����
j6��k6����
��k��
��$
k6886�b
�(
)��6���6������"�6���
�8��b
g�	�
�)��
��
������
������
�8��6�b
��$$��6��b��
cg����=�
f�6�
������"�
���)6$��
(��
���6����88��6��
�(
(6���$
����8
k����8�
�6�b�
��$
b���
)�8)�
�6�b��cg����=�
�����
6�"����$
(��
��6�
�$$6�6���8
 ��l
 688
j�
��6$(��
 6��
8�"�8
(��$�
��8	�
;ac
fg���@a��9
#f
#=
g���em:ifi�ddm
�n���7
�;7
i;7��=faa7
fg�f�
��
f��������"���
 688
"�k�8���
��6�
 ��l�
��
��	k���
(��
��6�
 ��l86���$
�j�)�
 6��
j�
j	
��b��6���$
��6�
��6"���
��
������"�
�6k�6�
��"���b�$�
*�
f�6�
����b�
a�$��
"�)���
���
l�� �
��$���6"6����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�6k�
�$<���k���9
6(
��	9����6j���j8�
��
���
 ��l
"�)���$
j	
��6�
����b�
a�$���
#(
���������"���
6�"���
��l�� �
��$
�����6"6����$
�$$6�6���8
 ��l����
�((�"��
"����
��
6k��"��
���
"�6�6"�8
����9
���
������"��������)��
���
�6b��
��
������
��
�$<���k���
��
���
"�����"��k����
��
"�����"�
�6k�
6�
�""��$��"�
 6��
:�7af
�*���

o��9�*���� o��9�*����
�a� ����b�a�$�� ���������� c#dd
e�
��#7
c#fg
���h
da��d
@i;7=
cg����=�
f�6�������"�
���)6$��
(��9
�k��b
�����
��6�b�9
"�k������6��
(��������"���
$� �
�6k�
$��6�b
���
 ����
����$� �
���"���
j	�������
cg����=�
f��
������"���
���
���)6$�$
���
�6�	
 6����6�
��6"��
(��
��6�
 ��l�
cg����=�
�����
6�"����$
(��
��6��$$6�6���8
 ��l
���88
j�
��6$
(��
 6��
8�"�8
(��$�
��8	�
;acfg���@a��9
#f
#=
g���em
:ifi�ddm
�n���7
�;7i;7��=faa7
fg�f�
��
f��
������"���
 688
"�k�8���
��6� ��l�
��
��	k���
(��
��6�
 ��l
86���$
�j�)�
 688
j�
j	
��6���6"���
��
������"�
�6k�
6�
��"���b�$�
*�
f�6�
����b�
a�$��"�)���
���
l�� �
��$
���6"6����$
"����
��$
"�����"�
�6k��$<���k���
q6(
��	r
����6j���j8�
��
���
 ��l
"�)���$
j	
��6�����b�
a�$���
#(
���
������"���
6�"���
��l�� �
��$�����6"6����$
�$$6�6���8
 ��l
����
�((�"��
"����
��
6k��"��
���"�6�6"�8
����9
���
������"���
�����)��
���
�6b��
��
������
���$<���k���
��
���
������"�
�k����
��
������"�
�6k�
6��""��$��"�
 6��
:�7af
�*��� qo�9*�����r qo�9*�����r

207 of 208



���������� ��	
������

������������������������������������������	��������� ����!������"�#$%��&��'�(���)%� �����

*+,-
./
0.123+442
����
�5)5"
������
6�
����)577�8
9:
�����
���;�"�
:��
<��
��=&���&���
>��&��?
@5��7
��	
������
:��
�1AB
CDEFGHGFGCC
ICJFGJK
*LMNOPQN
*RPMSTUVLW ,XYT ZPNT 2[Y\PMPN]LM 2UN]̂PNT_
Â L̀MN Â L̀MN
BP]_
,L
ZPNT*LMNOPQN
*RPMST
,LNP\UabcdecfdWDG bdgecHGWCf

208 of 208


	1 - CCAgenda_12-12-18
	D1 - CCMIN_14_Nov
	E1 - RCA_Conduit Bond-Heritage Apartments
	E1(2) - Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project) MET COUNCIL LETTER
	E1(3) - Letter to Lisa Barajas_MetCouncil(cc for Sack Thongvanh)
	E1(4) - 11150284-v4-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_ JOINT POWERS AGREEMENT
	1. Minnesota Statutes, Section 471.59 et seq. (the “Joint Powers Act”) provides that two or more governmental units, by agreement entered into through action of their governing bodies, may jointly or cooperatively exercise any power common to the cont...
	2. In connection with revenue bonds issued under Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C (the “Act”), Section 462C.14, Subd. 3 provides for joint action between cities pursuant to the Joint Powers Act.
	3. On November 9, 2009, pursuant to the Act, the Saint Paul HRA issued its $3,200,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2009B (Heritage Apartments Project) (the “2009B Note”) pursuant to Resolution No. 09-10/28-5 adopted by the Saint ...
	4. The Borrower has proposed that the Parties enter into this Agreement pursuant to the Joint Powers Act and the Act in order to provide for issuance of Falcon Heights' $[1,700,000] Senior Housing Revenue Refunding Note (Heritage Apartments Project), ...
	5. Saint Paul HRA has previously approved a housing finance program related to the 2009B Note and the Heritage Apartments Project (the “Heritage Apartments Program”), as required by the Act, and Falcon Heights hereby adopts the same.
	6. A housing finance program related to the Lino Lakes Project will be adopted by Falcon Heights, as required by the Act.
	7. Each Party will adopt a resolution (i) evidencing its intent to enter into this Agreement, and (ii) granting approval to the issuance of the Notes as required under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”).
	8. Falcon Heights shall exercise the powers of the Joint Powers Act and the Act by adopting, approving, and executing such resolutions, documents, and agreements as shall be necessary or convenient to authorize, issue, and sell the Notes and such othe...
	9. The Notes shall be special, limited obligations of Falcon Heights, payable solely from proceeds, revenues, and other amounts pledged thereto and more fully described in the Loan Agreement between Falcon Heights and the Borrower, dated as of Decembe...
	10. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Falcon Heights will require that, as a condition to issuing the Notes, the Borrower shall have paid all fees of the Parties and all costs incurred by the Parties in the authorization, execution, delivery, and perfor...
	11. This Agreement shall terminate upon the retirement or defeasance of the last of the outstanding Notes, and this Agreement may not be terminated in advance of such retirement or defeasance.
	12. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

	E1(5) - 11219857-v2-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_PLEDGE AGREEMENT (2)
	1. In order to secure the due and punctual payment of the Notes and all other sums due the Lender under the Loan Agreement, the Issuer does hereby pledge and assign to the Lender all of the Issuer's right, title and interest in and to the Loan Agreeme...
	2. [Reserved.]
	3. The Issuer hereby authorizes the Lender to exercise, whether or not a default exists under the Notes or an Event of Default has occurred under the Loan Agreement, either in the Issuer's name or the Lender's name, any and all rights or remedies avai...
	4. The Issuer will not:
	(a) exercise or attempt to exercise any remedies under the Loan Agreement, except as permitted by Sections 6.2 and 7.9 of the Loan Agreement, or terminate, modify or accept a surrender of the same, or by affirmative act, consent to the creation or exi...
	(b) receive or collect or permit the receipt or collection of any payments, receipts, rentals, profits or other moneys under the Loan Agreement (except as allowed under Section 7.9 thereof) or assign, transfer or hypothecate (other than to the Lender ...

	5. The Issuer expressly covenants and agrees that the Lender shall be entitled to receive all payments under the Loan Agreement (except any payments due the Issuer under Section 7.9 thereof), and hereby authorizes and directs the Borrower to make such...
	6. The Lender agrees to advance the purchase price of the Notes directly to the Borrower as provided in the Notes and the Loan Agreement.  In accordance with Section 7.9 of the Loan Agreement the Lender hereby assumes the Issuer's and Lender's obligat...
	7. If an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, and not cured within an applicable cure period, and be continuing, the Lender may exercise any one or more or all, and in any order, of the remedies hereinafter set forth, in ad...
	(a) The Lender may, without prior notice of any kind declare the principal of and interest accrued and any premium (as described in the Loan Agreement) on the Notes immediately due and payable.
	(b) The Lender may exercise any rights and remedies and options of a secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in the State of Minnesota and any and all rights available to it under the Loan Agreement securing payment of the Notes.

	8. Whenever any of the parties hereto is referred to, such reference shall be deemed to include the successors and assigns of such party; and all the covenants, promises and agreements in this Pledge Agreement contained by or on behalf of the Issuer o...
	9. The unenforceability or invalidity of any provision or provisions of this Pledge Agreement shall not render any other provision or provisions herein contained unenforceable or invalid.
	10. This Pledge Agreement shall in all respects be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.  This Pledge Agreement may not be amended or modified except in writing signed by the Issuer and the Lender.
	11. This Pledge Agreement may be executed, acknowledged and delivered in any number of counterparts and each of such counterparts shall constitute an original but all of which together shall constitute one agreement.
	12. The terms used in this Pledge Agreement which are defined in the Loan Agreement shall have the meanings specified therein, unless the context of this Pledge Agreement otherwise requires, or unless such terms are otherwise defined herein.
	13. No obligation of the Issuer hereunder shall constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general credit or taxing powers, but shall be payable solely out of the proceeds and the revenues derived under the ...

	E1(6) - 11220237-v3-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_LOAN AGREEMENT (2)
	ARTICLE I   DEFINITIONS, EXHIBITS AND RULES OF INTERPRETATION
	Section 1.1 Definitions.  In this Agreement the following terms have the following respective meanings unless the context hereof clearly requires otherwise:
	Section 1.2 Rules of Interpretation.
	(1) This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.
	(2) The words "herein" and "hereof" and words of similar import, without reference to any particular section or subdivision, refer to this Agreement as a whole rather than to any particular section or subdivision hereof.
	(3) References herein to any particular section or subdivision hereof are to the section or subdivision of this instrument as originally executed.
	(4) Where the Borrower is permitted or required to do or accomplish any act or thing hereunder, the Issuer may cause the same to be done or accomplished with the same force and effect as if done or accomplished by the Borrower.
	(5) The Table of Contents and titles of articles and sections herein are for convenience only and are not a part of this Agreement.
	(6) Unless the context hereof clearly requires otherwise, the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and the masculine shall include the feminine and vice versa.
	(7) Articles, sections, subsections and clauses mentioned by number only are those so numbered which are contained in this Agreement.
	(8) References to the Notes as "tax exempt" or to the "tax exempt status of the Notes" are to the exclusion of interest on the Note from gross income pursuant to Section 103(a) of the Code.


	ARTICLE II   REPRESENTATIONS
	Section 2.1 Representations by the Issuer.  The Issuer makes the following representations as the basis for its covenants herein:
	(1) The Issuer is a municipal corporation pursuant to the laws of the State of Minnesota;
	(2) There is no pending or, to the undersigned's actual knowledge, without inquiry or investigation, threatened suit, action, or proceeding against the Issuer before any court, arbitrator, administrative agency, or other governmental authority that ch...
	(3) To the actual knowledge of the undersigned, without inquiry or investigation, the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Notes, and the Pledge Agreement will not constitute a breach of or default under any existing (a) provision of any spec...
	(4) No proceeding of the Issuer for the issuance, execution or delivery of this Agreement, the Notes, or the Pledge Agreement has been repealed, rescinded, amended or revoked and Lender is entitled to rely on the same as if the same were fully incorpo...

	Section 2.2 Representations by the Borrower.  The Borrower makes the following representations as the basis for its covenants herein:
	(1) The Borrower is a Minnesota nonprofit corporation in good standing, is duly authorized to conduct its business in all states where its activities require such authorization, has power to enter into this Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, and the S...
	(2) Not more than five percent (5%) of the proceeds of the Notes will be used, directly or indirectly, to finance property used in an unrelated trade or business of the Borrower determined by applying Section 513(a) of the Code or in the trade or busi...
	(3) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, and the Security Agreement, the consummation of the transactions contemplated thereby, and the fulfillment of the terms and conditions thereof do not and will not conflict with ...
	(4) As of the date hereof, the use of the Facilities as designed and to be operated complies, in all material respects, with all presently applicable development, pollution control, water conservation and other laws, regulations, rules and ordinances ...
	(5) The proceeds of the Notes, together with any other funds to be contributed to the Project by the Borrower and/or LSH, including additional proceeds of LSH debt, or otherwise in accordance with this Agreement, will be sufficient to pay the cost of ...
	(6) Comparable private financing for the Project was not found by the Borrower to be reasonably available, and the Project is economically more feasible with the availability of the financing herein authorized;
	(7) The Borrower is not in the trade or business of selling properties such as the Facilities and is undertaking the Project for investment purposes only or otherwise for use by the Borrower in its trade or business, and therefore the Borrower has no ...
	(8) There are no actions, suits, or proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of the Borrower, threatened against or affecting the Borrower or LSH or any property of the Borrower or LSH in any court or before any federal, state, municipal, or other gov...
	(9) The Borrower is not in default in the payment of the principal of or interest on any indebtedness for borrowed money nor in default under any instrument or agreement under and subject to which any indebtedness for borrowed money has been issued;
	(10) The Borrower has filed all federal and state income tax returns which are required to be filed and has paid all taxes shown on said returns and all assessments and governmental charges received by the Borrower to the extent that they have become ...
	(11) To the knowledge of the Borrower, no public official of the Issuer has either a direct or indirect financial interest in this Agreement nor will any public official either directly or indirectly benefit financially from this Agreement;
	(12) The Borrower has approved the terms and conditions of the Notes;
	(13) The Borrower intends the Saint Paul Facility to be and intends to cause the Lino Lakes Facility to be operated as senior housing and healthcare facilities until the date on which the entire Principal Balances of the Series 2018B Note and Series 2...
	(14) Each document executed by the Borrower in connection with the Loan constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower, enforceable in accordance with its terms (subject, as to enforceability, to limitations resulting from bankrup...
	(15) The financial statements of the Borrower heretofore furnished to the Lender are complete and correct in all material respects and fairly present the financial condition of the Borrower at the date of such statements.  Since the most recent set of...
	(16) Except with respect to the construction and occupancy of the Lino Lakes Facility, no consent, approval, order or authorization of, or registration, declaration or filing with, or notice to, any governmental authority or any third party is require...
	(17) The Saint Paul Facility is, and the Lino Lakes Facility will be upon completion, in substantial compliance with the accessibility guidelines set forth in Title III of The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as the same may be amended from ti...
	(18) LSH is a Minnesota nonprofit corporation in good standing and is duly authorized to conduct its business in all states where its activities require such authorization.  LSH is an affiliate of the Borrower.  There is no action, proceeding or inves...


	ARTICLE III   THE LOAN
	Section 3.1 Amount and Source of Loan.  The Issuer has authorized the issuance of the Notes in the principal amount of $3,000,000 and $1,700,000, respectively, to provide funds to the Borrower for its use in financing and refinancing the Project.  The...
	Section 3.2 Documents Required Prior to Closing and Disbursement of the Loan.  Prior to the closing and any advance of the proceeds, the Borrower shall deliver to the Lender the following:
	(1) The Notes;
	(2) This Agreement;
	(3) The Pledge Agreement;
	(4) The Mortgage Amendment;
	(5) The Security Agreement;
	(6) Opinion of Counsel for the Borrower as prescribed by the Lender and Bond Counsel;
	(7) An opinion of Briggs and Morgan, Professional Association, to the effect that the Issuer has duly authorized the Notes and that the interest thereon is exempt from federal income taxation and subject to other conditions acceptable to the Lender;
	(8) 501(c)(3) determination letters from the Internal Revenue Service evidencing that the Borrower and LSH are exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and such other documents and opinions as Bond Counsel may reasonably require...
	(9) Any certification, instrument, assignment or other document referenced in or required by any of the foregoing.

	Section 3.3 Disbursement of the Loan.  Pursuant to this Agreement and the Act, the Issuer authorizes the Borrower to provide directly for the financing of the Project in such manner as determined by the Borrower and hereby authorizes the Lender to adv...
	Section 3.4 Repayment.  Subject to the prepayment provisions set forth in the Notes, the Borrower agrees to repay the Loan by making all payments of principal, interest, and any premium or charge that are required to be made by the Issuer under the No...
	Section 3.5 Fee Payments.  In addition to the repayments required by Section 3.4 hereof, the Borrower shall pay to the Issuer, as fee payments, the following amounts, in each case promptly after receipt of an appropriate invoice stating the basis and ...
	Section 3.6 Borrower's Obligations Unconditional.  All payments required of the Borrower hereunder shall be paid without notice or demand and without setoff, counterclaim, abatement, deduction or defense.  The Borrower will not suspend or discontinue ...
	Section 3.7 Interest Rate Adjustment.
	(1) General.  In the event of a Corporate Tax Rate Change which causes a change in the Equivalent Tax Exempt Yield, then, subject to the provisions of Section 3.8, the annual interest rate on the Notes shall be adjusted as of the Corporate Tax Rate Ch...
	(2) Survival.  Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the Borrower under this Agreement, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment in f...

	Section 3.8 Procedure for Interest Rate Adjustment.  If the conditions described in Section 3.7(1) above occur, the following procedure must be followed:
	(1) Certificates for Reimbursement.  The Lender shall prepare and deliver to the Borrower a certificate of the Lender setting forth the new annual interest rate applicable to the Notes and the Effective Date.  The Lender certificate as to such matters...
	(2) Conditions Precedent.  Establishment of the Effective Date is subject to satisfaction of the following conditions:
	(a) The Issuer has approved the reissuance of the Notes for federal income tax purposes on the Effective Date, if determined necessary by Bond Counsel.
	(b) All procedural requirements required by the Code necessary to assure the tax-exempt status of the Notes as of the Effective Date have been satisfied.
	(c) There shall be delivered to the Lender and the Issuer on the Effective Date the following:
	(i) a favorable opinion of Bond Counsel that (I) interest on the Notes is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes from and after the Effective Date and (II) evidence of satisfaction of any procedural requirements of the Code necessa...
	(ii) replacement Notes or allonges to the Notes evidencing the new annual interest rate applicable to the Notes and the Effective Date;
	(iii) any amendments or supplements to the Loan Documents required in connection with the amendment of the Notes; and
	(iv) such other documents, certificates, and opinions as are reasonably required by the Lender and Bond Counsel.


	(3) The Borrower has paid all the fees and expenses incurred by the Issuer, the Lender and Lender participants in conjunction with establishing and documenting the new annual interest rate on the Notes.
	(4) Delay in Requests.  Failure or delay on the part of the Lender to demand implementation of the Ratio as described in this Section shall not constitute a waiver of the Lender's or Borrower's right to demand such implementation of the interest rate ...
	(5) Survival.  Without prejudice to the survival of any other agreement of the Borrower under this Agreement, the agreements and obligations of the Borrower contained in this Section shall survive the termination of this Agreement and the payment in f...


	ARTICLE IV   BORROWER'S COVENANTS
	Section 4.1 Indemnity.  The Borrower will, to the extent permitted by law, pay, and will protect, indemnify and save the Issuer, the Lender, and their respective officers, agents, and employees harmless from and against all liabilities, losses, damage...
	(1) any injury to or death of any person or damage to property in or upon the Facilities or growing out of or connected with the use, non-use, condition or occupancy of the Facilities or a part thereof;
	(2) violation of any agreement or condition of this Agreement, except by the Issuer or its assignee;
	(3) violation of any contract, agreement or restriction by the Borrower or LSH relating to the Project;
	(4) violation of any law, ordinance or regulation affecting the Facilities or a part thereof or the ownership, occupancy or use thereof, or arising out of this Agreement, the Note or the transactions contemplated thereby, including any requirements im...
	(5) any statement or information relating to the expenditure of the proceeds of the Notes contained in a non-arbitrage certificate or similar document furnished by the Borrower to the Issuer which, at the time made, is misleading, untrue or incorrect ...

	Section 4.2 Continuing Existence and Qualification; Transfer.  Throughout the term of this Agreement the Borrower and LSH will remain duly qualified to do business as nonprofit corporations in Minnesota and will continue to operate as organizations de...
	Section 4.3 Reports to Governmental Agencies.  The Borrower will furnish to agencies of the State of Minnesota, such periodic reports or statements as may be required under the Act, or as they may otherwise reasonably require of the Issuer or the Borr...
	Section 4.4 Security for the Loan.  As additional security for the Lender, and to induce the Issuer to issue and deliver the Notes, the Borrower agrees to execute and deliver (or cause to be executed and delivered) the documents described in Section 3...
	Section 4.5 Preservation of Tax Exemption.
	(1) The Borrower covenants and agrees that, in order to assure that the interest on the Notes shall at all times be free from federal income taxation, the Borrower represents and covenants to the Issuer and the Lender that it will comply with the appl...
	(a) The Saint Paul Facility is and will continue to be owned and operated by the Borrower and the Lino Lakes Facility will be owned and operated by LSH, and no portion of the Facilities is or will be managed by anyone other than the Borrower or a gove...
	(b) The Facilities will not be used by the Borrower or LSH in an unrelated trade or business, determined by the application of Section 513(a) of the Code.
	(c) No more than five percent (5%) of the net proceeds of the Notes is to be used for any private business use as defined in Section 141(b)(6) of the Code.
	(d) The payment of the principal of, or interest on, no more than five percent (5%) of the net proceeds of the Notes is (under the terms of the Notes or any underlying arrangement) directly or indirectly (a) secured by any interest in (i) property use...
	(e) The aggregate authorized face amount of the Notes (when increased by any outstanding tax-exempt "qualified 501(c)(3) bonds" issued prior to 1997, other than "qualified hospital bonds," of the Borrower, or any organization with which the Borrower i...
	(f) The weighted average maturity of the Notes will not exceed the estimated economic life of the Facilities by more than twenty percent (20%), all within the meaning of Section 147(b) of the Code.
	(g) While the Notes remain outstanding, no portion of the proceeds of the Notes will be used to provide any airplane, skybox or other private luxury box, any facility primarily used for gambling, or a store, the principal business of which is the sale...
	(h) Not more than 2% of the proceeds of the Notes will be used to finance Issuance Expenses.
	(i) The Borrower agrees it will not use the proceeds of the Notes in such a manner as to cause the Notes to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code and applicable Treasury Regulations.  The Borrower shall:
	(i) maintain records identifying all "gross proceeds" and "replacement proceeds" (as defined in Section 148(f)(6)(B) of the Code attributable to the Notes, the yield at which such gross proceeds are invested, any arbitrage profit derived therefrom (ea...
	(ii) make, or cause to be made as of the end of each fifth bond year, the annual determinations of the amount, if any, of excess arbitrage required to be paid to the United States, unless the Borrower obtains an Opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect t...
	(iii) pay, or cause to be paid, to the United States at least once every fifth bond year the amount, if any, which is required to be paid to the United States, including the last installment which shall be made no later than 60 days after the day on w...
	(iv) not invest, or permit to be invested, "gross proceeds" of the Notes in any acquired non-purpose obligations so as to deflect arbitrage otherwise payable to the United States as a "prohibited payment" to a third party; and
	(v) if applicable, retain all records of the determination of the foregoing amounts until six (6) years after the Notes have been fully paid.

	(j) The Borrower and LSH have not leased, sold, assigned, granted or conveyed and will not lease, sell, assign, grant or convey all or any portion of the Facilities or any interest therein to the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof ...
	(k) In addition to the Notes, no other obligations have been or will be issued under Section 103 of the Code which are sold at substantially the same time as the Notes pursuant to a common plan of marketing and at substantially the same rate of intere...
	(l) No proceeds of the Notes shall be invested in investments which cause the Notes to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.  If at any time the moneys in such funds exceed, within the meaning of Section 149(b)(3)(B...
	(m) Not otherwise use proceeds of the Notes, or take or fail to take any action within its control, the effect of which would be to impair the exemption of interest on the Notes from federal income taxation.
	(n) Maintain such written procedures as appropriate and applicable to ensure Borrower's principal responsibility for compliance with the post-issuance requirements necessary to maintain the tax-exempt status of the interest on the Notes, including req...

	(2) For the purpose of this Section, a "Determination of Taxability" shall mean the issuance of a statutory notice of deficiency by the Internal Revenue Service, or a ruling of the National Office or any District Office of the Internal Revenue Service...
	(3) If the Borrower receives a Determination of Taxability it will promptly give notice of such Determination of Taxability to the Issuer and the Lender and the Notes shall convert to a taxable obligation effective as of the Date of Taxability. The in...

	Section 4.6 Lease or Sale of Facilities.  The Borrower and LSH shall not lease, sell, convey or otherwise transfer the Facilities in whole or part, without first securing the written consent of the Lender with respect to the Saint Paul Facility or not...
	Section 4.7 Facilities Operation and Maintenance Expenses; Insurance.  The Borrower shall pay or cause to be paid all expenses of the operation and maintenance of the Saint Paul Facility including, but without limitation, all taxes and special assessm...
	Section 4.8 Notification of Changes.  The Borrower covenants and agrees that it will promptly notify the Lender of:
	(1) any litigation which might affect the Borrower or any of its properties, where the amount in dispute, singly or in the aggregate, exceeds $50,000 and is not covered by insurance, and any proceedings materially affecting the Borrower or its propert...
	(2) the occurrence of any Event of Default under this Agreement or under any other loan agreement, debenture, notes, purchase agreement or any other agreement providing for the borrowing of money by the Borrower or any event of which the Borrower has ...
	(3) any material adverse change in the operations, business, properties, assets or conditions, financial or otherwise, of the Borrower.

	Section 4.9 Financial Covenants.  The Borrower will:
	(a) Maintain a Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.15 to 1.00, measured annually at the end of each Fiscal Year based on audited financial statements for such Fiscal Year;
	(b) Deliver to the Lender consolidated audited financial statements of the sole member or parent of the Borrower, which shall include the Borrower, within 120 days of each Fiscal Year end;
	(c) Deliver to the Lender internally prepared financial statements of the Borrower within 30 days of the end of each fiscal quarter;
	(d) Deliver to the Lender an annual compliance certificate substantially in the form of Exhibit A within 120 days of the end of each Fiscal Year;
	(e) Maintain its main depository and checking relationship with the Lender for the term of the Notes; and
	(f) Deliver to the Lender internally prepared financial statements within 60 days of the end of such Fiscal Year;
	(g) Such other reports and financial information as Lender may, from time to time, reasonably request.

	Section 4.10 Access.  The Borrower grants to the Lender and to the Lender's agents access to the Saint Paul Facility at any reasonable time during normal business hours in order to inspect the Saint Paul Facility subject to reasonable prior notice.
	Section 4.11 Access to Books and Inspection.  The Borrower shall keep proper books of record and accounts with respect to the use and operation of the Saint Paul Facility, and, subject to any privacy laws applicable to Borrower, upon request of the Le...
	Section 4.12 IRS Audit Expenses.  The Borrower agrees to pay any reasonable costs incurred by the Issuer or the Lender as a result of the Issuer's or the Lender's compliance with an audit, random or otherwise, by the Internal Revenue Service, the Minn...
	Section 4.13 Matters Related to Management Contracts.  The manager under any management contract for the management of the Facilities shall be an organization recognized as exempt under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code or such management contract shall c...
	Section 4.14 Replacement Reserve.  On or before January 1, 2019, the Borrower shall deposit into a fund held at the Lender (the "Replacement Reserve Fund") an amount equal to $24,000.  The Borrower may draw amounts from the Replacement Reserve Fund to...

	ARTICLE V   PREPAYMENT OF LOAN
	Section 5.1 Prepayment at Option of Borrower.  The Borrower may, at its option, prepay the Loan, in whole or in part, on any date, by paying the principal amount to be prepaid and accrued interest thereon, with such penalty or premium then due as set ...

	ARTICLE VI   EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	Section 6.1 Events of Default.  Any one or more of the following events is an Event of Default under this Agreement:
	(1) If the Borrower shall fail to make (a) any payments required under Section 3.4 of this Agreement on the date due as set forth in the Notes, or (b) any other payment due under this Agreement on or before the date that the payment is due and such de...
	(2) If the Borrower shall fail to observe and perform any other covenant, condition or agreement on its part under this Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice, specifying such default and requesting that it be remedied, given ...
	(3) If the Borrower shall file a petition in bankruptcy or for reorganization or for an arrangement pursuant to any present or future federal bankruptcy act or under any similar federal or state law, shall consent to the entry of an order for relief p...
	(4) If the articles of incorporation of the Borrower shall expire or be annulled; or if the Borrower shall be dissolved (other than administratively dissolved by the Minnesota Secretary of State, so long as the Borrower is reinstated within one year) ...
	(5) If any representation or warranty made by the Borrower herein, or by an officer or representative of the Borrower in any document or certificate furnished the Lender or the Issuer in connection herewith or therewith or pursuant hereto or thereto, ...
	(6) If the Borrower shall default or fail to perform any covenant, condition or agreement on its part under any of the Security Agreement, the Mortgage, or any other security document securing the Notes, and such failure continues beyond the period se...
	(7) Any state or federal tax lien shall be filed against the Borrower and shall remain undischarged for a period of sixty (60) days.
	(8) All or any portion of the Land or the Saint Paul Facility, or the legal, equitable or any other interest therein, shall be sold, transferred, assigned, leased, further encumbered (except as permitted herein or in the Mortgage) or otherwise dispose...

	Section 6.2 Remedies.  Whenever any Event of Default referred to in Section 6.1 hereof shall have happened and be subsisting, any one or more of the following remedial steps to the extent permitted by law may be taken by the Issuer with the prior writ...
	(1) The Lender's obligation to advance any further amounts under the Notes shall terminate.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other instrument evidencing or securing the Loan, the Lender may exercise the foregoing re...
	(2) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender, or the Lender may declare all installments of the Loan (being an amount equal to that necessary to pay in full the Principal Balance plus accrued interest thereon and any premium of the Notes assum...
	(3) [Reserved.]
	(4) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender (except as otherwise provided in Section 7.9 herein), or the Lender (in either case at no expense to the Issuer) may take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or appropriate to c...
	(5) The Issuer, upon written direction of the Lender, or the Lender may exercise any other remedy permitted under any other instrument evidencing or securing the Loan including, without limitation, the Mortgage and the Security Agreement.
	(6) In addition to the remedies set forth in this Agreement, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default and thereafter while the same be continuing, the Borrower hereby irrevocably authorizes the Lender to set off all sums owing by the Borrower to th...

	Section 6.3 Disposition of Funds.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, any amounts collected pursuant to action taken under Section 6.2 hereof, except for any amounts collected solely for the benefit of the Issuer und...
	Section 6.4 Manner of Exercise.  No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the Issuer or the Lender is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy or remedies, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition...
	Section 6.5 Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  In the event the Borrower should default under any of the provisions of this Agreement and the Issuer or the Lender should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of amounts due hereunder ...
	Section 6.6 Effect of Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this Agreement should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed ...
	Section 6.7 Default Rate.  Following an Event of Default hereunder, and for so long as such Event of Default shall continue, the obligations of the Borrower hereunder shall bear interest at an annual rate equal to 4% per annum over the interest rate o...

	ARTICLE VII   GENERAL
	Section 7.1 Notices.  All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when hand delivered or received by certified or registered United States mail, return receipt requested, postage pr...
	Section 7.2 Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the Issuer and the Borrower and their respective successors and assigns.
	Section 7.3 Severability.  In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.
	Section 7.4 Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement or in the Resolution, subsequent to the Closing date and before the Notes are satisfied and discharged in accordance with their terms, this Agreement ma...
	Section 7.5 Execution Counterparts.  This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.
	Section 7.6 Limitation of Issuer's Liability.  It is understood and agreed by the Borrower and the Lender that no covenant of the Issuer herein shall give rise to a pecuniary liability of the Issuer or a charge against its general credit, or taxing po...
	Section 7.7 Issuer's and Host Cities' Attorneys' Fees and Costs.  If, notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.6 hereof, the Issuer incurs any expense, or suffers any losses, claims or damages, or incurs any liabilities in connection with the trans...
	Section 7.8 Release.  The Borrower hereby acknowledges and agrees that the Issuer shall not be liable to the Borrower, and hereby releases and discharges the Issuer from any liability, for any and all losses, costs, expenses (including attorneys' fees...
	Section 7.9 Pledge and Assignment by Issuer and Survival of Obligations.  The Issuer may pledge and assign its rights under this Agreement and any related documents to the Lender to secure payment of the principal of and interest and premium, if any, ...
	Section 7.10 Required Approvals.  Consents and approvals required by this Agreement to be obtained from the Borrower or the Issuer shall be in writing and shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.
	Section 7.11 Termination Upon Retirement of Notes.  At any time when no Principal Balance on either of the Notes remains outstanding, and arrangements satisfactory to the Lender and the Issuer have been made for the discharge of all other accrued and ...
	Section 7.12 Expenses of Lender.  Upon Closing, the Borrower shall pay the Lender a loan origination fee equal to [$11,750].  The Borrower shall also pay or reimburse the Lender for any and all costs and expenses, including, without limitation, reason...
	Section 7.13 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any and all prior letters, proposals, contracts and understandings between the parties with...
	Section 7.14 Further Assurances.  At any time and from time to time, upon request by the Lender, the Borrower will make, execute and deliver or cause to be made, executed and delivered, to the Lender, any and all other further instruments, certificate...
	Section 7.15 Non-Responsibility.  Neither the Issuer nor the Lender assumes liability for the sufficiency of Loan proceeds to complete the Project.


	E1(7) - 11221891-v3-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_SERIES 2018B NOTE (2)
	1. Commencing on the date of this Note and continuing through December 1, 2028 (the "Adjustment Date") interest shall accrue on the outstanding Principal Balance at the initial rate of ____ % per annum (the "Initial Rate").
	2. In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and interest due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service charge, at maturity, upon prepayment, or otherwise.
	3. Principal and interest and premium, if any, due hereunder shall be payable at the principal office of the Lender, or at such other place as the Lender may designate in writing.
	4. This Note is issued by the City to provide funds pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of the date hereof (the "Loan Agreement") by and between the City and Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and 501(c)(3) organization (th...
	5. This Note is secured by a Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof between the City and the Lender (the "Pledge Agreement") and is further secured by a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of November 1, 2009, a...
	6. The City, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby waives demand, presentment, protest and notice of dishonor; and to the extent permitted by law, the Lender may extend interest and/or principal of or any service charge or premium due on this...
	7. This Note is subject to prepayment in immediately available funds on any date at the option of the Borrower, in whole or in part as provided in Section 5.1 of the Loan Agreement.  For prepayments in an amount up to 20% of the outstanding Principal ...
	(a) three percent (3%) as of any date prior to or on the 3rd anniversary of this Note and 3rd anniversary of the Adjustment Date;
	(b) two percent (2%) as of any date after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th anniversary of this Note and after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th anniversary of the Adjustment Date;
	(c) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the 8th anniversary of this Note and after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the 8th anniversary of the Adjustment Date; and
	(d) after the 8th anniversary of this Note or the Adjustment Date, this Note may be prepaid in whole or in part on any date without premium.

	8. Upon a Determination of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, this Note shall convert to a taxable obligation and the interest rate for interest accruing from the Date of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be adjusted to an...
	9. As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, this Note is only transferable upon the books of the City at the office of the City Administrator, by the Lender in person or by its agent duly authorized in writin...
	10. All of the agreements, conditions, covenants, provisions and stipulations contained in the Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are hereby made a part of this Note to the same extent and with the same force and ef...
	11. This Note and interest thereon and any service charge or premium, if any, due hereunder are payable solely from the revenues and proceeds derived from the Loan Agreement and any security agreements related hereto and do not constitute a debt of th...
	12. If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, then the Lender shall have the right and option, among other things, to declare the Principal Balance and accrued interest thereon immediately due and payable, whe...
	13. The remedies of the Lender, as provided herein and in any security agreements related hereto, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are not exclusive and shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be pursued singly, successive...
	14. The Lender shall not be deemed, by any act of omission or commission, to have waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Lender and, then only to the extent specifically set forth in the writi...
	15. This Note has been issued without registration under state or federal or other securities laws, pursuant to an exemption for such issuance; and accordingly this Note may not be assigned or transferred in whole or part, nor may a participation inte...
	16. This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" under Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

	E1(8) - 11223463-v3-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_SERIES 2018A NOTE (2)
	1. Commencing on the date of this Note and continuing to but not including December 1, 2020 interest shall accrue at the annual rate set forth in the paragraph below.
	2. In any event, the payments hereunder shall be sufficient to pay all principal and interest due, as such principal and interest becomes due, and to pay any premium or service charge, at maturity, upon prepayment, or otherwise.
	3. Principal and interest and premium, if any, due hereunder shall be payable at the principal office of the Lender, or at such other place as the Lender may designate in writing.
	4. This Note is issued by the City to provide funds pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of the date hereof (the "Loan Agreement") by and between the City and Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and 501(c)(3) organization (th...
	5. This Note is secured by a Pledge Agreement dated as of the date hereof between the City and the Lender (the "Pledge Agreement") and is further secured by a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement dated as of November 1, 2009, a...
	6. The City, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby waives demand, presentment, protest and notice of dishonor; and to the extent permitted by law, the Lender may extend interest and/or principal of or any service charge or premium due on this...
	7. This Note is subject to prepayment in immediately available funds on any date at the option of the Borrower, in whole or in part as provided in Section 5.1 of the Loan Agreement.  Prior to the first Adjustment Date, the prepayment price is equal to...
	(a) three percent (3%) as of any date prior to or on the 3rd anniversary of each Adjustment Date;
	(b) two percent (2%) as of any date after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th anniversary of each Adjustment Date and after the 3rd anniversary and prior to or on the 6th anniversary of each Adjustment Date;
	(c) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on the date that is two weeks prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment Date;
	(d) one percent (1%) as of any date after the 6th anniversary and prior to or on to the 8th anniversary of the second Adjustment Date;
	(e) after the date that is two weeks prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment Date and prior to the 8th anniversary of the first Adjustment date, this Note may be prepaid in whole or in part on any date without premium; and
	(f) after the 8th anniversary of the second Adjustment Date, this Note may be prepaid in whole or in part on any date without premium.

	8. Upon a Determination of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, this Note shall convert to a taxable obligation and the interest rate for interest accruing from the Date of Taxability, as defined in the Loan Agreement, shall be adjusted to an...
	9. As provided in the Resolution and subject to certain limitations set forth therein, this Note is only transferable upon the books of the City at the office of the City Administrator, by the Lender in person or by its agent duly authorized in writin...
	10. All of the agreements, conditions, covenants, provisions and stipulations contained in the Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are hereby made a part of this Note to the same extent and with the same force and ef...
	11. This Note and interest thereon and any service charge or premium, if any, due hereunder are payable solely from the revenues and proceeds derived from the Loan Agreement and any security agreements related hereto and do not constitute a debt of th...
	12. If an Event of Default (as that term is defined in the Loan Agreement) shall occur, then the Lender shall have the right and option, among other things, to declare the Principal Balance and accrued interest thereon immediately due and payable, whe...
	13. The remedies of the Lender, as provided herein and in any security agreements related hereto, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Mortgage are not exclusive and shall be cumulative and concurrent and may be pursued singly, successive...
	14. The Lender shall not be deemed, by any act of omission or commission, to have waived any of its rights or remedies hereunder unless such waiver is in writing and signed by the Lender and, then only to the extent specifically set forth in the writi...
	15. This Note has been issued without registration under state or federal or other securities laws, pursuant to an exemption for such issuance; and accordingly this Note may not be assigned or transferred in whole or part, nor may a participation inte...
	16. This Note is a "qualified tax-exempt obligation" under Section 265(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

	E1(9) - 11224019-v2-Falcon Heights (Heritage Apartments Project)_FIRST AMENDMENT TO MORTGAGE
	1. The Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of Saint Paul, Minnesota (the "Saint Paul HRA") previously issued its Housing Revenue Refunding Note, Series 2009 (Heritage Apartments Project) (the "Prior Note") and the Lender purchased the Prio...
	2. The Saint Paul HRA and the Mortgagor entered into a Loan Agreement dated as of November 1, 2009 (the "Original Loan Agreement") whereby, among other things, the Mortgagor agreed to pay to the Saint Paul HRA loan repayments in an amount and at the t...
	3. To secure the Mortgagor's obligations under the Original Loan Agreement, the Mortgagor granted to the Mortgagee a mortgage on certain property legally described on Exhibit A thereto, pursuant to a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing ...
	4. The Prior Note is being restructured with the proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes (defined below), the proceeds of which will also finance, in part, the acquisition, construction, and equipping of additional improvements; and
	5. For the purpose of restructuring the Prior Note and to finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of certain other improvements, the City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the "Issuer" or "City") has issued its Senior Housing and Health Care ...
	6. The City will loan the proceeds of the Series 2018 Notes to the Mortgagor pursuant to a Loan Agreement dated as of the date hereof, between the City and the Mortgagor (the "Loan Agreement") for the purpose of (a) refinancing the Prior Note, the pro...
	7. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Mortgagor has covenanted, among other things, to make loan repayments sufficient to pay amortized installments of principal and interest on the Series 2018 Notes when due; and
	8. The City and the Lender have required, as a condition for the issuance of the Notes by the City and for the purchase and acceptance of the Notes by the Lender, that the Mortgagor secure the 2018 Notes by the Original Mortgage, as amended by this Am...
	9. As a result of the execution and delivery by the Borrower of the Loan Agreement, the principal balance of the debt secured by this Mortgage is increasing by the sum of $___________, from $1,523,889 to [$4,700,000], and the original loan to the Borr...
	10. Because of the increase in the principal amount of the debt secured by the Mortgage, the Original Mortgage, as amended hereby is a "supplemental mortgage" within the meaning of Minnesota Statutes, § 287.05, as a result of which additional mortgage...
	11. This Amendment amends the Original Mortgage as follows.
	1. All references to the "Note" in the Original Mortgage shall refer to the Series 2018 Notes, as defined in this Amendment.
	2. All references in the Original Mortgage to "$3,200,000", whether spelled out or depicted numerically, are hereby changed to ["$4,700,000."]
	3. All references in the Original Mortgage to "November 1, 2019" are hereby changed to "December 1, 2038."
	4. All references in the Original Mortgage to "Kelly Elkin" are hereby changed to "David B. Borden."
	5. Except as modified herein, all of the terms and provisions of the Original Mortgage remain unchanged, and shall remain in full force and effect.

	E1(10) - Heritage Security Agreement
	1. The Collateral will be kept in the State of Minnesota.  The Debtor will not remove the Collateral from the State of Minnesota without the prior written consent of the Secured Party. The Secured Party may examine and inspect the Collateral at any ti...
	2. The Collateral is for business use and is specifically to be used in operation of the Debtor's business.
	3. The Collateral shall not be attached to real estate (except for any Collateral that is attached to real estate on the date hereof) without the Secured Party's prior written consent.  If any of the Collateral is or is to become a fixture, the Debtor...
	4. Except as set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto, the Debtor is the owner of the Collateral, free and clear of all liens, security interests or encumbrances, and the Debtor will defend the Collateral against all claims and demands of all persons at...
	5. The Debtor will keep the Collateral in good order and repair, and will not waste or destroy the Collateral and will not sell or offer to sell or otherwise transfer (except for the sale of worn, obsolete or surplus assets or except as permitted in t...
	(a) Liens in favor of the Secured Party;
	(b) Liens existing on the date of this Agreement and disclosed on Exhibit A attached hereto;
	(c) Liens securing purchase money indebtedness incurred for the replacement of Debtor's computers;
	(d) Deposits or pledges to secure payment of workers' compensation, unemployment insurance, old age pensions or other social security obligations, in the ordinary course of business of the Debtor;
	(e) Liens for taxes, fees, assessments and governmental charges not delinquent or to the extent that payments therefor shall not at the time be required to be made;
	(f) Liens of carriers, warehousemen, mechanics and materialmen, and other like Liens arising in the ordinary course of business, for sums not due or to the extent that payment therefor shall not at the time be required to be made;
	(g) Deposits to secure the performance of bids, trade contracts, leases, statutory obligations and other obligations of a like nature incurred in the ordinary course of business; and
	(h) Tenant security deposits and reservation deposits.

	6. Except as shown on Exhibit A, no financing statement covering the Collateral is on file in any public office other than the financing statements filed by or at the direction of the Secured Party and at the request of the Secured Party, the Debtor h...
	7. The Debtor will keep the Collateral insured at all times against loss by fire and other hazards concerning which, in the commercially reasonable judgment of the Secured Party, insurance protection is necessary, in a company or companies satisfactor...
	8. At its option, upon default of the Debtor to do so, the Secured Party may discharge taxes, liens, or security interests or other encumbrances placed on the Collateral, may pay for insurance on the Collateral, and may pay for the maintenance and pre...
	9. Except when an Event of Default (as defined in the Loan Agreement) has occurred and is continuing, the Debtor may retain possession of the Collateral and use the same in any lawful manner not inconsistent with the agreements herein or with the term...
	10. Upon the occurrence and continuance of an Event of Default, the Secured Party shall have the right, at its option and without demand or notice, in addition to all other rights and remedies available in law and equity, to exercise all of the rights...
	11. Waiver of any default hereunder by the Secured Party shall not be a waiver of any other default or of the same default on a later occasion.  No delay or failure by the Secured Party to exercise any right or remedy shall be a waiver of any such rig...
	12. This Agreement and the security interest in the Collateral created hereby shall terminate when the Borrower has repaid the Secured Party the amount due on the Notes and all other indebtedness and liability from the Borrower or the Debtor to the Se...
	13. No waiver by the Secured Party of any default shall be effective unless in writing nor operate as a waiver of any other default or of the same default on a future occasion.
	14. The Secured Party is hereby appointed the Debtor's attorney-in-fact to do all things and acts necessary to perfect and to continue to perfect the security interest in the Collateral and, following the occurrence and during the continuance of an Ev...

	E1(11) - Resolution 18-37 Approve Conduit Bond_Heritage Apartments
	(a) Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462C, as amended (the "Act"), confers upon cities the power to issue revenue obligations to finance combined multifamily housing and health care developments;
	(b) The City of Falcon Heights, Minnesota (the "City") desires to facilitate the selective development of the community, retain and improve the tax base and help to provide the range of services and employment opportunities required by the population,...
	(c) Heritage Apartments, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the "Borrower"), and an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), has proposed that the City undertake a program to fina...
	(d) The "Project" consists of: (i) financing, in part, the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a combined multifamily senior housing and health care facility, with approximately 103 independent living units, 34 assisted living units, 16 memory...
	(e) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that conventional, commercial financing to pay the capital cost of the Project is available only on a limited basis and at such high costs of borrowing that the economic feasibility of o...
	(f) Based on representations of the Borrower, no public official of the City has either a direct or indirect financial interest in the Project nor will any public official either directly or indirectly benefit financially from the Project;
	(g) The Notes, as and when issued, will not constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the City, Lino Lakes, or Saint Paul and will not be a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City, Lino Lakes, or Saint Paul;
	(h) As required by the Act and Section 147(f) of the Code, a notice of public hearing was published in the City's official newspaper and newspaper of general circulation, for a public hearing on the proposed issuance of the Notes by the City and the p...
	(i) As required by the Act and Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council has on this same date held a public hearing on a housing finance program and the issuance of the Notes by the City and the proposal by the Borrower to undertake and refinance ...
	(j) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that, in accordance with Section 147(f) of the Code, the Board of Commissioners of the Saint Paul HRA, on behalf of the City of Saint Paul, held a public hearing on this same date on the...
	(k) The City has been advised by representatives of the Borrower that, in accordance with Section 147(f) of the Code, the City Council of Lino Lakes held a public hearing on December 10, 2018 on the Lino Lakes Project and has given its approval to the...
	(l) Pursuant to Section 462C.04 of the Act, the City made timely submission of the housing finance program to the Metropolitan Council for its review and comment, and the City has heretofore received favorable comment from the Metropolitan Council on ...
	SECTION 1.   LEGAL AUTHORIZATION AND FINDINGS.
	1.1 Findings.  The City hereby finds, determines and declares as follows:
	(a) The City is a municipal corporation and a political subdivision of the State of Minnesota and is authorized under the Act to assist the Project referred to herein, and to issue and sell the Notes, as hereinafter defined, for the purpose, in the ma...
	(b) The issuance and sale of the Notes by the City, pursuant to the Act, is in the best interest of the City, and the City hereby determines to issue the Notes and to sell the Notes to Bremer Bank, National Association, Minneapolis, Minnesota, or anot...
	(c) Pursuant to a Loan Agreement (the "Loan Agreement") to be entered into between the City and the Borrower, the Borrower has agreed to repay the Notes in specified amounts and at specified times sufficient to pay in full when due the principal of, p...
	(d) Pursuant to a Pledge Agreement (the "Pledge Agreement") to be entered into between the City and the Lender, the City has pledged and granted a security interest in all of its rights, title, and interest in the Loan Agreement to the Lender (except ...
	(e) Payments due under the Loan Agreement and Notes shall also be secured pursuant to a Security Agreement (the "Security Agreement") given by the Borrower to the Lender by granting a security interest in the property described therein.  A draft of th...
	(f) As additional security, the Borrower will grant a security interest in the Heritage Apartments Project pursuant to a Mortgage, Security Agreement and Fixture Financing Statement as amended by a First Amendment to Mortgage, Security Agreement and F...
	(g) The Notes will be special, limited obligations of the City.  The Notes shall not be payable from or charged upon any funds other than the revenues pledged to the payment thereof, nor shall the City be subject to any liability thereon.  No holder o...
	(h) On the basis of information available to the City it appears, and the City hereby finds, that the Project constitutes properties, real and personal, used or useful in connection with senior housing and health care facilities within the meaning of ...
	(i) It is desirable, feasible, and consistent with the objects and purposes of the Act to issue the Notes, for the purpose of financing and refinancing the costs of the Project.


	SECTION 2.   THE NOTES.
	2.1 Authorized Amount and Form of Notes.  The Notes are hereby approved and shall be issued pursuant to this Resolution in substantially the forms submitted to the City Council with such appropriate variations, omissions and insertions as are necessar...
	2.2 The Notes.  The Notes shall be dated as of the date of delivery to the Lender, shall be payable at the times and in the manner, shall bear interest at the rate, and shall be subject to such other terms and conditions as are set forth therein.
	2.3 Execution.  The Notes shall be executed on behalf of the City by the signatures of its Mayor and the City Administrator and shall be sealed with the seal of the City; provided that the seal may be intentionally omitted as provided by law.  In case...
	2.4 Delivery of Initial Notes.  Before delivery of the Notes there shall be filed with the Lender (except to the extent waived by the Lender) the following items:
	(1) an executed copy of each of the following documents:
	(a) the Loan Agreement;
	(b) the Pledge Agreement;
	(c) the Security Agreement;
	(d) the Mortgage Amendment; and
	(e) the Joint Powers Agreement.

	(2) an opinion of Counsel for the Borrower and LSH as prescribed by the Lender and Bond Counsel;
	(3) the opinion of Bond Counsel as to the validity and tax exempt status of the Notes;
	(4) evidence that the Borrower and LSH are organizations described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Code and are exempt from income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; and
	(5) such other documents and opinions as Bond Counsel may reasonably require for purposes of rendering its opinion required in subsection (3) above or that the Lender may reasonably require for the closing.

	2.5 Disposition of Proceeds of the Notes.  Upon delivery of the Notes to Lender, the Lender shall, on behalf of the City, disburse the proceeds of the Notes for financing and refinancing the Project in accordance with the terms of the Loan Agreement.
	2.6 Registration of Transfer.  The City will cause to be kept at the office of the City Administrator a Note Register in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the City shall provide for the registration of transfers of own...
	2.7 Mutilated, Lost or Destroyed Note.  In case the Notes issued hereunder shall become mutilated or be destroyed or lost, the City shall, if not then prohibited by law, cause to be executed and delivered, a new Note of like outstanding principal amou...
	2.8 Ownership of Note.  The City may deem and treat the person in whose name the Note is last registered in the Notes Register and by notation on the Note whether or not such Note shall be overdue, as the absolute owner of such Note for the purpose of...
	2.9 Limitation on Note Transfers.  The Notes will be issued to an "accredited investor" and without registration under state or other securities laws, pursuant to an exemption for such issuance; and accordingly the Notes may not be assigned or transfe...
	2.10 Issuance of a New Note.  Subject to the provisions of Section 2.9, the City shall, at the request and expense of the Lender, issue a new note, in aggregate outstanding principal amount equal to that of the Notes surrendered, and of like tenor exc...

	SECTION 3.   GENERAL COVENANTS.
	3.1 Payment of Principal and Interest.  The City covenants that it will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on the Notes at the place, on the dates, solely from the source and in the manner provided herein and in the Notes. ...
	3.2 Performance of and Authority for Covenants.  The City covenants that it will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Resolution, in the Notes executed, authenticated, and ...
	3.3 Enforcement and Performance of Covenants.  The City agrees to enforce all covenants and obligations of the Borrower under the Loan Agreement, upon request of the Lender and being indemnified to the satisfaction of the City for all expenses and cla...
	3.4 Nature of Security.  Notwithstanding anything contained in the Notes, the Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, the Security Agreement, the Mortgage Amendment, or any other document referred to in Section 2.4 to the contrary, under the provisions ...
	3.5 Qualified Tax Exempt Obligation.  In order to qualify the Notes as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" within the meaning of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the City hereby makes the following factua...
	(a) the Notes are not treated as "private activity bonds" under Section 265(b)(3) of the Code;
	(b) the City hereby designates the Notes as qualified tax-exempt obligations for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code;
	(c) the reasonably anticipated amount of tax-exempt obligations (other than obligations described in clause (ii) of Section 265(b)(3)(C) of the Code) which will be issued by the City (and all entities whose obligations will be aggregated with those of...
	(d) not more than $10,000,000 of obligations issued by the City during the calendar year 2018 have been designated for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code; and
	(e) the aggregate face amount of the Notes does not exceed $10,000,000.


	SECTION 4.   MISCELLANEOUS.
	4.1 Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions or in all cases beca...
	4.2 Authentication of Transcript.  The officers of the City are directed to furnish to Bond Counsel certified copies of this Resolution and all documents referred to herein, and affidavits or certificates as to all other matters which are reasonably n...
	4.3 Authorization to Execute Agreements.  The forms of the proposed Loan Agreement, the Pledge Agreement, and the Joint Powers Agreement are hereby approved in substantially the form presented to the City Council, together with such additional details...
	4.4 Approval of Housing Program.  The housing program in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit A is hereby approved.



	E2 - RCA_2018 Truth in Taxation(TNT) and 2019 Budget Hearing
	E2(2) - 2019 Truth in Taxation (TNT) and Budget Hearing
	Slide Number 1
	Factors That Affect Taxes
	Ramsey County Tax Statement
	Market Value Exclusion
	Ramsey County Median Values
	2019 Property Tax Allocation
	Ramsey County Tax Rates
	City Tax Rate History
	History of Transfer of Reserves to General Fund
	History of Property Tax Levy
	History of Property Tax Levy, cont.
	Property Tax Impacts
	Estimated Percentage Change in 2019 Property Tax On Median Value Single Family Properties (as of 10/26/18)
	2019 City Taxes on a Median Value Home in Ramsey County
	2019 Total Property Taxes on a Median Value Home in Ramsey County
	Stratified Change Property Taxes 2019 
	2019 Expenditures
	Cities Receive Sales Tax Exemption
	2019 Budgeted General Fund Expenditures By Dept.
	2019 General Fund �Expenditures by Department
	Levy Comparisons
	2019 Proposed Budget 
	2019 Proposed Budget, cont.
	Additional Information
	For More Information:

	E2(3) - Resolution 18-38 Adopting 2019 Levy
	E2(4) - Resolution 18-39 Adopting 2019 Budget
	F1 - RCA_Payables
	F1(2) - Payables_12-12-18
	F2 - RCA _Approval of City License(s)
	F3 - RCA_Appointment of Prosecuting Attorney
	F4 - RCA_Appointment of City Attorney
	F5 - RCA_Appointment of City Engineer
	F6 - RCA_Appointment of City Auditor
	F7 - RCA_Designation of Official Newspaper
	F8 - RCA_2019 Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA)
	F9 - RCA_Charitable Gambling - FHE - PTA
	F10 - RCA_2018 Year End Budget Amendments
	F11 - RCA_Accepting Grant Fund of $1,000 from Target Coporation for Park and Rec Programming
	F12 - RCA_Removal of Hibo Ali from the Community Engagement Commission
	F12(2) - Resolution 18-40 Removal of Hibo Ali to the Community Engagement Commission
	F13 - RCA_Resignation of Stephen Sunderland from the Planning Commission
	F13(2) - Resolution 18-41 Resignation of Stephen Sunderland, Planning Commission
	F13(3) - Resignation Letter Stephen Sunderland
	F14 - RCA_Appointment of Scott Wilson to the Planning Commission
	F14(2) - Resolution 18-42 Appointment of Scott Wilson to the Environment Commission
	G1 - RCA_2017PMP_FinalPayment
	G1(2) - Resolution 18-43 2017PMP_FinalPayment
	G1(3) - 18_1212_AttB_2017PMP_FinalPayment
	G1(4) - 18_1212_AttC_2017PMP_FinalPayment



